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Financial Highlights

RESULTS SUMMARY
(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

(RMB’000) 2011 2010

(RESEIES))

Revenue and profit:

Revenue 31,252,572 27,817,178 6,964,551 5,092,883 4,077,074
Profit/(loss) before taxation 1,447,392 1,181,726 454,888 (288,849) 5,919
Profit/(loss) after taxation 1,265,378 907,962 342,590 (288,780) (41,665)

Attributable to:

Profit attributable to the owners
of the Company 969,839 674,556 193,561 (165,566) 1,282
Non-controlling interests 295,539 233,406 149,029 (123,214) (42,947)

Basic earnings per share attributable to
the owners of the Company (RMB) 0.8482 0.5823 0.2874 (0.2458) 0.0019
Dividends per share attributable to

the owners of the Company (RMB) 0.0300 - - -

ASSETS SUMMARY
(For the year ended 31 December 2012)

(RMB’000) 2011

(RESEWE))
Total assets 40,085,045 36,856,769 17,267,413 13,626,354 11,795,652
Total liabilities 28,523,352 26,139,276 12,318,964 9,802,017 8,100,414
Total equity 11,561,693 10,717,493 4,948,449 3,824,337 3,695,238

Capital and reserves attributable to
the owners of the Company 7,572,614 6,638,777 1,977,482 1,698,513 1,872,783
Non-controlling interests 3,989,079 4,078,716 2,970,967 2,125,824 1,822,455

Net assets per share attributable to
the owners of the Company (RMB) 4.3137 3.4729 2.94 2.52 2.76
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Financial Highlights

REVENUE
RMB Thousand
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Chairman’s Statement

It is my honor to present the 2012 Annual Report of AVIC
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) on behalf of the Board
of Directors to the shareholders, business partners and supporters of
the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

During the reporting period, the Company completed a very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction— issuance of
domestic shares and perpetual subordinated convertible securities
(PSCS) , in which shares of 12 companies held by the controlling
shareholders, AVIC International Holding Corporation (“AVIC
International”), AVIC International Shenzhen Company Limited
(“AVIC Shenzhen”) and connected companies were injected
into the Company. As such, the business scope of the Group
expanded to five business sections: high-tech electronic products,
retails and high-end consumer products, real estate and hotel,
trading and logistics, and resources investment and development.
In accordance with the adjustment of equity structure and
business structure, the name of the Company has been changed
from “FZIIPEBE KD AR AR (CATIC Shenzhen Holdings
Limited)” to “Rfin BB IERR KD B R AR (AVIC International
Holdings Limited)”.

During the year of 2012, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue from continuing operations of approximately
RMB31,252,572,000, representing an increase of approximately 12% over the previous year of approximately
RMB27,817,178,000 (restated, same below). The profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB969,839,000, representing an increase of approximately 44% over the previous year of approximately
RMB674,556,000.

In 2012, amid the gloomy global market, and facing severe challenges in the external macroeconomic situation,
during the reporting period, the Group has affirmed its strategy of “Supremacy e Surpass”, maintained its leading
position in the industry, stressed on its yearly strategic theme of “Enhancing Efficiency”, “Adjusting Structure” and
“Bolstering Capacity”, promoted sustainable and rapid development of various businesses and competitiveness
of each major business was further strengthened. Regarding the high technology electronics products section,
progresses have been made in the product structural adjustment of liquid crystal displays LCD business;
technology in packaging substrate of PCB business achieved breakthrough, mass production and rapid growth,
creating the first record in domestic industry. Regarding the watch business in retails and high-end customer
product section, dual major principles of product brand and channel brand have been adhered, leading to stable
growth in business revenue. Regarding the construction contracting business in real estate and hotel section,
dozens of international construction “Engineer, Procure, Construct” (“EPC”) project were successfully obtained,
all the projects under construction were undergoing smoothly, in which GIB Company Hotel started normal
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Chairman’s Statement

operation. Regarding the trading and logistics section, businesses in mechanical and electrical engineering with
rapid development and good social efficiency and economic effectiveness achieved success. Regarding the
resources investment and development section, phosphate fertilizer and chemical fertilizers focus on enhancement
of technology and production capacity.

While it was promoting sustainable and rapid development of various businesses, it accelerated the transformation
and upgrade on market, customer and product structural adjustment of core business. Meanwhile, it focused
on core competitiveness of business, enhanced business model innovation, enhancement of internal capability,
value creation capability and operational risk control capability, so as to increase overall operation result. It also
intensified its management innovation, optimized major business procedures and procedures management,
accelerated the inventory and trade receivable turnover, achieved satisfactory result on strategic cost management,
S0 as to enhance the efficiency of operation, asset and organization. It kept improving the corporation governance,
strengthened leadership of core management team and human resources development, promoted humanity
management and intensified cooperate cultural system reform, resulting in a satisfactory performance on the target
tasks.

Looking forward to 2013, the global environment is full of fluctuation and uncertainties with a process of seeking
stable growth, structural adjustment and new balance. The domestic economy gradually showed a stable trend,
the government policy turned to focus on improvement of quality and efficiency of economic growth, while
globally speaking, China is still in a position of historical opportunities with urbanization, internationalization and
informationization and will encounter challenges and opportunities at the same time.

To accommodate the complicated macro-economic situation and industry environment both globally and
domestically, the Group will affirm its strategy of “Supremacy e Surpass” and yearly theme of “Implementation,
Efficiency and Effectiveness”, maintain its leading position in the industry to promote a continuous and rapid growth
of the business of the Group while at the same time accelerate strategic transformation. It will strengthen overseas
marketing system, construction on channels and brand and speed up the internationalization. It will fully leverage
on co-ordination of profit management, strengthen strategic cost management, broaden financing channels and
optimize the financing structure. It will also accelerate the turnover of trade receivable and inventory, continue to
enhance assets efficiency and strictly control operation risks. Besides, it will firmly implement all foundation works,
optimize organization structure and system procedures, improve internal control system, strengthen standardized
operation and management that focused on human, so as to enhance its excellent operation capacity, increase
structure and staff efficiency.

In 2013, the Group will fully advance to complete another very substantial acquisition and connected transaction
issuing PSCS, in which assets and businesses of several companies held by the controlling shareholders, AVIC
International and AVIC Shenzhen will be injected into the Company. Subject to full completion of the transaction,
the Group’s business will be further enlarged, foundation in the trading and logistics and retails industries will be
enhanced and consolidated, so as to ensure stable and healthy development of the Group as a whole.

Lastly, | would like to extend my most sincere gratitude to all the staff for their valuable contribution and all

shareholders, business partners and people from all walks of life for their support. We will continue to dedicate
ourselves to creating better returns for our shareholders, customers and staff.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

CORPORATE ORGANIZATION CHART

National Council for Aviation Industry
Social Security Fund Corporation of China AVIC Fund
14.31% 76.83% 8.86%
AVIC International
Holding Corporation
100%
AVIC International Shenzhen
Company Limited 39.37%
35.63%
AVIC International
Holdings Limited
Retails and High-end Trading and Real Estate Resources Investment High-tech Material associates/
Consumer Products Logistics and Hotel and Development Electronic Products joint ventures
China National Beijing AVIC Ruixin ) e ) e
Fiyta Holdings Aero-Technology Investment and R ShenzhegAVlS q | Tt‘a””.“a l\élcrou " Wluh?n T!ann(;a M;j;o
Limited (“Fiyta”) | Beijing Company Limited | |~ Management Company oeourees +o., . elecironics 0. e € ooronics ~o. ZE:
o o ” o o (“Resource Company”) (“Tianma”) (“Wuhan Tianma”)
41.49% (“Beijing Company”) Limited (“Beijing 100% 45.62% 10%
100% Ruixin”) 90% |

China National
Aero-Technology
— Guangzhou Company

Xi'an AVIC Raise
Xikong Real Estate
—  Company Limited

Aero-Technology
—  Xiamen Company
Limited (“Xiamen
Company”) 100%

Limited (“Guangzhou (“Xi'an Raise)
Company”) 100% 51%
China National Chengdu AVIC

Raise Real Estate

—  Company Limited

(“Chengdu Raise”)
60%

China National Aero-
Technology Trade and
1 Economic Development
Company Limited (“TED

Company”) 97.5%

Wuxi AVIC
Raise Real Estate
—  Company Limited
(“Wuxi Raise”)

40%

AVIC International

Renewable Energy

—1 Development Co., Ltd.

(“RED Company”)
60%

China National Aero-
Technology International
— Engineering Company
Limited (“Engineering

Company”) 100%

Guangdong
International Building
~ Industrial Co., Ltd.
(“GIB Company”)

75%

Shennan Circuit

AVIC Real Estate

“ ” Company Limited
B (“AVIC Real Estate’)
9% 22.35%
Shenzhen Aero- . ?VICI Ve
Fasteners MFG Co., L gs;‘a;ni imaitne de
Ltd. (“AFM Company”) I A\E)IC \%anke”)
100%
60%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The consolidated revenue and profit contributions of the Company in its consolidated results for the year 2012
were primarily derived from the following business sections and subsidiaries:

Business sections

Percentage of
equity interests
held by

Name of subsidiaries the Company

Principal activities

High-tech Electronic
Products

Retails and High-end
Consumer Products

Real Estate and Hotel

Tianma Micro-electronics 45.62%

Co., Ltd. (“Tianma”)

Shennan Circuit Co., Ltd. 93%

(“SCC”)

Shenzhen Aero-Fasteners 100%
MFG Co., Ltd. (“AFM
Company”)

Fiyta Holdings Limited 41.49%

(“Fiyta”)

Beijing AVIC Ruixin 90%
Investment and

Management Company

Limited

(“Beijing Ruixin”)

Chengdu AVIC Raise Real 60%
Estate Company Limited
(“Chengdu Raise”)

Xi'an AVIC Raise Xikong 51%
Real Estate Company
Limited
(“Xi’an Raise”)

China National Aero- 100%

Technology International

Engineering Company

Limited (“Engineering

Company”)
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Manufacture and sales of liquid
crystal displays and modules
(IKLCD!!)

Manufacture and sales of printed
circuit boards and packaging
substrate (“PCB”)

Manufacture and sales of high
intensity bolts, precision screws
and screw nuts, irregular parts

Manufacture of middle to high-
end wrist watches and chain
store sales of luxury watches

Mainly engages in residential
premises business, while also
operating industrial property
development

Mainly engages in residential
premises business, while also
operating industrial property
development

Mainly engages in residential
premises business, while also
operating industrial property
development

Mainly engages in international
engineering general contracting
construction, which also
engages in overseas property
development and domestic
construction engineering
general contracting



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Business sections Name of subsidiaries

Percentage of
equity interests
held by

the Company

Principal activities

Guangdong International
Building Industrial Co.,
Ltd.

(“GIB Company”)

Trading and Logistics China National Aero-
Technology Beijing
Company Limited
(“Beijing Company”)

China National Aero-
Technology Guangzhou
Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Company”)

China National Aero-
Technology
Xiamen Company
Limited
(“Xiamen Company”)

China National Aero-
Technology Trade and
Economic Development
Company Limited (“TED
Company”)

Resources Investment Shenzhen AVIC Resources

and Development Co., Ltd.
(“Resource Company”)

TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SECTIONS

75%

100%

100%

100%

97.5%

100%

Hotel operation

Trading and logistics of shipping,
cement engineering, machinery
vehicles and electric power
facilities, etc.

Trading and logistics of machinery
vehicles, bitumen and medical
facilities

Trading and logistics of shipping,
stone materials

Tendering agency, information
application service

Investment and development of
agriculture-related resources
business

 High-tech Electronic Products

B Retail and High-end Consumer Products

Real Estate and Hotel

B Trading and Logistics

B Resources Investment and Development
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Summary of Performance

The Group recorded a consolidated revenue from continuing operations of approximately RMB31,252,572,000,
representing an increase of approximately 12% over the previous year of approximately RMB27,817,178,000
(restated, same below). The profit attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB969,839,000,
representing an increase of approximately 44% over the previous year of approximately RMB674,556,000.

In 2012, amid the gloomy global market, and facing severe challenges in the external macro-economic situation,
during the reporting period, the Group has affirmed its strategy of “Supremacy ® Surpass”, maintained its leading
position in the industry, stressed on its yearly strategic theme of “Enhancing Efficiency”, “Adjusting Structure”
and “Bolstering Capacity”, promoted sustainable and rapid development of various businesses. Moreover, it
accelerated the transformation and upgrade on market, customer and product structural adjustment of core
business. Meanwhile, it focused on core competitiveness of business, enhanced business model innovation,
enhancement of internal capability, value creation capability and operational risk control capability, so as to increase
overall operation result. It also intensified its management innovation, optimized major business procedures and
procedures management, accelerated the inventory and trade receivable turnover, achieved satisfactory result
on strategic cost management, so as to enhance the efficiency of operation, asset and organization. It kept
improving the corporation governance, strengthened leadership of core management team and human resources
development, promoted humanity management and intensified cooperate cultural system reform, resulting in a
satisfactory performance on the target tasks.

During the reporting period, the Company completed a very substantial acquisition and connected transaction
— issuance of domestic shares and perpetual subordinated convertible securities (PSCS), in which assets and
businesses of 12 companies held by the controlling shareholders, AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and
connected companies were injected into the Company. As such, the business scope of the Group expanded to five
business sections: high-tech electronic products, retails and high-end consumer products, real estate and hotel,
trading and logistics, and resources investment and development.

During the year, the performance of major businesses of the Group were satisfactory, and competitiveness of each
major business was further strengthened. Regarding the high-technology electronics products section, progresses
have been made in the product structural adjustment of liquid crystal displays LCD business; technology in
packaging substrate of PCB business achieved breakthrough, mass production and rapid growth, creating the
first record in domestic industry. Regarding the watch business in retails and high-end customer product section,
dual major principles of product brand and channel brand have been adhered, leading to stable growth in business
revenue. Regarding the construction contracting business in real estate and hotel section, dozens of international
construction “Engineer, Procure, Construct” (“EPC”) project were successfully obtained, all the projects under
construction were undergoing smoothly, in which GIB Company Hotel started normal operation. Regarding the
trading and logistics section, businesses in mechanical and electrical engineering with rapid development and
good social efficiency and economic effectiveness achieved success. Regarding the resources investment and
development section, phosphate fertilizer and chemical fertilizers focus on enhancement of technology and
production capacity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products

The Group engages in Research and Development (R&D), design, production, sales and service of liquid crystal
displays (LCD) and PCB products mainly through its subsidiaries, such as Tianma and SCC. In 2012, due to the
impacts from on-going depression in global economy and slowdown in domestic economy, the Group’s revenue
from high-tech electronic products section was approximately RMB6,779,206,000, down by approximately 0.5%
over RMB6,812,696,000 for the previous year. The profit was approximately RMB337,638,000 representing a
decrease of approximately 18% over the profit of approximately RMB412,054,000 for the same period of last year.

1. LCD

The LCD products comprise liquid crystal displays (LCD) and liquid crystal modules (LCM), which are mainly
used in communication terminal and professional displays. The demand of global liquid crystal panel was
under depressed growth and excessive capacity still remained in the industry in 2012. Although small-to-
middle size panel market kept a relatively high growth rate driven by smart phones, tablet computers and
professional display products, manufacturers of large size panel shifted the Large-size Thin Film Transistor
LCD (TFT-LCD) production lines to the small-to-middle size panel market, resulted in supply exceed demand
in small-to-middle size panel market. At the same time, various panel manufacturers implemented new
technology and accelerated technology upgrading, all leading to increasingly profitability squeezed in the
whole panel market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products (continued)

1.

LCD (continued)

Facing severe market environment, the LCD business of the Group proactively adapted to market demand,
transformed product strategies and adjusted business structure and increase operational efficiency. It
strengthened smart phones and professional display products, shrank the scale of its function phone
products and digital products with lower profit margin potential. By means of co-operating with domestic
manufacturers, it realized that certain core raw materials can be made in China as well as reduced procuring
cost and shortened the delivery terms. In addition, it intensified its major customer sales strategy and further
developed major overseas customers, seized opportunities of development in domestic smart phones, as a
result, the layout of domestic major customers was mainly completed and customer structure was further
optimized. Regarding the technology development, it aimed at technological advancement. With vertical
integrated management, it accelerated R&D on new technology and speed of application, realizing the
Super-Fine TFT new technology mass production and becoming a new growth point in profit contribution,
moreover, new frontier technology R&D such as AM-OLED, 3D also achieved gradual achievement.
During the reporting period, the Group was entrusted to manage Shanghai AVIC Opto-electronics Limited
(“Shanghai AVIC Opto-electronics”), Shenzhen AVIC Opto-electronics Limited (“Shenzhen AVIC Opto-
electronics”), Xiamen Tian Ma Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Tian Ma”), not only increased its
management income, but also further consolidated the foundation of business synergic effects.

PCB

PCB products comprise middle to high end multi-layer PCB products and packaging substrate, which are
mainly used in high technology fields such as telecommunication, aeronautics and astronautics, medical
services, automobile and industrial control. In 2012, electronics supply chain in the world lacked growth
momentum, demands of PCB industry were weak and demands for communication equipment fields in core
market were sluggish.

90
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

High-tech Electronic Products (continued)

2. PCB (continued)
Facing the challenges, the PCB business of the Group will identify and capture market opportunity
to enhance itself to a strategic level. Through identification of target products and target customers,
it formulated and implemented the special action plans to capture market opportunities. Moreover, it
enhanced technological marketing model and strength, while maintained the orders from domestic clients,
the sales from Europe and America increased by 34% even in the depressed environment. Overall speaking,
the revenue from PCB product slightly increased, and revenue and profits of packaging substrate products
both recorded significant growth. In the meanwhile, it affirmed to effectiveness and efficiency enhancement
and procurement cost reduction by means of strategic co-operation and promoting Vendor Management
Inventory (“VMI”) model, carried out the most optimized cost design in an innovative method to optimize
procedures and shorten business cycle, intensified supply chain management and quality control, resulted
in a year-on-year growth of over 25% in profit. It also achieved new breakthrough in technological R&D and
industrial upgrade, “multi-function PCB for telecommunication” and “high-density packaging substrate”, for
instance, have passed the identification as technological achievements. Moreover, during the year, SCC was
awarded as “Excellent Enterprise in Intellectual Property Right of Guangdong Province” (B & &% EEE S
%) and was certified as “Model Enterprise of Technology Innovation” (B2 £:1l7 &1l 57 7R #5.1 2£) by Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology and Ministry of Finance jointly, being the only company passed the
certification in Shenzhen for this batch, representing an enhancement in the leading position of the industry.

In September 2012, the Company entered into investment agreement with SCC, pursuant to which the
parties jointly established Wuxi Shennan Circuit Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Shennan”), which will principally engage
in R&D, manufacturing and sales of the technologies and products such as high-end PCB, packaging
substrates, electronics assembly. Wuxi Shennan completed registration during the year, but construction
has not yet started.

Retails and High-end Consumer Products

The retails and high-end consumer products section of the Group engages in the brand operation of middle to
high-end watches and chain sales of prestigious watches around the world through its subsidiary, Fiyta, mainly
including R&D, design, manufacturing and sales of watches under its owned brand name and by chain sales
operation of prestigious watches. In 2012, the turnover of the retails and high-end consumer products section of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,987,857,000, representing a growth of approximately 18% when
compared with RMB2,537,539,000 of the previous year. The profit amounted to approximately RMB140,324,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 1% when compared with the previous year.

During the year of 2012, affected by adverse impacts from depressed global economy and slow domestic
economy, consumer confidence and consumption capacity as well as the retails and high-end consumer products
industry declined. Under such harsh market environment, the retails and high-end consumer products business of
the Group has persisted on the brand strategy, proactively advanced its strategic layout of complete value chain,
further optimized business model of channels brand together with branded products, furthermore, it enhanced its
key business procedures, achieving a new height in revenue. However, the growth of sales slowed down, together
with greater efforts devoted to preliminary network expansion, resulted in more growth in operation cost and
financial expense in Harmony prestigious watches business, leading to overall profit declined accordingly when
compared with the previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retails and High-end Consumer Products (continued)

During the year of 2012, the “FIYTA” brand adhered to brand value enhancement and brand essential of “4P+C”,
injected more elements of “fashion” and “youth”, strengthened the interactive experience between brand and
customers, leading to steady increase in sales. Fabulous exhibition in Basel International Watch and Jewellery Fair
and Milan Fashion Week for the second time, advertisement in New York Time Square, as well as accomplishment
of the first Chinese female astronaut successfully travelled in space with the space watch “Shenzhou IX” all proved
that the brand marketing of FIYTA is effective, and its brand value was greatly enhanced domestically and overseas.
While exploring its new business models, the e-commercial business also gained rapid development, with scale
doubled and became a new growth point to profit. Meanwhile, it further explored its domestic and overseas sales
channels, and marched into Taiwan market, marking the channel construction gain stable advancement. During
the year of 2012, FIYTA was awarded “Asia Top 500 Brands” “ Technological Innovation Award in Light Industry of
China” (FFE1& T 2% A1%128) and “Top 10 Innovative Company in Industrial Design of China of the Year” (FFfE
BY T 3255t 1ERIFET 1), moreover, its product named “Four-leaf Clover (P E)” for female and a series product
named “Photographer (#&&EM)” was granted the “Red Star Award of Chinese Innovative Design” (42 Bl £l 3% 51 4L
2 17).

During the year of 2012, Harmony, a prestigious watch chain brand belong to Fiyta focused on BSC? construction,
intensified its implementation on the concept of “three-step marketing”, by means of theme sales and holiday
campaign, it achieved scaled growth that was higher than average industry level, further strengthened leading
position in industry and market share. It expanded and optimized sales points and improve shopping environment
for customers. However, its growth in sales slowed down and inventory turnover showed decline while the fixed
cost kept increasing, all resulted in year-on-year decline in annual profit.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Real Estate and Hotel

1.

Real Estate Development

The Group engages in real estate development through its subsidiaries Chengdu Raise, Wuxi Raise, Xi’an
Raise and Beijing Ruixin, in engineering contracting business through its subsidiary Engineering Company,
and in hotel operation management through its subsidiary GIB Company. During the year of 2012, the real
estate and hotel business section of the Group recorded turnover of approximately RMB2,769,814,000
representing an increase of approximately 37% as compared with RMB2,024,047,000 in the previous
year. The profit was approximately RMB114,954,000, while last year it recorded loss of RMB100,978,000.
In addition, the Group achieved investment gain from associate, AVIC Real Estate of approximately
RMB92,625,000.

With the slowdown in urbanization process in China and fading in the bonus impacts from population
increase and globalization, the growth of real estate faced deceleration. In 2012, the Chinese government
continued to implement its macro adjustment and control on real estate industry by means of limiting the
purchase and loan lending, stringently controlled investment and speculative property purchase, resulted
in the decline in growth rate of domestic real estate industry, which was lower than the past two years,
leading the development into rational stage. The domestic real estate industry showed its trend of growing
after declining. Since the end of the first season, it has picked up from bottom till achieved the peak in the
second season, while appeared downwards in the third season and started to climb up again in the fourth
season. During such fluctuation, the growth rate of residential property sales slowed down, while investment
on commercial property kept climbing up.

The real estate development business of the Group mainly focused on third and fourth tier cities. Currently,
the projects under development include: Aviation Technology Commercial Park (i@ EEE),
Shunyi Aviation Industry Park auxiliary services project (B2 fin % & 2B R ER#57E H) and Tongling Zhongkai
Property project ($ffEH gl E2IEH) in Beijing suburbs and its surrounding areas; “AVIC e International
Communication Center (i ® B mA L))" in Chengdu; Hancheng No.1 (£#=5%) in Xi’an and
innovation project of shanty towns on No. 18 of Fuli District by Xi’an Raise.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Real Estate and Hotel (continued)

2.

Engineering Contracting

The engineering contracting business of the Group mainly comprises international construction project
general contracting, gradually expanded to overseas real estate development and domestic construction
general project contracting. In 2012, investment and financing of international construction projects
encountered difficulties and the market showed shrank due to the global financial crisis.

Faced with harsh challenges in domestically and overseas constructing projects market, the Group
strengthened its development on overseas construction projects in key markets such as South Asia, East
Africa and Middle East, and at the same time explored domestic construction market, which both achieved
progresses. During the year, it newly entered into contracts for 30 overseas construction projects, with
total contract value amounted to RMB7,200,000,000. The new projects covered around The United Arab
Emirates, Kenya, Sri Lanka and Algeria. The international projects such as south-to-north highway project
in Sri Lanka and the Twin Towers project in Abu Dhabi, The United Arab Emirates underwent well. With
excellent project quality and good schedule control, the Group’s overseas projects gained compliment and
good reputation in those countries.

Hotel Operation

In 2012, GIB Company, a subsidiary of the Group which engages in hotel operation, welcomed its complete
operation year on hotel operation after back on track and significantly improved the operating loss from last
year.

Trading and Logistics

The Group engages in ship engineering, electrical engineering, tendering agency and information application
through its subsidiaries, namely Beijing Company, Guangzhou Company, Xiamen Company, RED Company
and TED Company. In 2012, the Group’s turnover from trading and logistics section was approximately
RMB17,656,704,000, increased by approximately 15% over RMB15,298,425,000 for the previous year. The
profit was approximately RMB500,489,000, representing an increase of approximately 87% over the profit of
approximately RMB267,764,000 for the previous year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading and Logistics (continued)

1.

Ship Engineering

During the year of 2012, affected by global depressed economy and slow down of China’s economy, the
growth rate of export and import trading significantly declined, resulted in increasing competition in logistic
market. The ship engineering business of the Group pursued a development idea of “differentiation on
business model, serialization on shipping product and perfection on operation management”. It leveraged
AVIC International Investments Limited (a company listed on main board of Singapore Stock Exchange,
stock code: O2I, the “AVIC International Investment”), one of subsidiaries of Beijing Company, a subsidiary of
the Group as integrated and operation platform, engaged in design, manufacturing, trading and investment
of shipping. It also took advantage of AVIC Weihai Shipyard Co., Ltd (“Weihai Shipyard”), a subsidiary of the
Group and Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Limited (“Taizhou AVIC”), an associate of the Group
as shipping manufacturing base, building an annual manufacturing capacity of 2 million tonnes of loading
capacity, ship types covering bulk cargo ships, container ships, oil tanker and multi-function vessels.

During the reporting period, faced with difficult time in international shipping market with depression,
sluggish demand of new built ship and low price, the ship engineering business of the Group devoted to
promoting its excellent operation and strived for an integrated value chain business model with design,
manufacturing, trading and finance. During the year, it realized delivery of 32 ships, of which 13 were built
and delivered by Weihai Shipyard and 19 were by way of commission processing and trading. It established
its own shipping brand “Navis”, remarking a fulfillment of world-class R&D and design capability in ship
engineering.

BOAT
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading and Logistics (continued)

2.

Machinery and Electrical Engineering

The machinery and electrical engineering business of the Group mainly comprises cement EPC, export of
machinery vehicle, medical equipment and service and so on. During the reporting period, the Group fully
implemented strategic cooperation with Germany Humboldt Cement Equipment Company ({Z B2k
JEE N A]), developed overseas cement EPC market, jointly conducted project construction, resulted in
obtaining 7 cement EPC projects in countries such as Malaysia and Venezuela, with gross contract value
amounted to more than USD 1 billion. The business of export of machinery vehicle explored development
model of industrialization and large-scale, gained achievements in Southeast Asia, Africa and South America
and entered into an export project agreement with Myanmar government on production line of axle in
Myanmar, total contract value amounted to USD 100 million, which is the largest government loan project
between China and Myanmar in recent years. Medical equipment and service mainly comprises of combined
mobile hospital. The mobile hospital in Zambia underwent smoothly during the year, total conducted 135
times of call-out services, 230,000 times of clinical reception and over 13,000 times of surgeries, not
only achieved business success, but also made contribution in improving the local medical condition and
received compliments from Zambian government and peoples. Other engineering and trading projects
including renewable energy equipments underwent well during the same period.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading and Logistics (continued)

3.

Tendering Agency and Information Application Service

The trading and logistics section of the Group also engages in tendering agency and information applicaiton
service. The tendering agency comprises three types, being cargo, engineering and service tendering. It
owns four Grade A qualification of “international tendering, engineering tendering, government procurement
and projects invested by central government”. It was awarded as “Top 10 Tendering Agency with Most
Influences in China” (Rl A ZE )+ ARIEARIB#EE), and accomplished various contract tenderings
with total value amounted to RMB15,000,000,000. The information application service mainly engages in
consultation and service on enterprises informatization, computer system integration and application of
internet of things. Both business scales and profit achieved continuous rapid increase and doubled growth
during the year.

During the reporting period, the bulk commodities projects such as bitumen engineering and stone materials
trading underwent smoothly.

Resources Investment and Development

The Group engages in investment and development on agricultural-related resources businesses through Resource
Company, committed to build up core competitiveness that based on resources occupation, extended and
covered to fertilizer industry chain and focused on resources and terminal agricultural & chemical technological
service. In 2012, resources investment and development business of the Group recorded turnover of approximately
RMB1,058,991,000, representing slightly decrease as compared with RMB1,096,776,000 in the previous year. Due
to a sluggish market demand and price decline, it recorded a loss of RMB50,206,000.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Resources Investment and Development (continued)

In 2012, price of bulk commodities in global kept declining and price of fertilizer also maintained at a low level.
While the domestic potassium fertilizer industry was still stepping into a stage of de-stocking, phosphate fertilizers
and compound fertilizer encountered over-excessive production capacity and underproduction.

Faced with depressed market and harsh competition, the resources investment and development business of the
Group promoted its development affirmed with Aiming Target, Saving Costs, Refining Operation and Enhancing
Efficiency. Qinghai potassium fertilizer business underwent internal capability improvement and focused on the
production pace adjustment, implemented and optimized its plans of water-soluble sylvine exploitation, steadily
implement pressure brine projects and saltern technique improvement. Besides, it obtained special funding subsidy
from Qinghai Province Government by means of integration utilization of resources and technological innovation.
Beijing agrochemical products accomplished its research and development, trial production, commission mass
production and sales on new phosphate fertilizers and synergist, realized sales of new phosphate fertilizers
amounted to 53,000 tonnes. Kunming Bailongtan Phosphate Mine achieved annual mass scaled exploitation of
phosphorous ore of 410,000 tonnes. Hongfu Daaozi Phosphate Mine located in Dongchuan district, Kunming
proactively carried out requisition of mining land and prepared for mass exploitation of next year, and the
monoammonium phosphate production line was completed as expected and commenced trial production
and technique adjustment. During the reporting period, Qinghai AVIC Resources Company Limited (“Qinghai
Resources”) was granted as “Excellent Mining Company of Conservation on Mining Resources and Integrated
Utilization” (fEZE BIRETAIERER A MR FRESFBEILEF).

During the reporting period, Resources Company prepaid the full amount to acquire 70% equity of Shandong
Luyuan Mining Investment Co., Ltd (LR &/RIEZEZEFR2AF]), in order to indirectly control the potassium ore
mine in north of Pointe Noire of Congo in Africa GEINRIER (7)) 2 ATt BEE MR EAME). After completing this
acquisition, potassium mine reserve of the Group was increased.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

2012 2011

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

Restated

Total borrowings 16,661,917 14,498,064
Total liabilities 28,523,352 26,139,276
Non-controlling interests 3,989,079 4,078,716
Equity of owners of the Company 7,572,614 6,638,777
Total assets 40,085,045 36,856,769
Loan-to-equity ratio 144.11% 135.27%
Debt-to-equity ratio 246.71% 243.89%

Loan-to-equity ratio = total loans at the year end over shareholders’ equity at the year end
Debt-to-equity ratio = total liabilities at the year end over shareholders’ equity at the year end

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB4,038,225,000 (2011: RMB3,249,891,000), mainly derived from the following sources:

o Cash and bank deposits at the beginning of the year;

o Bank borrowings, borrowings from related parties and borrowings from third parties; and

° Revenue from operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Capital Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the total borrowings of the Group amounted to approximately RMB16,661,917,000
(2011: RMB14,498,064,000) with an annual interest rates from 1.26% to 12.5% (2011: 0.49% to 12%). Total
borrowings comprised borrowings of RMB14,606,556,000 (2011: RMB13,167,680,000), borrowings included in
other non-current liabilities of RMB1,190,000,000 (2011: RMB140,000,000) and borrowings included in trade and
other payables of RMB865,351,000 (2011: RMB1,190,384,000).

Capital expenditure of the Group for 2012 amounted to approximately RMB1,421,774,000, of which approximately
RMB495,000,000 was applied to SCC No. 8 Building investment project; approximately RMB100,000,000 was
applied to the breakwater construction of Weihai Shipyard; approximately RMB79,000,000 was applied to metallic
silicon project of Qinghai Resources; approximately RMB53,000,000 was applied to reformation of 4.5 generation
line TFT equipment and production line of Shanghai Tianma Micro-electronics Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Tianma”);
approximately RMB50,000,000 was applied to Heng Yang Factory Project of AFM Company; approximately
RMB34,620,000 was applied to purchase of construction equipment for their contract engineering projects by
Engineering Company; approximately RMB20,000,000 was applied to construction and maintenance project on
bitumen base of AVIC Lutong Company Limited (“Lu Tong Company”); approximately RMB14,700,000 was applied
to office building project in exhibition of Xiamen Company; approximately RMB575,454,000 was invested to
upgrading equipment.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2013, the global environment is full of fluctuation and uncertainties. During the course of seeking
for new balance, market demands from domestic and overseas will be sluggish. The bonuses from globalization,
population and land factors revaluation are fading in China, while at the same time, the economy growth is
experiencing structural deceleration. The development of the industry will face the pressures from increased cost
of key production factors, decline of investment return and excessive production capacity, all of which recall an
urge for transformation and upgrade. The fluctuation of economy and changes of environment are increasingly
harsher, therefore, this year will be a year for structural adjustment and transformation, with a process of seeking
stable growth, structural adjustment and new balance. However, since the end of 2012, the domestic economy
gradually showed a stable trend, the government policy turned to focus on improvement of quality and efficiency
of economic growth, while globally speaking, China is still in a position of historical opportunities with urbanization,
internationalization and informationization and will encounter challenges and opportunities at the same time.

To accommodate the complicated macro-economic situation and industry environment both globally and
domestically, the Group will affirm its strategy of “Supremacy e Surpass” and yearly theme of “Implementation,
Efficiency and Effectiveness”, maintain its leading position in the industry to promote a continuous and rapid growth
of the business of the Group while at the same time accelerate strategic transformation. It will continue to focus on
transformation and professional integration of key businesses: high-tech electronic products section will continue
to promote structural adjustment and transformation upgrade; retails and high-end consumer products will keep
optimizing the business models and management structure; real estate and hotel section will ensure the sales
and pace of key real estate projects; transformation of traditional trading and logistics business will fully carry out
reformation and innovation; Resources investment and development section will devote to enhance the operation
and management efficiency. It will fully leverage on co-ordination of profit management, strengthen strategic cost
management, broaden financing channels and optimize the financing structure. It will also accelerate the turnover of
trade receivable and inventory, continue to enhance assets efficiency and strictly control operation risks. Besides, it
will firmly implement all foundation works, optimize organization structure and system procedures, improve internal
control system, strengthen standardized operation and management that focused on human, so as to enhance its
excellent operation capacity, increase structure and staff efficiency.

After received the approval from the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council stating its consent in principle on the Group’s very substantial acquisition of issuance of Perpetual
Subordinated Convertible Securities (“PSCS”) in 2012, the Group will fully advance to complete another very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction issuing PSCS in 2013 (please refer to Report of the Directors
“SIGNIFICANT EVENTS” for details), in which assets and businesses of several companies held by the controlling
shareholders, AVIC International and AVIC Shenzhen will be injected into the Company. Subject to full completion
of the transaction, the Group’s business will be further enlarged, foundation in the trading and logistics and retails
industries will be enhanced and consolidated, so as to ensure stable and healthy development of the Group as a
whole.

High-tech Electronic Products

Looking forward to 2013, the world will be still full of complexity and uncertainty, while at the same time, domestic
economy is experiencing structural slowdown and external demands for electronic high technology products will
still remain sluggish, leading to fierce competition in industry and challenges arising from increase in fixed cost.
Structural adjustment, industrial upgrade and integration will be further promoted to a larger extent.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)
High-tech Electronic Products (continued)

1.

102

LCD

It is expected that the annual demand for liquid crystal panel in 2013 will only increase by approximately 4%
compared to same period of last year. Among the segment market, demands in smart phones and tablet
computers market will have rapid growth, while digital and professional display market also shows a sign
of slight increase, on the contrast, market segments such as featured phones and audio video will decline.
The LCD business of the Group will continue to implement strategy of major customer, focus on smart
phones and professional display and carry forward adjustment on products and customer structure. It will
strengthen market demands research and formulate strategic product plans, so as to strive for improving
a marketing model that is applicable to development target and demands of customers, moreover, so as
to enlarge product coverage in major customers and penetration in target market. It will combine strategic
product planning with technology R&D and innovation, establish a reserve mechanism for prospective new
technology, build up internal operation mechanism for a platform that could conduct mass production of
standard in the medium term and a platform that could conduct mass transfer technology in the long term. It
will keep on promoting integration works, enhance its excellent operation management and implementation
capability as well as intensively optimize supply chain management system. At the same time, it will reinforce
its product life cycle management and cost planning management, so as to enhance operation efficiency
and effectiveness comprehensively.

PCB
It is expected that driven by the growth of global 4G construction and smart mobile terminal, the global PCB
industry in 2013 is ready to turnaround the negative growth of 2012, with value slightly increase by around
3%.

The PCB business of the Group will continue to implement its existing “3-IN-ONE” strategy, highlight the
enhancement of efficiency and effectiveness during operation, and work on the theme of the year, being
“Grasping Opportunities, Bolstering Capacity and Enhancing Efficiency”. That means that the PCB business
will firmly grasp the acceleration development in global and domestic TD-LTE construction, strive for
maintaining the core of its segment market share and proactively explore non-communication market to
maintain existing customers and achieve stable order contribution. At the same time, it will strengthen its
technological capability on highly sophisticated products and increase the adhesion of customer to it as well
as enhance its advantage in technology. The packaging substrates business will realize product upgrade,
make breakthrough on processing techniques of high-end products such as of BGA/CSP substrates, as
well as improve its processing ability on manufacturing fine film so as to support sales expansion of existing
customers. The electronics assembly business will focus on data communication and medical industry,
enhance key technical capacity on target areas and improve development and management ability on
supply chain of target areas, meanwhile, it will continue to adjust product structure, intensify strategic cost
management and shorten its business cycle, keep on enhancing profitability and asset efficiency.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

Retails and High-end Consumer Products

It is expected that the global economy will still give pressure to the overall growth of watch and clock industry in
2013, and the custumer confidence in China will remain weak. The positive side is that the high-end consumer
products market is becoming mature while the domestic economy stays at a relatively high growth rate with
consumption level increasing, bringing opportunities as well as challenges to the retails and high-end consumer
products section of the Group.

In 2018, the retails and high-end consumer products of the Group will continue to adhere to its brand development
strategy. Based on self-own watches brand and Harmony prestigious watches retails as development main line
to keep improving its brand influences. Besides, by means of “product + channel” commercial models, it will
focus on effectiveness and efficiency, enhance its professional operation ability on the brands, increase inventory
management and asset turnover, proactively improve efficiency on retail channels as well as profitability on self-own
watch brand and retails brands. At the same time, it will integrate internal resources to achieve information sharing,
business support and synergistic effects, striving to realize the efficiency growth will be higher than the scale
growth. It will further consolidate its foundation management, improve working standard, capability for all staff and
achieve breakthrough in result.

The self-own watches brand will keep focus on brand, reinforce two foundation stones, being product and
marketing, proactively adapt to the market changes. Based on the demands from customer and competition
in the market, it will place emphasis on the differentiation and serialization of products, more reasonable price
arrangement and continuous quality enhancement. It will optimize its existing retails channels, accelerate to
development new sales points and terminal management, so as to improve the output of sales points. It will
strengthen watch design, capability building on core technology such as new materials and new technologies.
Harmony prestigious watches retails will concentrate on enhance the brand reputation and influences of Harmony,
keep intensifying its implementation on the concept of “three-step marketing”. It will enhance its operation
capability, speed up inventory turnover and reduce occupancy of the capital, at the same time, it will reinforce its
cost control, shorten cultivation circle of new store and improve output efficiency and profitability. The expansion
on retail network will adhere to the principle of prudent investment, keep on optimization on channels and strive for
expansion of efficiency.

Real Estate and Hotel

1. Real Estate Development
Looking forward to 2013, against the background of steadily increase domestic economy, sound and
health fiscal policy and stringent adjustment and control on the real estate industry, it is estimated that
the domestic real estate industry will experience an overall high-to-low trend. The pressure of supply and
demands will gradually fade in the second half year of 2013, among which, growth rate and property prices
of major cities will be higher than other cities. Generally speaking, the real estate companies in 2013 is still
in the period of de-stocking, challenges from separation and pressure on growth in the domestic real estate
industry remains, while in long term, it will still have development opportunities in urbanization. The real estate
development business of the Group will focus on scale increment and efficiency enhancement, optimize
control system, enhance operation ability, quality and service awareness, so as to forge product brand.
It will capture opportunities and adopt measures to achieve sales, accelerate recovery of sales amounts
and forward-carry, in the meantime, it will integrate internal and external resources, based on existing
projects and influence the surrounding regions. By means of project co-operation and public bidding, it will
proactively seek for new projects and achieve targets of project expansion.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)
Real Estate and Hotel (continued)

2.

Construction Contracting

[t is expected that in 2013, the scale of international construction contracting market will experience a
recovery growth, particularly in rapid economy development and outstanding performance of construction
in most of emerging economic entities. Demands for construction engineering contracting project and
real estate development in key regions market such as Africa, Middle East and Southeast Asia will remain
relatively strong. Domestic construction engineering contractors have competitive strength in Africa and
Asia-Pacific regions, therefore, its potential for development is full of expectation.

In 2013, the engineering contracting of the Group will commit to the target of “becoming a first-class
international engineering contractor in international market”, continue to aggressively promote strategic
transformation and brand building, be creative in business and profit model, intensify its operation
management and profit management. It will proactively develop region market and business layout, based
on international construction engineering general contracting as core, and setting Middle East, Africa,
South Asia and Southeast Asia as region centers. It will highlight major business country and specialize the
business types, actively explore international construction engineering general contracting projects, and
through intensively integrating the competitive resource in overall industrial chain to develop overseas real
estate development and domestic construction engineering projects. It will base on large-scale projects,
intensify project management and risk control, place emphasis on the arrangement and construction of
several large-scale committed projects such as highway in Sri Lanka, cement plant in Rwanda, new airport
in Kenya and hangar in Ethiopia as well as some property projects such as Tanzanite 4200 project.

Trading and Logistics

1.

104

Ship Engineering

In 2013, it is expected that the overall shipping industry still faces difficulties to find a way out of gloom
situation due to the depressed global economy and uncertainties. The ship engineering business of
the Group will focus on the enhancement of efficiency and effectiveness, proactively explore new and
innovative operation models for ship engineering business. It will promote professional integration, industrial
development and capitalized operation so as to achieve industry integration. It will intensify its development
in key vessel types market, strive to develop procurement market of special vessels both from domestic and
overseas, ocean engineering products and governmental shipping procurement. It will promote upgrade on
technology and products, adjust product structure and develop key technological products, explore high
value-added and energy-saving vessels market. It will continue to promote excellent operation, carry out
comprehensive quality management, while at the same time, fine-tine its procedures, so as to achieve cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading and Logistics (continued)

2. Machinery Electrical Engineering
It is expected that in 2013, the world cement EPC and mechanical vehicle market will experience stable
growth, particularly in emerging economic entities and developing countries with solid economic foundation,
therefore, the expansion of this market, in relation to the continuous market growth in government
procurement which is related to the national infrastructure will be relatively rapid. The mechanical and
electrical engineering business of the Group will enforce its strategic co-operation with Germany Humboldt
Cement Equipment Company, enhance its capability on design and cement electrical engineering EPC. It
will highlight its competitive strength in differentiation, focus on exploration the market of South America and
Southeast Asia, develop government projects and matured EPC projects, as well as proactively carry out
EP projects. In terms of export of mechanical vehicle, it will increase its operation scales and profitability,
achieve satisfactory performance in the products sales and project implementation in Kenya, Peru and
Myanmar. It will reinforce the development of new market, build up a business model that making AVIC
light electronic vehicle to be internationalized with light assets, and proactively expand its income sources.
In terms of medical equipment and service, it will proactively explore overseas new market and seek for
external supports, realize contract signing and delivery of mobile hospital project in new market. Moreover, it
will extend its after-sales service, supplies of spare parts and consumable materials.

3. Tending Agency and Information Application Services
In 2013, the tendering agency business of the Group will further consolidated its “main channel” position in
the system, reinforce construction within the region, focus on developing and exploring key region market.
The information application service will focus on the connection and integration among connected business,
enhance development on new areas such as application of internet of things.

|,,

Resources Investment and Development

Looking forward to 2013, impacted by global economic situation and adjustment slow down of domestic economy,
it is expected the demands for bulk commodities market will keep gloom. The potassium fertilizer will keep on de-
stocking, phosphate fertilizers industry still face the problem of over-excessive production capacity, compound
fertilizer industry will keep undergoing the industry integration. In short term, the overall prices of potassium
fertilizer, phosphate fertilizers and compound fertilizer are lingering at a low level. In long term, the planting of
domestic agricultural products are more scaled, integrated, customized, high-ended agricultural products and one-
stop technological service market are full of development potential. Due to the rarity of resources, with increase of
cost and resources tax, price of phosphate fertilizers will be steadily increasing.

Facing the difficult environment, the resources investment and development section of the Group will affirm to
its yearly theme “Bolstering Capacity, Saving Cost, Intensifying Operation and Enhancing Efficiency”, focus on
efficiency and effectiveness to enhance overall operation capacity. It will enhance technological R&D and production
capability of key products that are adaptable to the demands of market, expand existing sales network and
channels, optimize sales models as well as strengthen cost control.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

During 2012, the Company completed substantial acquisition in respect of equity interests of 12 companies
from controlling shareholders AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and related companies. The scale and scope of
business as well as the geographical coverage of the Company achieved rapid expansion, and so as its influence
to its staff and the society. The Group has committed to promoting fast and sustainable development, creating
values for its clients, providing opportunities to staff, offering services to aviation industry and making contribution
to the society. While maintaining its business, it also considers undertaking more corporate social responsibilities.
We strive for excellence in operation, so as to enhance efficiency and maximize returns to the society. We focus
on caring for the clients, realize win-win development with clients. Emphasising on people oriented approach, we
devote our effort to improving sense of belongings and happiness of staff, so as to achieve organic integration of
individual ideal with corporation vision for mutual development. Social responsibilities are our first priority. By means
of energy conservation and environmental protection, we promote sustainable development, and through various
staff voluntary activities and charity projects, we strengthen sense of belongings and pride of the staff to the
Company. There effort will lead to the building of a energy-saving, environmental-friendly society.

Excellent Operation

The Company aims at becoming a leading company in the industry, and has established an effective operation
structure and procedure based on strategic planning. By means of integrated application of Six Sigma, perfect
management and ISO9000, it has intensified its management innovation, enhanced efficiency and effectiveness and
proactively promoted excellent operation. Moreover, it has improved the business capability of the team and the
ability to create values, so as to realize great leap forward development.

1) Management Innovation
In March 2012, Fiyta Manufacturing Company was awarded “Excellent Company of the National Light
Industry” and “Second Prize of Management Innovation Achievement of the National Light Industry for 2011”
in the second council of third session of China Light Industry Federation and Working Conference of Light
Industry.

In October 2012, the Fourth Management Innovation Achievement Awards of Aviation Industry were
announced, in which Fiyta’s “Construction of Three-Sourced R&D System for High-end Fashion Brand
Watches”, and SCC’s “Practice and Application of Opinion Technology Model” were awarded the Second
Prizes, while SCC’s “Building and Application of High-Efficiency Incubation System for New Business in New
Market” was awarded the Third Prize.

In November 2012, Shanghai Tianma organized the first “Thousands of Millions Project” Management
Seminar for team heads, hence, the “Thousands of Millions Project” was officially launched. 30
representatives of frontline team heads from various departments of Tianma conducted active discussion
and research on the topics such as “the most urgent issue needs to be solved at the moment” and “frontline
staff management”.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Excellent Operation (continued)

2)

Technology Innovation

In March 2012, after first participation in 2011, Fiyta once
again presented its showcase at Hall One of the Basel
International Watch and Clock Fair.

In March 2012, Tianma exhibited its latest development
for the past year in leading technology such as AM-OLED,
LTPS, SFT, 3D, CTP and e-paper as will as the complete
product lines in application fields namely smart phones, tablet
computers in the FPD CHINA convened in Shanghai New
International Expo Centre.

In May 2012, Fiyta’s training watch for astronauts of “Shenzhou IX” was unveiled for the first time in
Shanghai. The ground training watch launched by Fiyta provides an exclusive timer for astronauts and it also
fits for the need of the mass market.

In June 2012, the world’s first female space watch which is adaptable to the space environment and made
with “handmade cloisonn” technique was tailored for the first female astronaut Liu Yang of China. Wearing
the innovative watch, the heroine will explore the space.

In July 2012, SCC was selected as “Intellectual Property Advantageous Enterprise of Guangdong Province
for 2012” by Intellectual Property Bureau of Guangdong Province.

In August 2012, the technological innovation work of Fiyta obtained high recognition by China Light Industry
Federation and was awarded the “Eleventh Five-Year Excellent Entity in Technological Innovation of National
Light Industry” in National Light Industry Congress of 2012.

In September 2012, Tianma was ranked as one of “Top Hundred Companies in Electronic Information of
China” of the 26th session .

In October 2012, core technology of packaging substrate of SCC was inspected and accepted by Aviation
Industry Innovation Fund Project.

In October 2012, SCC, being a manufacturing and R&D company for the major national science and
technology project — high-density IC packaging substrate and its ancillary projects, participated in the 12th
IC China 2012 with latest IC packaging substrate products, which were newly developed and under mass
production. It was also awarded the “Top Ten Growth Companies in Semi-Conductor Field”.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Excellent Operation (continued)

2) Technology Innovation (continued)
In December 2012, SCC successfully passed the inspection on 02 major projects of “development and
industrialization of manufacturing technique of high-density multi-layers packaging substrate” that carried
out by SCC. The inspection was conducted by the implementation office of national science and technology
project headed “mass scale IC manufacturing and packaging technology” (02 major projects) and general
project inspection experts.

In December 2012, the Fiyta’s self-developed watch tailored for the space environment outside the
spaceship “Shenzhou IX” was awarded excellent design award in the “China Design Exhibition”.

In December 2012, SCC was certified as “Model Enterprise of Technology Innovation”, being the only and
the third company in Shenzhen which obtained the certification in this respect.

Care For Customers
The Company strives for seeking win-win development during each co-operation and spares no effort in creating

value for stakeholders and continuously enhancing corporate value.

In August 2012, SCC and the Institute of Microelectronics of Chinese Academy of Sciences jointly established
Huajin Semi-conductor Company, targeting to master the most advanced packaging & testing technology.

In December 2012, SCC entered into a strategic cooperation agreement with Lenovo Group. It represented that
SCC had made a significant progress in electronic circuits integration solution.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Care for Employees

The Company devotes to create an environment for learning and growth for its employees with high emphasis on
co-development of both employees and the Company in order to built a trustworthy employer brand, strengthened
employees’ loyalty and enhance the sense of belongings and pride of the employees to the Company. These effort
have laid a solid foundation for the sustainable development of the Company.

In February 2012, more than 30 specialists from the Group joined the first training activity under the “Heart Building

Campaign”.

In July 2012, 69 employees who have been working for ten years were awarded Golden Medal in the 28th
anniversary of SCC. Employees’ park-visit tour, the second “Champions” competition of SCC, “Purchasing Cup”

Basketball Competition of Long Gang District were also held.

management talents.

Environmental Protection

The Company always adheres to a sustainable development strategy
that while improving the operation results, it also strives for achieving
a balance among the environment, society and humans. During
its production, R&D and manufacturing, it ranks environmental
protection as its top priority and conducts its business on such basis.

In April 2012, the result of credit rating in terms of environmental
protection among enterprises which emphasize on pollutant
discharge was published, and SCC succeeded its honour of being
the “ Enterprise with Environmental Friendly Credibility” by obtaining
a green card.

In July 2012, the Leadership Assessment Center of the Group was
officially launched. It accelerated the development of middle to senior

In December 2012, Fiyta was awarded the “Best Employer in China”
for the seventh consecutive year.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Social Charity

The Company has long been focusing on the support of providing
education to poverty-stricken areas. It accumulated rich experiences
and established assistance models for different people at different
development stages.

In February 2012, the Love and Compassion team of the Company
arrived Anyi county of Jiangxi Province to offer donation for 81
impoverished students and at the same time kickoff “one to one”
teaching activities.

In March 2012, the Company sponsored the 12th “Teaching Aid
Program” and the volunteer teachers under the Program arrived the
destination.

In November 2012, the “Shennan Cup” National Airplane Models
Compeition was successfully open. The chairman of China Aviation
Society Liu Gao Zhuo visited the competition field. Fanatics of
airplane models over the country gathered together to rival their

skills.
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Profile of Directors and
Supervisors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Guang Quan, aged 51, senior accountant, MBA of Tongji University, is now the Chief Executive Officer
of AVIC International, chairman of AVIC Shenzhen and executive director and chairman of the Company and the
chairman of Tianma, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Shenzhen Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wu
also acts as executive directors and chairman of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (“AVIC INTL”), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Wu joined in AVIC Shenzhen in
1982 and the Group in 2003. He has rich experience in finance, administration and operation management, and
has been appointed the executive director of the Company since 2003.

Mr. You Lei, aged 44, senior engineer, MBA of Tongji University, MBA of China Europe International Business
School, is now holding the positions of Vice President of AVIC International, President of AVIC Shenzhen, executive
director of the Company, Vice President of Tianma and Chairman of SCC. Mr. You acts as executive director of
AVIC INTL, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. You joined in AVIC Shenzhen in 1991 and the Group in
1997. He has rich experience in enterprise operation and administration, and has been appointed the executive
director of the Company since 2003.

Mr. Pan Lin Wu, aged 49, master of engineering in Beijing Aviation and Astronautics University (1t T 22 i R A E2).
He is now holding the positions of Vice President, chief financial officer of AVIC International and executive director
and vice-chairman of AVIC INTL, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He served as the chief accountant at
China National Aero-Technology Import and Export Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International, since 2001.
He was appointed as a director and deputy chairman of the board of directors of AVIC United States Company
(FAMEIBE =B A F]) in March 2011. Mr. Pan has many years experience in financial management, supervision and
audit, and has substantial experience in the area of finance, capital operation and risk management. He has been
appointed as holds the executive director of the Company since 2012.

Mr. Chen Hong Liang, aged 45, holds the master degree in business administration from Tong Ji University ([7]
K E2). He is currently vice president of AVIC International and vice president and AVIC Shenzhen. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in administration and human resources management. He has been appointed as executive
director of the Company since 2012.

Mr. Liu Jun, aged 51, holds the bachelor degree in engineering from Beijing Aviation College (it i ZE£F5). He
is currently the vice president of AVIC International. He joined China National Aero-Technology Import and Export
Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International, in 1989. Between 1990 and 1993, he was seconded to station
at AVIC Germany. He joined Beijing Company. He has been appointed as executive director of the Company since
2012.
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Profile of Directors and Supervisors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling, aged 52, holds the Bachelor of Arts of The University of Hong Kong and has attended the
courses of accounting and finance in LSE. Ms. Wong is the senior member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accounts, with 20-year’s experience in accounting,
tax and auditing. She has been working in international and local large accounting firms for more than seven
years, until she founded an accounting firm in Hong Kong in 1994, and has been a CPA till now. She is also the
independent non-executive director of two companies listed in Hong Kong — Galaxy Semi-Conductor Holdings
Limited and Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited. She has been appointed as the independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2008.

Mr. Wu Wei, aged 40, holds the Bachelor of Arts of Columbia University, majoring in economy and industrial
engineering. He is now the managing director of Private Equity Fund Division of CITIC Securities (HK) Limited.
He has over 14-year’s experience in enterprise investment and investment bank, and worked in Deutsche Bank
Asia, Henderson Global Investors Asian Fund and Lehman Brothers Asia Limited. He has been appointed as the
independent non-executive director of the Company since 2009.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 49, received a doctoral degree in economics from China Social Science College Graduate
School (FF Bt & RIERTATIT 4 PT). He is currently the deputy head of the China Social Science College Graduate
School of Economics (F B4t & R} £ & B R 92 ). Mr. Zhang started to work on China Social Science College
Graduate School of Economics in 1988. He once joined and organized several key topics of international co-
operation with the World Bank, Asian Development Band and International Labor Organization and social
science funds as well as national topics. He published several essays based on theory research and surveys. His
major research fields are the growth of China economy and formation of capital. He has been appointed as the
independent non-executive director of the Company since 2012.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Huang Bin, aged 59, graduated from Northwest Industrial University (Fidk T2 AX£28). He is currently the Vice
President of AVIC International. He joined the Ministry of Aviation Industry of the PRC in 1980 and was the deputy
committee secretary of the party, secretary of discipline inspection committee and chairman of labor union of China
National Aero-Technology Import and Export Corporation, the predecessor of AVIC International. He has been
appointed the supervisor of the Company since 2012.

Mr. Deng Bo Song, aged 55, senior economist, graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, is
now the party secretary and deputy general manager of Tianma. He was the deputy general manager of Shenzhen
Kaishi Industry Co., Ltd.; since May 2003, he has successively held the positions of deputy party secretary,
deputy general manager, general manager, supervisor of audit and inspection department of Tianma. He has been
appointed the supervisor of the Company since 2009.

Ms. Wang Xin, aged 61, holds master’s degree and is now the senior partner of Beijing Horizon Law Firm,
Shenzhen Office and the arbitrator of Shenzhen Arbitration Committee. She had acted as the senior judge in
Changsha Intermediate People’s Court and Economic Tribunal of Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court. Ms. Wang
has accumulated rich experience in economic and civil judgment; some difficult economic and civil cases under
the charge of Ms. Wang have been taken as the judicial guidance in Shenzhen. She has been appointed as the
supervisor of the Company since 2009.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Huang Yong Feng, aged 39, is a senior engineer, a graduate of a master degree from Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics (1t F=fiZE i A A22) and a graduate of the executive master degree of business
administration from China Europe International Business School (P EIEIFR TrgEFR). He is currently the director
of Fiyta, director of AVIC Real Estate, director of Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Rainbow”), chairman of
Castic-SMP Machinery Corporation Limited (317 stk E R A r]) (“Castic-SMP”). He successively held the
positions of manager of corporate strategy and management department, assistant to general manager of AVIC
Shenzhen, managing director of Castic-SMP. He once acted as jointly secretary of the third and fourth session of
the Board of the Company. He has been appointed as Company Secretary of the Company since 2012 for the
second time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has complied with Company Law
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), faithfully performed the obligations required by the applicable Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company has also directed its daily
activities in strict compliance with various established corporate governance systems and reviewed from
time to time its operations and management conducts, adhered to good principles of corporate governance,
improved the transparency and independence of company operation, enhanced its corporate governance
standards on an on-going basis, ensured a stable development of the Company and strived for maximization
of shareholders’ value. The Company, by complying with the principles and requirements set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, has formulated relevant system, regulations, procedures and plans to maintain
good communication between shareholders and the Board, encouraged shareholders to attend annual
general meeting and other general meetings and enabled shareholders to understand the application of
relevant principles.

Except for the code provision A.2.1, during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012, the Company
has adopted and complied with the code provisions set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
which was contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and was effective before 1 April 2012, while during
the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, the Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions set out in the revised Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) which was contained in the
revised Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and was effective from 1 April 2012.

Details of the deviation from above code provision A.2.1 is set out in the following section headed “4.
Chairman and Chief Executive”.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct in respect to
securities transactions.

The Company, having made specific enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors, confirmed that, during the
year ended 31 December 2012, all Directors and Supervisors had complied with the required standards of
dealing in securities specified in the Model Code and relevant conduct code of its own in respect of any
securities transactions by the Directors.
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3.

BOARD

The composition of the Board

In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19th June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with articles of association of the Company. The
term of the directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is 3 years and will end at the 2014
annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015. The Board of the Company comprises a total of
8 Directors, including 5 executive directors, namely, Mr. Wu Guang Quan (Chairman of the Board), Mr. You
Lei, Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and Mr. Liu Jun; and 3 independent non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping.

Each of Mr. Lai Wei Xuan, Mr. Sui Yong, Mr. Liu Rui Lin and Mr. Xu Dong Sheng had resigned as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 19 June 2012 due to change of work positions and each
of them had confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the
Company.

Each of Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong, Mr. Qiu Shen Qian, Mr. Wang Bin Bin and Mr. Li Cheng Ning resigned as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 19 June 2012 due to change of work positions and
each of them had confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating
to his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of
the Company.

Mr. Liu Xian Fa resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 19 June
2012 due to increasing commitments of his professional and personal affairs and had confirmed that he
had no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his resignation that needs to be
brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.
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Details of meetings and attendance

The numbers and attendance of general meetings, Board meetings and meetings of other committees held
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows, in which each director attended all
meetings in person with no alternate director being appointed:

General
Meeting
(including
annual
general
meeting and

extraordinary
general Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
meeting) Board Committee Committee Committee
Attendance/  Attendance/ Attendance/  Attendance/  Attendance/
number of number of  Attendance number of number of number of
meetings* meetings* Rate meetings* meetings* meetings*

Executive directors

Wu Guang Quan (Chairman of the Board) 1/6 20/22 91% 1/1 1/1
You Lei 3/6 20/22 91%
Pan Lin Wu (appointed on 19 June 2012) 1/4 1717 100%
Chen Hong Liang (appointed on

19 June 2012) 2/4 1717 100% - -
Liu Jun (appointed on 19 June 2012) 1/4 1717 100%
Lai Wei Xuan (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 5/5 100%
Sui Yong (resigned on 19 June 2012) 2/2 5/5 100% 11 11
Liu Rui Lin (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 2/5 40%
Xu Dong Sheng (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 0/5 0%

Non-executive Directors
Cheng Bao Zhong (resigned on

19 June 2012) 0/2 2/5 40%
Qiu Shen Qian (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 3/5 60%
Wang Bin Bin (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 0/5 0%
Li Cheng Ning (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 0/5 0%

Independent non-executive directors

Wong Wai Ling 2/6 18/22 82% 2/2 1/1 1/1
Wu Wei 1/6 16/22 73% 2/2 1/1 1/1
Zhang Pin (appointed on 19 June 2012) 1/4 14/17 82% 11 - -
Liu Xian Fa (resigned on 19 June 2012) 0/2 0/5 0% 0N 0/1 0N

- refer to the number of meetings convened at the period of each director/member appointed during the financial

year ended 31 December 2012.
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Responsibility of the Board and the management

The Board is responsible for instituting the overall target, policies, internal control and risk management
system of the Group. In addition, the Board also supervises the detailed matters which may affect the
equities of all shareholders, such as financial status, human resources, investment and financing, the
transaction activities which are notifiable as defined in the Listing Rules, and exercises its management
and decision-making powers authorised under the articles of association or in general meetings in terms of
capital reconstructing. Details of the responsibilities and powers of the Board in terms of the Company’s
development strategies and management as well as its responsibilities and powers to supervise and monitor
the Company’s development and operation are set out in the articles of association of the Company.

The directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ general meeting and serve a term of 3 years. A director
may serve consecutive terms if be re-elected upon the expiration of his term. Except the retired directors
and the candidate recommended by the board of directors, commencing on the second date after the
dispatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for election of director(s), a shareholder is entitled to lodge
a notice in writing to the Company to nominate directors, the period for lodgment of such notice shall be
7 days. Subject to the relevant laws and administrative regulations, any director (including directors act as
the manager or other senior management officers) with an unexpired term of office may be removed by an
ordinary resolution of a shareholders’ general meeting (but without prejudice to any claim for compensation
pursuant to any contract). The board of directors shall be responsible to the shareholders’ general meeting
and shall have the following duties and powers:

(1) to be responsible for convening shareholders’ general meeting and to report its work at the
shareholders’ general meeting;

2) to execute the resolutions passed at the shareholders’ general meeting;

3) to determine the business plans and investment proposals of the Company;
(4) to prepare the annual financial budget and final accounts of the Company;
(5) to prepare the plans for profit distribution and loss recovery for the Company;

(6) to prepare proposals for increasing or reducing the registered capital of the Company, and proposals
for the issue of debenture;

(7) to draw up proposal for merger, separation or dissolution of the Company;

(8) to decide on the set-up of the internal management structure of the Company;

9) to appoint or dismiss the manager and to appoint or dismiss vice-manager, the chief financial officer
in accordance with the recommendations of the manager and to determine their remuneration
packages;

(10)  to set up the basic management system of the Company;

(11)  to draw up proposal for amending the Articles of Association;
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(12)  to draw up proposal for material acquisition and disposal;

(13) subject to the requirements of relevant laws, regulations, rules and the Articles of Association,
exercise the Company’s powers of fund-raising and borrowing, and determine pledge, leasing,
subcontract or transfer of assets of the Company, and to authorise a manager to exercise powers
within the scope hereof;

(14)  subject to the requirements of relevant laws, regulations, and within the scope of authority delegated
by shareholders in general meeting, to perform other functions.

Except for the matters provided for in paragraphs (6), (7), (11) and (12) which require approval of more
than two-thirds of the directors, the remaining matters as contained in the preceding paragraphs shall be
approved by a simple majority of the directors.

The Company is an investment holding company, currently the executive Directors exercise the function of
the management of the Company and all projects of the Company will be reviewed and approved by the
Board. The responsibilities of each executive Directors are as follow:

Mr. Wu Guang Quan: responsible for overall operation of the Company;

Mr. You Lei: assisting the Chairman for daily operation; responsible for operation management, review of
strategic investment; responsible for high-tech electronic products segment, resources investment and
development segment; and assisting in strategic planning;

Mr. Pan Lin Wu: responsible for financial management, finance and strategic investment and capital
operation;

Mr. Chen Hong Liang: responsible for human resources, legal issues, audit, inspection and supervision;

Mr. Liu Jun: responsible for international expansion, foreign issues, overseas institution management and
responsible for trading and logistics segment.

Compliance of the Directors

There is no non-compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and Rule 3.10A of Listing Rules by the directors of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012. None of the independent non-executive directors
did not comply with one or more independence assessment guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of Listing Rule
during the year ended 31 December 2012. None of the members of the Board had any financial, business,
family or other material/related relationship with each other during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Directors’ training

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary introduction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company Secretary also provides Directors with
updates on latest development of and amendments to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time.
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In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has arranged in house trainings for Directors
in the form of attending seminars and reading materials since the revised Code took effect on 1 April 2012.
A summary of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2012 according to the
records provided by the Directors to the Company is as follows:

Listing Rules Listing Rules
Compliance Compliance

Training Training
(2012.6.19) (2012.9.12)

Executive Directors

Wu Guang Quan (Chairman) v v
You Lei v v
Pan Lin Wu v v
Chen Hong Liang v
Liu Jun v

Independent non-executive director

Wong Wai Ling v
Wu Wei v
Zhang Pin v

4, CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19th June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with articles of association of the Company. Mr. Wu
Guang Quan was re-elected as chairman of the Board (Chairman), with the term of 3 years which will end at
the date of 2014 annual general meeting of the Company to be held in 2015.

In accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the applicable Corporate Governance Code, roles of the
chairman and the chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
The responsibility of the chairman and the chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the executive Directors exercise the function of the
management and the Company did not appoint any chief executive. The executive Director and Chairman of
the Company, Mr. Wu Guang Quan and the Board of the Company hold meeting regularly to consider major
matters that influence the operation of the Group. The Board considers that the structure will not impair the
balance of authority and rights between the Board and the management of the Company. Each executive
Director being assigned with different functions will complement the role of the Chairman. The Board
believes that this structure is beneficial to establishing a stable and consistent leadership, which will enable
effective operation of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

In the 2011 annual general meeting of the Company held on 19th June 2012, the sixth session of the Board
was formed through end-of-term election in accordance with articles of association of the Company. The
non-executive Director of the fifth session of the Board, namely Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong, Mr. Qiu Shen Qian,
Mr. Li Cheng Ning and Mr. Wang Bin Bin resigned as non-executive director due to the change of work
positions. Each of Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong, Mr. Qiu Shen Qian, Mr. Wang Bin Bin and Mr. Li Cheng Ning had
confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his resignation
that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr.
Zhang Ping, who was appointed on 19 June 2012. Mr. Liu Xian Fa resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 19 June 2012 due to increasing commitments of his
professional and personal affairs and had confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there
was no matter relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange
and the shareholders of the Company. The number of independent non-executive Directors accords with
the provision of the Listing Rules. Among which, Ms. Wong Wai Ling is a qualified accountant with extensive
experience in accounting and finance. The Company has received the confirmation letters in respect of their
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors during the year ended 31 December
2012 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors comply with the requirements of independence according to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SUBCOMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board of the Company established three committees, namely audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee. The role and responsibility of each committee are as follow:

(1) Audit committee
The Board has established the audit committee to fulfill the functions of reviewing the financial
reporting and monitoring the effectiveness and objectiveness of the internal control system, risk
management and auditing procedure of the Company. In order to comply with the amendment, of the
revised Code effective on 1 April 2012, the terms of reference of the audit committee was renewed
and revised by the resolution of the Board passed on 19 March 2012, and the details of which were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 28 March 2012.

During the period from 1 January 2012 to 18 June 2012, the audit committee comprised all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and
Mr. Liu Xian Fa, of which Ms. Wong Wai Ling acted as the chairman. Elected by the sixth session
of the Board meeting held on 19 June 2012, the audit committee comprises all independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, of which Ms.
Wong Wai Ling acts as the chairman. She is a qualified accountant with extensive experience in
accounting and finance.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Corporate Governance Report

(2)

The audit committee met twice on 12 March 2012 and 21 August 2012 respectively, to discuss
(i) auditor’s report, annual report, report of the directors for the year of 2011 and connected
transactions of 2011; (i) unaudited interim financial statement for the period ended 30 June 2012
of the Company, interim report of 2012, internal control resolution for the first half year of 2012 and
certain other businesses. The audit committee provided recommendation to the Board regarding to
the above matters for its approval. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph
headed “3. Board — Details of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the
attendance of the meetings held by the audit committee.

Remuneration committee

The Board of the Company has established the remuneration committee to fulfill the functions
of providing recommendations to the Board in the aspects of the performance, engagement,
remuneration and award of each executive Director, and drawing up the overall remuneration policy.
The terms of reference of remuneration committee was renewed and revised by the resolution of the
Board passed on 19 March 2012, and the details of which were published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company on 28 March 2012.

During the period from 1 January 2012 to 18 March 2012, the remuneration committee comprised
the executive directors Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Sui Yong, and the independent non-executive
Directors Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Liu Xian Fa. The chairman of the remuneration
committee was Mr. Wu Guang Quan. In order to comply with the amendments of the revised Listing
Rules effective on 1 April 2012, Mr. Wu Guang Quan ceased to be the chairman of the remuneration
committee and Ms. Wong Wai Ling has been appointed as chairman of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 19 March 2012. The members of the Remuneration Committee remain unchanged.

Elected by the sixth session of the Board meeting held on 19 June 2012, remuneration committee
comprises the executive Directors Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, and the independent
non-executive Directors Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, of which independent
non-executive Director Mr. Zhang Ping acts as the chairman.

The remuneration committee of the Company met on 12 March 2012 to review the remuneration
policy and the payment method of 2011 for the directors. The chairman reported that, the
remuneration of the executive directors should be assessed and determined according to the
operation results of the Company during the year and the accomplishment of the targets. The fixed
remuneration policy is adopted for the independent directors of the Company. The remuneration
committee adopted the model stated in paragraph B.1.2(c)(i) of the Code as set out in Appendix
14 as its terms of reference where the remuneration committee shall make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior management. The
remuneration committee provided recommendation to the Board regarding to the above matters for
its approval. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph headed “3. Board —
Details of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the attendance of the
meetings held by the remuneration committee.

FRERRERBRAERAT 201260 EHE 121



Corporate Governance Report

122

)

4

Nomination Committee

During the period from 1 January 2012 to 18 March 2012, the Board has not established the
nomination committee. In order to comply with the amendments of the Listing Rules effective on
1 April 2012, the Board resolved to establish nomination committee on 19 March 2012, which
comprised 3 independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr.
Wu Wei and Mr. Liu Xian Fa, of which Ms. Wong Wai Ling acted as the chairman. Details of the terms
of reference were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on 28 March
2012.

Elected by the sixth session of the Board meeting held on 19 June 2012, the nomination committee
comprises executive Directors Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and independent non-
executive Directors Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, of which independent non-
executive Director Mr. Wu Wei acts as the chairman.

The nomination committee is responsible for regular review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change to the structure
of the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The nomination committee considers
the suitability of a candidate to act as a director on the basis of the candidate’s qualification,
experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company, and assesses the independence of
the independent non-executive directors under the requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Before its establishment, the role and function of the nomination committee was taken up
by the Board. Please refer to the table of attendance records in the paragraph headed “3. Board —
Details of meetings and attendance” in this Corporate Governance Report for the details of meeting
and attendance of the meetings held by the nomination committee for the year ended 31 December
2012.

Corporate Governance
The corporate governance functions performed by the Board include the following:
(@) formulate and review the corporate governance policy and practice of the Company;

(b) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management;

(©) review and monitor the policy and practice of the Company regarding its compliance with laws
and regulatory requirements;

(d) formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance handbook (if any)
applicable to the employees and the Directors; and

(e) review whether the Company has complied with the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board has reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The aggregate remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors in relation to their audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 set out as follow:

Amount of
remuneration

Type of services (RMB: 0°000)

Audit service 760

Non-audit service

Review of the opening balance of companies acquired in the very substantial acquisition 110
Review on the continuing connected transaction 60
Review on the preliminary result announcement 40
Total (RMB: 0’000) 970

The expense shown in this table is based on the year of contract instead of year of cash payment

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All of the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the accounts and the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012. The auditors acknowledged
their reporting responsibilities in the independent auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Directors was responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with assistance of the financial and accounting departments. The Directors
prepared the financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies have also been
used and applied consistently. The Board has regularly reviewed and monitored the financial reporting
procedures, risk management, internal control system and recommendation of external auditors and its
appointment, retirement and removal (if any) and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the issuer’s ability to operate as a
going concern, therefore the Directors continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. The audit committee is of the view that the selection and appointment
of external auditors met the actual requirement of the Company, its audit and non-audit services can truly
reflect the financial condition of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

A Board meeting was held on 19 June 2012, during which Mr. Zeng Jun resigned as the Company Secretary
of the Company due to the change of work positions. The Board proposed the appointment of Mr. Huang
Yong Feng as the Company Secretary of the Company. On 20 July 2012, the Board announced that the
abovementioned appointment of the Company Secretary was approved by Stock Exchange, and Mr. Huang
Yong Feng became the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Huang Yong Feng is a full time employee
of the Company and has knowledge of the Company’s day-to-day affairs. The Company Secretary of the
Company reports to the Chairman and is responsible for providing recommendation of governance matters
to the Board. The Company Secretary confirmed that he has obtained no less than 15 hours of professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2012.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Two or more shareholders who collectively hold 10% or more of the voting shares at the proposed meeting
may make a proposal to the Board on holding an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting by signing
one or several written requests with same content in same format and define the meeting agenda. The
Board shall convene such meeting as soon as possible upon receipt of the aforesaid written request. The
aforesaid number of shares held shall be calculated as of the date when the written request was put forward
by the shareholders.

In case the Board fails to give a notice of convening such meeting within thirty days after receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders who put forward the request may convene such a meeting within
four months after receipt of the request by the Board, and the procedures shall be the same as those for
convening a general meeting by the Board where possible.

Inquiry to the Board
For any inquiry to the Board, please contact the Company directly at 25/F, Hangdu Building, Catic Zone,
Shennan Road Central, Futian Dist., Shenzhen, China, telephone: 86-755-83793891; fax: 0755-83790228.

Proposals at General Meeting

When the Company convenes an annual general meeting, shareholder(s) who hold five percent or more of
the Company’s total shares carrying voting rights shall be entitled to make new proposals to the Company
in writing. Where such proposals contain matters within purview of the general meeting, the Company shall
include such matters in the agenda of the general meeting. However, the proposal should be delivered to the
Company within thirty days from the dispatch date of the notice of such meeting. The contact information of
the Company is the same as above.
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Communication with Shareholders

The annual general meeting is the primary channel to communicate with shareholders of the Company. The
chairman of the general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be considered. During the
year, the chairmen of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
and external auditors have attended the annual general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions.

According to the articles of association of the Company, the notice of the annual general meeting shall
be given to shareholders at least forty-five days before the meeting. The chairman of the annual general
meeting exercises his power under the Company'’s articles of association to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of conducting a poll. The rules and procedures of the vote will be clearly explained before it
commences at the meeting, and the results of which will be announced on both the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

INVESTORS RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has made amendments to the articles of
associations for three times, details of which are as follows:

Special resolution in respect of amendment to the articles of associations was approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16 February 2011. And the registration in the

administrative department for industry and commerce in China has been completed on 5 September
2012.
Before amendment

After amendment

Article 24: Article 24:

After the Company established and altered to a
public company on the approval of the examining and
approving authorities of the Company authorized by
the State Council, it issued 242,000,000 overseas
listed foreign capital shares to the overseas investors
and such overseas foreign capital shares are listed in
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

After the Company established and altered to a
public company on the approval of the examining and
approving authorities of the Company authorized by
the State Council, it issued 242,000,000 overseas
listed foreign capital shares to the overseas investors
and such overseas foreign capital shares are listed in
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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Special resolution in respect of amendment to the articles of associations was approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16 February 2011. And the registration in the

administrative department for industry and commerce in China has been completed on 5 September

2012.
Before amendment

The Company re-purchased 6,000,000 overseas
listed foreign capital shares between 11th August and
29th August 2006. On the completion of re-purchase,
the structure of the share capital was: 636,000,000
ordinary shares where the AVIC International Shenzhen
Company Limited (the promoter) held 400,000,000
shares, representing 62.89% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and 236,000,000 overseas
listed foreign capital shares, representing 37.11%
of the issued share capital of the Company. On
27th December 2007, the Company placed and
issued 47,199,999 overseas listed foreign capital
shares totally, including 42,909,090 new overseas
listed foreign capital shares placed and issued and
4,290,909 shares in stock which was held by the
AVIC International Shenzhen Company Limited and
allocated to the National Council for Social Security
Fund in accordance with the Interim Measures of the
State Council on the Management of Reducing Held
State Shares and Raising Social Security Funds and
such shares were sold as the overseas listed foreign
capital shares. On the completion of the placement,
the structure of the share capital was: 678,909,090
ordinary shares where the AVIC International Shenzhen
Company Limited (the promoter) held 395,709,091
shares, representing 58.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and 283,199,999 overseas
listed foreign capital shares, representing 41.71%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The
Company re-purchased 5,542,000 overseas listed
foreign capital shares between 29th April 2008 and
30th April 2009. On the completion of the re-purchase,
the structure of the share capital was: 673,367,090
ordinary shares, where the AVIC International
Shenzhen Company Limited (the promoter) held
395,709,091 shares, representing 58.77% of the
issued share capital of the Company, and 277,657,999
overseas listed foreign capital shares, representing
41.23% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Article 27

The registered capital of the Company is
RMB673,367,090.

After amendment

The Company re-purchased 6,000,000 overseas
listed foreign capital shares between 11th August and
29th August 2006. On the completion of re-purchase,
the structure of the share capital was: 636,000,000
ordinary shares where the AVIC International Shenzhen
Company Limited (the promoter) held 400,000,000
shares, representing 62.89% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and 236,000,000 overseas
listed foreign capital shares, representing 37.11%
of the issued share capital of the Company. On
27th December 2007, the Company placed and
issued 47,199,999 overseas listed foreign capital
shares totally, including 42,909,090 new overseas
listed foreign capital shares placed and issued and
4,290,909 shares in stock which was held by the
AVIC International Shenzhen Company Limited and
allocated to the National Council for Social Security
Fund in accordance with the Interim Measures of the
State Council on the Management of Reducing Held
State Shares and Raising Social Security Funds and
such shares were sold as the overseas listed foreign
capital shares. On the completion of the placement,
the structure of the share capital was: 678,909,090
ordinary shares where the AVIC International Shenzhen
Company Limited (the promoter) held 395,709,091
shares, representing 58.29% of the issued share
capital of the Company, and 283,199,999 overseas
listed foreign capital shares, representing 41.71%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The
Company re-purchased 5,542,000 overseas listed
foreign capital shares between 29th April 2008 and
30th April 2009. On the completion of the re-purchase,
the structure of the share capital was: 673,367,090
ordinary shares, where the AVIC International
Shenzhen Company Limited (the promoter) held
395,709,091 shares, representing 58.77% of the
issued share capital of the Company, and 277,657,999
overseas listed foreign capital shares, representing
41.23% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The Company issued 437,264,906 domestic shares
to AVIC International Holding Corporation, the sole
shareholder of AVIC International Shenzhen Company
Limited (the promoter) on 5th September 2012. Upon
the issuance, the capital structure of the Company is:
1,110,631,996 ordinary shares, of which 437,264,906
shares were held by AVIC International Holding
Corporation, representing approximately 39.37%
of the total issued share capital of the Company;
395,709,091 shares were held by AVIC International
Shenzhen Company Limited (the promoter)
representing approximately 35.63% of the total issued
share capital of the Company; 277,657,999 overseas
listed foreign capital shares representing approximately
25% of the total issued share capital of the Company.

Article 27

The registered capital of the Company is
RMB1,110,631,996.
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Special resolution in respect of amendment to the articles of associations was approved on the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 8 February 2012. And the registration in the
administrative department for industry and commerce in China has been completed on 14 March

2012.
Before amendment

Article 16:

The scope of business of the Company as approved
by the relevant company registration authorities shall
prevail.

The scope of business of the Company includes:
engaging in various corporate investments, holdings;
setting up and operating high-tech industrial projects
and other project investment.

After amendment
Article 16:

The scope of business of the Company as approved
by the relevant company registration authorities shall
prevail.

The scope of business of the Company includes:
engaging in various corporate investments, holdings;
setting up and operating high-tech industrial projects
and other project investment; engaging in import and
export trade.

Special resolution in respect of amendment to the articles of associations was approved on the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20 November 2012. And the registration in the

administrative department for industry and commerce in China has been completed on 4 January

2013.
Before amendment

Article 2:

The registered Chinese name of the Company is: JZ&3I|
R EER GO BRAR

The registered English name of the Company is:
CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited (Mandatory
Provision Article 2)

Article 98:

The Company shall establish a board of directors.
The board of directors shall be composed of 5 to 13
directors, who shall include one chairman of the board.
(Mandatory Provision Article 86)

Sub-section (3) of Article 100:

3 The chairman of the board of directors shall be
elected or replaced by more than one-half of
the directors. The term of office of the chairman
is 3 years and he/she is eligible for re-election
and reappointment

The second paragraph of Article 103:

If the chairman of the board of directors is unable
to perform his/her duties, he/she may designate
a director to perform the duties on his/her behalf.
(Mandatory Provisions Article 90)

After amendment
Article 2:

The registered Chinese name of the Company is: # fifi
BURR IR AR (D B PR A A

The registered English name of the Company is: AVIC
International Holdings Limited (Mandatory Provision
Article 2)

Article 98:

The Company shall establish a board of directors.
The board of directors shall be composed of 5 to
13 directors, who shall include one chairman of the
board and one vice-chairman of the board. (Mandatory
Provision Article 86)

Sub-section (3) of Article 100:

3) The chairman and vice-chairman of the board
of directors shall be elected or replaced by
more than one-half of the directors. The term
of office of the chairman and vice-chairman is 3
years and he/she is eligible for re-election and
reappointment

The second paragraph of Article 103:

If the chairman of the board of directors is unable to
perform his/her duties, he/she may designate the
vice-chairman of the board of directors or a director
to perform the duties on his/her behalf. (Mandatory
Provisions Article 90)

FHERRIERRAERLAE 20128 E3RE 127



Corporate Governance Report

12.

128

INVESTOR RELATIONS MANAGEMENT

Goals

Investor relations management is a kind of active behavior of the listed company for purpose
of seeking maximized value. The management of the Company always pays attention to active
investment relations. The Company has formulated corresponding internal working system, specifying
the methods, contents, scope and working procedure of implementing the investor relations
management.

The Company’s work of investor relations management aims at helping the investors to have
acquaintance with the basic information of the Company and understand the Company’s operating
strategies in order to make their own rational investment decisions by comprehensively reporting
the Company’s operating results to the investors. Meanwhile, the Company also identifies its own
deficiencies with the help of the recommendations and comments from investors and analysts in
order to improve the operation of the Company.

Communication channels

During the reporting period, the Company strictly and fully disclose relevant information to investors in
accordance with relevant regulations, and timely disclose important information and relevant progress
which may influence the benefits of the investors through regular or temporary bulletin, striving
for improvement of the quality of information disclosure; the website of the Company will regularly
publicize the data concerned with investors, such as business status and other information, so that
the investors can timely and clearly know the latest development of the Company, and improve the
transparency of the Company.

The core of the investor relations management is effective communication. A win-win situation is
guaranteed through the interactive communication between the Company and investors. During this
year, the Company kept close relationship with media and investors both in China and other countries
through diversified forms, such as accepting the visits of investors and analyzers, and telephone
conference. In addition, investor can obtain latest information about the Company by visiting its
website, where the Company discloses its interim and annual reports, bulletins, circular letters and
updated development status.

Prospect

Through active activities related to investor relations, the Company aims at improving transparency,
strengthening communication, making investors better understand the business of the Company and
feel confident toward its future development, having the Company recognized and supported by the
market, and making the development potential and actual value of the Company fully reflected in the
market.
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Report of
the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company presents their report together with the audited
financial statements of AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the current principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

The Group is an investment holding company with diversified strategies and is principally engaged in high-tech
electronic products, retails and high-end consumer products, real estate and hotel, trading and logistics, resources
investment and development business in China.

Details of the contribution from each of the businesses to the profit attributable to shareholders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the paragraph “business review” under the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Information on the principal subsidiaries and associates of the Company is set out in note 14 and 15 to the financial
statements respectively.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION OF MARKETS

Information on major markets of the Group is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the consolidated income
statement of the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the distributable reserves of the Group were approximately RMB2,611,602,000 as
reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
PRC.
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ALLOCATION OF PROFITS

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company, when distributing net
profit each year, the Company shall set aside 10% of its net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts for the
statutory general reserve fund (except where the fund has reached 50% of the Company’s registered share capital).
This reserve cannot be used for purposes other than those for which they are created and are not distributable as
cash dividends. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the statutory general reserve fund of the Company is as
follows:

RMB’000

Statutory general reserve fund 6.30% 70,001 10.04% 70,001

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the statements
of changes in equity and note 29 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s operating results, assets and liabilities for the past five years ended 31 December 2012 is
set out in the Consolidated Results Summary in this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has not entered into or maintained any contracts in
respect of the management or administration of its overall business or any major business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s purchases from the five largest suppliers were
RMB2,492,975,495, accounting for 8.15% of the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 2.3% of the Group’s total purchases.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s sales to the five largest customers accounted for approximately 14.15%
(2011: approximately 17.88%) of the Group’s turnover. The largest customer accounted for approximately 4.70%
(2011: approximately 4.58%) of the Group’s turnover.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s subsidiary, Tianma, held 10% interest of the Group’s fourth largest
customer. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or supervisors, their
associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) are interested in the five largest suppliers or five largest customers of the Group.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of major properties held for investment of the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

PLEDGED ASSETS
Information on the pledged assets of the Group for the year is set out in note 7, note 11, note 12, note 13 and
note 26 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS
Information on the bank loans of the Group for the year is set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TERM DEPOSIT
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any entrusted deposit and overdue term
deposit in any form.

TAXATION

Details of the Group’s taxation for the year are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

TAXATION POLICY
Pursuant to the relevant income tax laws of the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group are subject to income tax at the
applicable rate of 25% unless preferential tax rate were applicable.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2012, to the knowledge of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the following
parties (other than the Directors, supervisors or chief executive of the Company) had interests, or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”):

Long positions in the shares:

Approximate Approximate
Number percentage of percentage of

and class the same class of total registered
Name of shareholder Capacity of securities securities share capital

Domestic Shares

Aviation Industry Interest of controlled 1,634,608,792 196.24% 147.18%
corporation domestic shares
(Note 1)
AVIC International Beneficial owner 1,329,499,564 159.61% 119.71%
and interest domestic shares
of contrqlled (Note 1)
corporation
AVIC Shenzhen Beneficial owner 429,774,574 51.60% 38.70%
domestic shares
(Note 1)
Beijing Raise Beneficial owner 305,109,228 36.63% 27.47%
domestic shares
(Note 1)
H Shares
Li Ka-Shing Interest of controlled 29,644,000 shares 10.67% 2.67%
corporation and of H share (Note 2)
founder of

discretionary trusts

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Interest of controlled 29,644,000 shares 10.67% 2.67%
Limited corporation of H share (Note 2)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee and 29,644,000 shares 10.67% 2.67%
Trustee Corporation beneficiary of of H share (Note 2)
Limited a trust

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee and 29,644,000 shares 10.67% 2.67%
Trustcorp Limited beneficiary of of H share (Note 2)

a trust

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee 29,644,000 shares 10.67% 2.67%
Trustee Company of H share (Note 2)
Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (continued)

Approximate Approximate
Number percentage of percentage of
and class the same class of total registered
Name of shareholder Capacity of securities securities share capital
Cheung Kong Investment  Interest of controlled 14,823,000 shares 5.33% 1.33%
Company Limited corporation of H share (Note 2)
Empire Grand Limited Beneficial owner 14,828,000 shares 5.33% 1.33%
of H share (Note 2)
Hutchison International Beneficial owner 14,823,000 shares 5.33% 1.33%
Limited of H share (Note 2)
Hutchison Whampoa Interest of controlled 14,823,000 shares 5.33% 1.33%
Limited corporation of H share (Note 2)
Jiang Jian Jun Interest of controlled 18,262,000 shares 6.57% 1.64%
corporation of H share (Note 3)
Huayin Group Investment  Beneficial owner 18,262,000 shares 6.57% 1.64%
Development Co., Ltd. of H share (Note 3)
Notes:
1. Aviation Industry owns 76.83% of the equity interest in AVIC International which in turn owns 100% equity interest in AVIC

Shenzhen. Hence, Aviation Industry is deemed, or taken to be, interested in the all shares of the Company in which AVIC
International and AVIC Shenzhen are interested in, respectively.

Aviation Industry owns 60% of the equity interest in Beijing Raise. Hence, Aviation Industry is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all shares of the Company in which Beijing Raise is interested in.

AVIC International owns 100% of the equity interest in AVIC Shenzhen. Hence, AVIC International is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all shares of the Company in which AVIC Shenzhen is interested in.

As at 31 December 2012:

(1) AVIC International held: (A) 437,264,906 shares of domestic shares of the Company, representing approximately
39.37% of the issued share capital of the Company; and (B) perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the
amount of RMB1,604,736,493 which may be converted into 462,460,084 domestic shares of the Company at the
initial conversion price of RMB3.47 (subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated
convertible securities).

2) AVIC Shenzhen held: (A) 395,709,091 domestic shares of the Company, representing approximately 35.63% of
the issued share capital of the Company; and (B) perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount
of RMB118,207,225 which may be converted into 34,065,483 domestic shares of the Company at the initial
conversion price of RMB3.47 (subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated
convertible securities).

3) Beijing Raise held perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB1,058,729,021 which

may be converted into 305,109,228 domestic shares of the Company at the initial conversion price of RMB3.47
(subject to the adjustment pursuant to the terms of perpetual subordinated convertible securities).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2.

The same equity interest of the above 29,644,000 shares of H share include:

A)

Empire Grand Limited (“Empire Grand”) holds 14,823,000 shares of H Share and Empire Grand is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cheung Kong Investment Company Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cheung
Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH”"); and

Hutchison International Limited (“HIL”) holds 14,821,000 shares of H Share and HIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL”). Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited, of which each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing
and Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor is interested in one-third and two-third respectively of the entire issued share capital,
owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1”). TUT1 as trustee
of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trust is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at their general
meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of CKH. Certain subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.

In addition, Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited also owns the entire issued share capital of Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1”) (as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1”)) and Li Ka-
Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2”) (as trustee of another discretionary trust (“DT2”)). Each of TDT1 and TDT2
holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-shing, being the settler and regarded as the founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for
the purpose of the SFO, TUT 1, TDT1, TDT2 and CKH is deemed to be interested in the aggregate 29,644,000 H shares
of the Company held by Empire Grand and HIL.

Jiang Jian Jun owned the interests by virtue of his 100% beneficial interest in Huayin Group Investment Development Co.,

Ltd.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

ISSUE, PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated 3 December 2010, 16 February 2011 and 15
July 2011, and the circular of the Company dated 31 December 2010 in relation to, among other things, the very
substantial acquisitions and connected transactions involving issue of perpetual subordinated convertible securities.
All conditions set out in the relevant agreements were fulfilled. According to the relevant agreements, the relevant
acquisition was completed on 5 September 2012. Upon the completion and pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the relevant agreements, the Company:

0

(i

134

allotted and issued to AVIC International, 437,264,906 consideration shares at the issue price of RMB3.15
(equivalent to approximately HK$3.89) per Domestic Share;

issued to AVIC International, the AVIC International perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the

aggregate amount of RMB1,604,736,493 convertible into 462,460,084 conversion shares at the initial

conversion price of RMB3.47 (equivalent to approximately HK$4.28) per Domestic Share;
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ISSUE, PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES (continued)

(iif) issued to AVIC Shenzhen, the AVIC Shenzhen perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of
RMB118,207,225 convertible into 34,065,483 conversion shares at the initial conversion price of RMB3.47
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.28) per Domestic Share; and

(iv) issued to Beijing Raise perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB1,058,729,021
convertible into 305,109,228 conversion shares at the initial conversion price of RMB3.47 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4.28) per Domestic Share.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, as
the case may be, had issued, purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
PRC, which require the Company to firstly offer new shares to the existing shareholders to purchase according to
their respective proportions of shareholding.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Guang Quan (chairman)

Mr. You Lei

Mr. Pan Lin Wu (appointed on 19 June 2012)

Mr. Chen Hong Liang (appointed on 19 June 2012)
Mr. Liu Jun (appointed on 19 June 2012)

Mr. Lai Wei Xuan (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Mr. Sui Yong (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Mr. Liu Rui Lin (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Mr. Xu Dong Sheng (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong (resigned on 19 June 2012)
Mr. Qiu Shen Qian (resigned on 19 June 2012)
Mr. Wang Bin Bin (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Mr. Li Cheng Ning (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Wu Wei

Mr. Zhang Ping (appointed on 19 June 2012)
Mr. Liu Xian Fa (resigned on 19 June 2012)
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of the service agreements of Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. You Lei, Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang, Mr.
Liu Jun, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping shall expire after three years commencing from 19
June 2012.

The service agreements of executive Directors Mr. Lai Wei Xuan, Mr. Sui Yong, Mr. Liu Rui Lin, Mr. Xu Dong Sheng,
independent non-executive Director Mr. Liu Xian Fa, non-executive Directors Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong, Mr. Qiu Shen
Qian, Mr. Li Cheng Ning and Mr. Wang Bin Bin expired at the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 19
June 2012.

No Director or supervisor of the Company has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and Supervisors” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

For the year ended 31 December 2012, to the best knowledge of the Directors of the Company, none of the
Directors, supervisors of the Company is interested in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors, supervisors or chief executives were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which are required to be entered into the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the year ended 31 December 2012 was the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company a
party to any arrangement to enable any Directors, supervisors or management members of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporates.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
For the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the Director or supervisor of the Company had any significant
interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract or arrangement of significance to the business of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2012.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and supervisors are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

The term of service of the 5th Board of Directors and Supervisors Committee expired at the 2011 annual general
meeting (“AGM”) of the Company held on 19 June 2012. According to the provision of the Company’s articles of
association, the shareholders of the Company re-elected/elected the new Directors and Supervisors. Mr. Wu Guang
Quan and Mr. You Lei were re-elected as the executive Directors of the 6th Board of Directors of the Company;
Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and Mr. Liu Jun were elected as the executive Directors of the 6th Board of
Directors of the Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling and Mr. Wu Wei were re-elected as the independent non-executive
Directors of the 6th Board of Directors of the Company; and Mr. Zhang Ping was elected as an independent non-
executive Director of the 6th Board of Directors of the Company. Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Deng Bo Song were
re-elected as supervisors of the 6th Supervisors Committee of the Company. Mr. Huang Bin was elected as a
supervisor of the 6th Supervisors Committee of the Company.

Each of Mr. Lai Wei Xuan, Mr. Sui Yong, Mr. Liu Rui Lin and Mr. Xu Dong Sheng had resigned as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 19 June 2012 due to change of work positions and each of them had
confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his resignation that
needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Each of Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong, Mr. Qiu Shen Qian, Mr. Wang Bin Bin and Mr. Li Cheng Ning resigned as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 19 June 2012 due to change of work positions and each
of them had confirmed that he had no disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Liu Xian Fa resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect from 19 June
2012 due to increasing commitments of his professional and personal affairs and had confirmed that he had no
disagreement with the Board and there was no matter relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to the
attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Wang Xin Kuo resigned as a supervisor and chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company with effect
from 19 June 2012 due to change of work positions and had confirmed that he had no disagreement with the
Board and there was no matter relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock
Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 25,516 employees (2011: 24,458) with employee related costs of
approximately RMB1,805,958,000 (2011: approximately RMB1,652,150,000). The Group formulated its competitive
remuneration policy based on market condition and individual employee’s performance.

SOCIAL INSURANCE SCHEMES
Details of the retirement fund scheme and health insurance scheme maintained by the Group are set out in note 33
to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
below, and confirmed that these transactions have been entered into, in accordance with the relevant agreements,
by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms which are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

iiE

Connected Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement

On 9 January 2012, Yunnan Hongfu Chemical Fertilizer Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Hongfu”), an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into, among other things, a finance lease agreement
(the “Finance Lease Agreement”) with AVIC International Leasing Company Limited (the “AVIC International
Leasing”), pursuant to which Yunnan Hongfu has conditionally agreed to lease from AVIC International
Leasing certain lease assets (the “Lease Assets”), which were purchased by Yunnan Hongfu under
certain purchase agreements and to be transferred to AVIC International Leasing at a consideration of
RMB44,000,000 under a transfer agreement (the “Transfer Agreement”) entered into between Yunnan
Hongfu and AVIC International Leasing on 9 January 2012. Pursuant to the Finance Lease Agreement, the
total lease consideration (including the principal amount of RMB44,000,000, interests, management fees
and the optional purchase price for vesting the title and all rights of the Lease Assets in Yunnan Hongfu) to
be paid by Yunnan Hongfu to AVIC International Leasing shall be not more than RMB80,000,000.

AVIC International Leasing is owned as to 52.5%, 16.27% and 31.23% by AVIC Investment Company
Limited (“AVIC Investment”), AVIC International and other third parties respectively. AVIC Investment is
wholly-owned by Aviation Industry. Aviation Industry owns as to 62.52% in AVIC International, which in
turn owns 100% of AVIC Shenzhen. Accordingly, AVIC International Leasing is a connected person of the
Company and the entering into the Finance Lease Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the Finance
Lease Arrangement are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the finance lease arrangement and transactions
contemplated under the Finance Lease Agreement, the Transfer Agreement, the Guarantee (as defined
below) and the Share Pledge Agreement (as defined below) (together referred to as the “Finance Lease
Arrangement”) are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempted from independent
Shareholders’ approval according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 9 January 2012, the Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”) in favour of AVIC International
Leasing to secure due performance of the payment obligations by Yunnan Hongfu to AVIC International
Leasing in accordance with the Finance Lease Agreement and the Transfer Agreement. The maximum
obligation of the Company under the Guarantee is RMB80,000,000.

As the guarantee provided by the Company under the Guarantee is not in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group but on normal commercial terms, and was provided not in proportion to the Group’s
equity interest in Yunnan Hongfu, the Guarantee constitutes a financial assistance to Yunnan Hongyuan
Investment Co., Ltd (“Yunnan Hongyuan”). As at 9 January 2012, Yunnan Hongyuan held 49% equity
interest in Yunnan Hongfu, hence a substantial shareholder of Yunnan Hongfu and a connected person of
the Company. The financial assistance arising from the Guarantee constitutes a connected transaction of
the Company under Rule 14A.13(3) of the Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios of the financial
assistance arising from the Guarantee are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Guarantee is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval
according to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement (continued)

On the same date, Yunnan Hongyuan has entered into a share pledge agreement in favour of the Company
(the “Share Pledge Agreement”). Pursuant to the Share Pledge Agreement, Yunnan Hongyuan shall pledge
its 49% equity interest, dividend and other interest in Yunnan Hongfu to the Company to secure, including
but not limiting to, due performance of the payment obligations by Yunnan Hongfu to AVIC International
Leasing in accordance with the Finance Lease Agreement.

The transaction contemplated under the Share Pledge Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company, however is exempt from reporting, announcement and approval of the independent shareholders
under Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules as the Share Pledge Agreement is for the benefit of the Group
and on normal commercial terms (or better to the Group) where no security over the assets of the Group is
granted by the Group in respect of the Share Pledge Agreement.

As at the date of the entering into of the Finance Lease Arrangement, the construction of a phosphate
production plant by Yunnan Hongfu is at the final state. As Yunnan Hongfu requires additional financial
resources, the entering into of the Finance Lease Arrangement shall enable the Group to obtain additional
financial resources for the general working capital of Yunnan Hongfu.

Details of the above Finance Lease Arrangement were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 9
January 2012.

Connected Transaction - Renovation Contract of Guangdong International Building

On 12 January 2012, GIB Company, a non-wholly subsidiary of the Company, entered into a renovation
contract (the “2012 First Renovation Contract”) with CATIC Building Technology Company (formerly name
as “Shenzhen CATIC Building Facilities Company Limited”, the “CATIC Building Facilities”) in relation to
works of modernization and renovation of Guangdong International Building at a consideration not exceed
RMBS3,600,000. The renovation works was completed on 29 February 2012.

The Guangdong International Building is owned by GIB Company, of which the Company holds 75% equity
interest. CATIC Building Facilities is owned as to 90% by CATIC Property Management Company Limited
(formerly name as “Shenzhen CATIC Property Management Company Limited”, the “CATIC Property
Management”) and as to 10% by Shenzhen CATIC Nanguang Elevator Engineering Company (the “CATIC
Nanguang Elevator”). CATIC Property Management is wholly-owned by AVIC Real Estate. AVIC Real Estate
is an associate of AVIC Shenzhen (which is a controlling Shareholder of the Company). CATIC Nanguang
Elevator is owned as to 95% by CATIC Property Management and 5% by CATIC Building Facilities.
According to Listing Rules, CATIC Building Facilities is a connected person of the Company. 2012 First
Renovation Contract constitutes a connected transaction of the Group. As the applicable percentage ratios
of the 2012 First Renovation Contract are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the 2012 First Renovation
Contract is subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from independent
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the 2012 First Renovation Contract
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 12 January 2012.
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3.

Continuing Connected Transaction - in relation to Purchase of TFT Colour LCD Modules and
Intellectural Property Consulting Services

On 5 March 2012, Achievement Electronics Limited (“Achievement Electronics”) and NEC LCD Technologies,
Ltd. (“NLT”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) of TFT
colour liquid crystal display modules (“TFT-LCD Modules”). Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
Achievement Electronics agreed to purchase, and NLT agreed to sell TFT-LCD Modules and provide
after-sale support and technical services to Achievement Electronics for an amount of not exceeding
US$14,000,000 for a term commenced on 5 March 2012 and expired on 31 December 2012,

The TFT-LCD Modules to be supplied by Japanese suppliers including NLT represent a leading and
advanced level of electronic technology in the world. Apart from supply of TFT-LCD Modules, NLT also
provides high quality after-sale service and technical support. The resale of the TFT-LCD Modules by
Achievement Electronics to other overseas customers would earn Achievement Electronics and thus the
Group a good reputation and influence in the TECT-LCD Modules market.

On 5 March 2012, Shanghai Tian Ma and NLT entered into a consulting service agreement (the “IP
Consulting Service Agreement”). Pursuant to the IP Consulting Service Agreement, NLT agreed to provide
consulting services in relation to intellectual property rights to Shanghai Tian Ma for an amount of services
fee of not exceeding JPY135,000,000 for a term commenced on 5 March 2012 and expired on 31
December 2012.

NLT possesses over 2,000 patents on electronic products and expertise registered in various territories
as well as extensive experience in negotiation on patent-related matters and legal suits and disputes
within the jurisdiction of the United States. Leveraging on NLT’s advantageous position and with a view to
facilitating the development and advancement of electronic products of Tian Ma, Tian Ma engaged NLT as
its intellectual property rights consultant through the entering into of the IP Consulting Service Agreement
between Shanghai Tian Ma and NLT.

Achievement Electronics is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Tian Ma. Shanghai Tian Ma is directly owned
as to 21% and 30% by the Company and Tian Ma respectively. Tian Ma is a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. NLT is owned as to 70% by Shenzhen CATIC Opto-electronics. Shenzhen CATIC Opto-
electronics is owned as to 51% by AVIC Shenzhen and as to 49% by AVIC International. As at 5 March
2012, AVIC International held 100% interest in AVIC Shenzhen. Accordingly, NLT is a connected person
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under each of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and
the IP Consulting Service Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for the respective maximum caps of the
Sale and Purchase Agreement and the IP Consulting Service Agreement are more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated under each of the
Sale and Purchase Agreement and the IP Consulting Service Agreement are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the IP Consulting
Service Agreement were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5 March 2012.
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Continuing Connected Transaction - in relation to Joint Research and Development and Operating
Lease

On 24 July 2012, Shanghai Tian Ma and NLT entered into a joint research and development agreement (the
“Joint Research and Development Agreement”) for a term of one year commencing from 10 August 2012 to
9 August 2013. Pursuant to the Joint Research and Development Agreement, Shanghai Tian Ma and NLT
have agreed to jointly research and develop the structure and the manufacturing process of oxide-based
thin film transistors (“Oxide-TFT”), for which Shanghai Tian Ma as lessee shall rent and utilize the production
line from NLT as lessor for a rental amount of JPY104,000,000 (equivalent to RMB3,452,000) for a term of
one year commencing from 10 August 2012 to 9 August 2013.

The collaboration with NLT in the development of oxide semiconductor technology will help Shanghai Tian
Ma to speed up the development of the technology, which is more time-saving and economical, as well as
to strengthen the build-up and to accelerate the growth of the research and development team of Shanghai
Tian Ma, and to form a competition edge to an adequate extent.

Shanghai Tian Ma is directly owned as to 21% and 30% by the Company and Tian Ma respectively. Tian
Ma is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. NLT is owned as to 70% by Shenzhen CATIC Opto-
electronics. Shenzhen CATIC Opto-electronics is owned as to 51% by AVIC Shenzhen and as to 49% by
AVIC International. AVIC Shenzhen is the promoter and controlling shareholder of the Company, which as
at 24 July 2012, held approximately 58.77% of the issued share capital of the Company. AVIC International
held 100% interest in AVIC Shenzhen. The transactions contemplated under the Joint Research and
Development Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

As the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for the Joint Research and Development
Agreement, the IP Consulting Service Agreement mentioned in the third paragraph of this section and each
lease mentioned in the announcement on 19 December 2011 are in aggregate more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated under the Sales and
Purchase Agreement and IP Consulting Service Agreement are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Details of the Joint Research and Development Agreement and operating lease were
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 July 2012.

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Continuing Connected
Transactions with 12 companies recently injected to the Group in the coming three years

On 30 November 2010, the Company entered into equity interests acquisition agreements with AVIC
International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing Raise. The Company acquired certain equity interests in 12
companies from AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing Raise by way of issuing the domestic shares
and perpetual subordinated convertible securities of the Company. Upon the completion of the acquisitions,
Aviation Industry, AVIC International, Vanke Enterprise Company Limited (“Vanke Enterprise”), Beijing
Raise and their respective associates are connected parties of the Company. The continuing connected
transactions subsisting with the above mentioned companies would constitute the continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Therefore, the Company revised or renewed the framework agreements
contemplating the continuing connected transactions on 5 September 2012, with the term commenced from
5 September 2012 to the 31 December 2014 according to the annual cap as provided in the respective
framework agreements. The Company published an announcement on 9 September 2012 in accordance
with the requirement of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

5. Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Continuing Connected
Transactions with 12 companies recently injected to the Group in the coming three years (continued)
Continuing connected transactions that were subject to independent shareholders’ approval are set out as

follows:

Name of Agreement Parties

Annual Cap

Amount for 2012

(RMB yuan)

Annual Cap
Amount for 2013
(RMB yuan)

Annual Cap
Amount for 2014
(RMB yuan)

(1) The New Aviation Industry Sale 1) the Company 105,000,000 148,000,000 195,000,000
Framework Agreement 2) Aviation Industry
(2) The New Aviation Industry 1) the Company 24,000,000 32,000,000 35,000,000
Purchase Framework Agreement  2) Aviation Industry
(3) The New AVIC International Sale 1) the Company 450,000,000 700,000,000 950,000,000
Framework Agreement 2) AVIC International
(4) The New AVIC International 1) the Company 2,000,000,000 3,600,000,000 3,800,000,000
Purchase Framework Agreement  2) AVIC International
(5) The New Aviation Industry - Agency 1) the Company 64,000,000 132,000,000 136,000,000
Services Framework Agreement  2) Aviation Industry
(6) The New AVIC International - 1) the Company 81,000,000 125,000,000 160,000,000
Agency Services Provision 2) AVIC International
Framework Agreement
(7) The AVIC International - Agency 1) the Company 23,500,000 65,000,000 72,000,000
Services Acceptance 2) AVIC International
Framework Agreement
(8) Engineering Services Framework 1) the Company 20,000,000 24,000,000 27,000,000
Agreement 2) Aviation Industry
(9) Aviation Industry Labour Agency 1) the Company 5,000,000 11,000,000 13,000,000
Services Framework Agreement  2) Aviation Industry
(10) AVIC International Labour Agency 1) the Company 11,000,000 15,600,000 15,600,000
Services Framework Agreement  2) AVIC International
(11) The New Aviation Industry 1) the Company
Financial Framework Agreement  2) Aviation Industry 6.650,000,000 8.450,000,000 9.200,000,000
(@) (amount of acceptance of
loans/guarantees)
(b) (interest/guarantee fee of
acceptance of loans/ 650,000,000 820,000,000 880,000,0000
guarantees)
(12) The New AVIC International 1) the Company
Financial Framework Agreement  2) AVIC International 11,700,000,000 22.000,000,000 29,000,000,000
() (amount of acceptance of
loans/guarantees)
(b) (interest/guarantee fee of
acceptance of loans/ 357,200,000 420,000,000 450,000,000
guarantees)
(13) Aviation Industry Construction 1) Engineering Company 100,000,000 200,000,000 -
Services Framework Agreement  2) Aviation Industry
(14) AVIC International Construction 1) Engineering Company 200,000,000 470,000,000 -
Services Framework Agreement  2) AVIC International
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions - Framework Agreement for the Continuing Connected
Transactions with 12 companies recently injected to the Group in the coming three years (continued)
Continuing connected transactions that were exempted from independent shareholders’ approval
requirement are set out as follows:

5.

144

Annual Cap Annual Cap Annual Cap
Name of Agreement Parties Amount for 2012  Amount for 2013  Amount for 2014
(RMB yuan) (RMB yuan) (RMB yuan)
The New Property Management 1) the Company 65,000,000 66,500,000 69,000,000
Framework Agreement 2) Vanke Enterprise
3) Vanke Property Development
Co., Ltd.
Beijing Ruixin Property 1) Beijing Ruixin 5,000,000 5,000,000 -
Management Framework 2) Beijing AVIC Da Bei Property
Agreement Management Company
Limited

For details of above continuing connected transactions, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 5 September 2012 and circular of the Company dated 24 October 2012. The above connected
transactions that were subject to independent shareholders’ approval were passed on the extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 December 2012. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 24 December 2012.

Connected Transactions — Acquisitions of 5% of equity interests in each of Schneider Tianjin and
TIMG

On 22 November 2012, Beijing Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into two
disposal agreements with Tianjin Tianli Aviation Electro-mechanical Co., LTD (“Tianjin Tianli”), pursuant to
which, Beijing Company conditionally agreed to sell to Tianjin Tianli 5% equity interest of Schneider Electric
Low Voltage (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“Schneider Tianjin”), at the consideration of RMB39,080,000 and 5% equity
interest of Tianjin Merlin Gerin Co., Ltd. (“TJMG”) to Tianjin Tianli at the consideration of RMB2,810,000
respectively. As Tianjin Tianli is a connected person of the Company, both the two disposals constitute
connected transactions of the Company. As the applicable ratios in respect of the aforesaid disposals are
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the disposals were subject to reporting and announcement requirements
but are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Group intends that the disposals will expedite Beijing Company’s focus on the corporate transformation,
and focus its resources in the development of its principal business to achieve professionalism, and

gradually withdrawing from its long term equity investments in non-core business.

Details of the aforesaid two disposals were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
November 2012.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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Continuing Connected Transaction - in relation to Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract

On 22 November 2012, Chengdu Raise (a 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company) and CATIC Property
Management (Chengdu Branch) entered into a property management framework agreement (the “Chengdu
Raise Property Service Contract”), pursuant to which CATIC Property Management (Chengdu Branch)
agreed to provide property management services to Chengdu Raise for a term commencing on 22
November 2012 and expiring on 31 December 2014. The service fee payable by Chengdu Raise under
the Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract for the period from 22 November 2012 to 31 December
2012, and for each of the 12 months ending 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014 will not exceed
RMB500,000, RMB2,100,000 and RMB7,100,000, respectively.

Chengdu Raise is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as at 22 November 2012. CATIC Property
Management (Chengdu Branch) is a branch of CATIC Property Management, which is, in turn, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CATIC Real Estate, an associate of AVIC Shenzhen. AVIC International owns 100%
equity interest of AVIC Shenzhen (a controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 35.63%
of the issued share capital of the Company and perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount
of RMB118,207,225). Accordingly, CATIC Property Management (Chengdu Branch) is a connected person
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract
constitute continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The entering into of the Chengdu Raise Property Service Contract between Chengdu Raise and CATIC
Property Management (Chengdu Branch) is due to the professional knowledge and expertise of CATIC
Property Management (Chengdu Branch) in the field of property management and that CATIC Property
Management (Chengdu Branch) is one of the top property management enterprises in the PRC.

Details were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2012.

Very Substantial Disposal and Connected Transaction: Capital Increase Agreement and Deemed
Disposal of Interest in AVIC Vanke

On 27 December 2012, the Company, Vanke Enterprise, AVIC International and AVIC Vanke entered into
a capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”), pursuant to which AVIC International and
Vanke Enterprise have respectively conditionally agreed to make a capital contribution of RMB600,000,000
and RMB400,000,000 in cash to the registered capital and then capital reserve of AVIC Vanke (the
“Proposed Capital Increase”).

As at 27 December 2012, the Company held 60% interest in AVIC Vanke. Assuming that upon completion
of the capital increase, the shareholding of the Company in AVIC Vanke will be diluted from 60% to 47.12%
of the enlarged registered capital of AVIC Vanke. The dilution of the Company’s interest in AVIC Vanke
constitutes a deemed disposal of interest in AVIC Vanke under Rule 14.29 of the Listing Rules.

As the percentage ratios under the Listing Rules applicable to the Proposed Capital Increase are more than
75%, the Proposed Capital Increase constitutes a very substantial disposal of the Company. Accordingly,
the Proposed Capital Increase is subject to, among other things, the reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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8.

Very Substantial Disposal and Connected Transaction: Capital Increase Agreement and Deemed
Disposal of Interest in AVIC Vanke (continued)

As each of AVIC International and Vanke Enterprise is a connected person of the Company, the Proposed
Capital Increase also constitutes a connected transaction of the Company. Accordingly, the Proposed
Capital Increase is subject to, among other things, the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company will hold an
extraordinary general meeting to consider this connected transaction on 12 April 2013.

It is expected that AVIC Vanke, following the Proposed Capital Increase, will be able to reduce the finance
cost for business development, improve its structure of assets and liabilities and further enhance its
financing capability in the future, which will result in a higher level of revenue via facilitating a further business
expansion and may benefit the Company with a relevant amount of revenue corresponding to its equity
interest in AVIC Vanke.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 December 2012 and circular
of the Company dated 25 February 2013.

Save as disclosed above, all related party transactions in the year ended 31 December 2012 disclosed
in note 50 to the consolidated financial statement did not constitute connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other things, reporting, announcement, annual
review or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S CONFIRMATION

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company appointed the auditors,
Pricewaterhoursecoopers, to carry out review procedures on the connected transactions in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information’ and with reference to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules’ issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditors provided to the Stock Exchange a copy of letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions confirming that:

146

nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the relevant continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’
attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company.

nothing has come to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the transactions were
not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

with respect to the respective amount of the relevant continuing connected transactions, nothing has come

to the auditors’ attention that causes the auditors to believe that the respective amount of transactions have
exceeded the respective cap as disclosed in the previous announcements made by the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

1.

Re-election of members of the Board and Supervisor Committee, appointment of Chairman of the
Board and Chairman of Supervisor Committee; Change of Company Secretary and Authorized
Representative; Appointment of alternate Authorized Representative and Change of composition
of committees of the Board

On 19 June 2012, a general meeting was held to re-elect and appoint Directors and supervisors of the
Company. The executive Directors for re-election or appointment are Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. You Lei,
Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Chen Hong Liang and Mr. Liu Jun; independent non-executive Directors are Ms. Wong
Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping. Mr. Huang Bin, Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Deng Bo Song were
considered and appointed as supervisors of the Company.

Mr. Wu Guang Quan was re-elected and remained as the Chairman of the Board, and Mr. Huang Bin has
been appointed as the Chairman of the Supervisor Committee by Supervisor Committee. Mr. Zeng Jun
resigned as the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and one of authorized
representatives of the Company (the “Authorized Representative”) due to changes of work position. After Mr.
Zeng'’s resignation, the Board has resolved on 19 June 2012 to appoint Mr. Huang Yong Feng as Company
Secretary and Authorized Representative in replace of Mr. Zeng. The appoinment of Mr. Huang has been
approved by Stock Exchange and took effect from 20 July 2012. Mr. Zhong Si Jun has been appointed as
alternate Authorized Representative of the Company to Mr. Huang Yong Feng by the Board of the Company.
The appoinment of Mr. Zhong took effect from 20 July 2012.

The changes of member for each Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company have been made.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 June 2012.

Proposal of General Mandate to Issue Debentures Denominated in Renminbi by the Company

With a view to broadening financing channels, reducing finance costs and improving debt structure of the
Company, a Board meeting was held on 19 June 2012 to consider and approve a resolution in relation to
the general mandate. It was proposed that general mandate be granted to the Board to issue debentures, in
tranches, by way of medium-term notes. The maximum outstanding repayment amount of the debentures to
be issued under the general mandate shall not exceed RMB2 billion in aggregate. Each term of maturity for
medium-term notes shall not exceed 5 years. Specific terms will be determined by the Board with reference
to the market condition and the Company’s need for funding. It is expected that the interest rate will not
exceed the rate for the loans for the same tenure in the market at the time of issue. Actual interest rate will
be determined by the Board with reference to the market condition at the time of issue. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19 June 2012.

Proposed Issuance of Debentures by Fiyta, a non-wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Company

On 19 June 2012, the board of directors of Fiyta, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, proposed
to issue the debentures on an underwritten basis. The debentures are denominated in RMB, and proposed
to have a principal amount not exceed RMB400 million and a maturity not exceeding 5 years. The interest
rate and repayment terms will be fixed by Fiyta and the principal underwriter according to the market
condition. The principal amount and the maturity of the debentures will be determined with reference to the
market condition and capital needs of Fiyta. The debentures issuance was approved by the shareholders of
Fiyta, China Securities Regulation Commission and the relevant PRC government authorities. On 27 February
2013, Fiyta issued debentures in the principal amount of RMB400 million to institutional and individual
investors holding a registered A-Share account of Fiyta with a maturity period of five years. The interest rate
is calculated at the proposed fixed interest rate ranging from 4.5% to 5.5% for the three years from the date
of issuance. The interest rate will be adjusted upward within a range from 0.01% to 1% starting from the
fourth and fifth years of the maturity period. Fiyta has completed the issuance of debentures. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19 June 2012 and 22 February 2013.
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4.

148

Supplemental Agreements in Relation to the Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected
Transactions Involving Issue of Perpetual Subordinated Convertible Securities

On 16 November 2011, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement with each of AVIC International
(the “Acquisition Agreement 1”) and with AVIC Shenzhen (the “Acquisition Agreement 2” and “Acquisition
Agreement 3”), respectively in relation to the very substantial acquisitions and connected transactions
involving the issue of perpetual subordinated convertible securities by the Company.

On 27 June 2012, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with each of AVIC International (the
“Supplemental Agreement 1”) and AVIC Shenzhen (the “Supplemental Agreement 2”) to amend certain terms
of the Acquisition Agreement 1 and the Acquisition Agreement 2. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement 1
and the Acquisition Agreement 2, completion of the Acquisition Agreement 1 and the Acquisition Agreement
2 and the transactions contemplated thereunder are interconditional and shall take place simultaneously.
Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement 1, the Company and AVIC International agreed to cancel the
interconditional and simultaneous completion requirement of the Acquisition Agreement 1 with Acquisition
Agreement 2. Pursuant to the Supplemental Agreement 2, the Company and AVIC Shenzhen agreed to
cancel the inter-conditional and simultaneous completion requirement of the Acquisition Agreement 2
with Acquisition Agreement 1. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21
November 2011 and 27 June 2012, and the circular of the Company dated 23 December 2011.

On 29 June 2012, transactions under Acquisition Agreement 1 and Acquisition Agreement 3 received the
approval from the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council,
while transaction under Acquisition Agreement 2 has not yet received approval from the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council.

On 31 December 2012, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with each of AVIC
International (the “Supplemental Agreement 3”) and AVIC Shenzhen (the “Supplemental Agreement 4”)
to amend certain terms of the Acquisition Agreement 1, the Acquisition Agreement 2 and the Acquisition
Agreement 3. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement 1, the Acquisition Agreement 2 and the Acquisition
Agreement 3, completion of the Acquisition Agreement 1, the Acquisition Agreement 2 and the Acquisition
Agreement 3 and the transactions contemplated thereunder shall take place before 31 December 2012 (or
such later date as agreed in writing by the related parties). Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement 3 and
the Acquisition Agreement 4, the completion date of said condition above will be extended to 31 December
2018 (or such later date as agreed in writing by the related parties).

Completion of Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected Transactions Involving Issue of
Domestic Shares and Perpetual Subordinated Convertible Securities for the Acquisition of
Interests in 12 Companies from Parent Company and Its Associates

On 5 September 2012, the very substantial acquisitions and connected transactions of the Company-
issuance of Domestic Shares and perpetual subordinated convertible securities for the acquisition of equity
interests in 12 companies from AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing Raise was completed. The
Company also completed the issuance and registration of the Domestic Shares and perpetual subordinated
convertible securities. Such very substantial acquisitions and connected transactions were completed.
The new business license of the Company was issued by Economy, Trade and Information Commission of
Shenzhen Municipality on 5 September 2012.

Proposed Change of Company Name and Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association

On 5 September 2012, the Company proposed to change the existing name of the Company to “H i
BB IR A% 15 B PR A7) (AVIC International Holdings Limited)”. The Company proposed to make certain
amendments to the Articles of Association in relation to, among other things, (i) the proposed change of
Company name; and (i) the inclusion of provision for appointment of deputy chairman. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5 September 2012 and the circular of the Company
dispatched on 4 October 2012.
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7.

10.

Further Development in relation to the Very Substantial Acquisitions and Connected Transactions
involving Issue of Perpetual Subordinated Convertible Securities

On 11 October 2012, the Company received the approval from China Securities Regulatory Commission,
waiving the obligation of the Company for a general offer of shares of Rainbow Stores arising out of the
acquisition of 316,257,000 shares of Rainbow Stores. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 November 2011, 27 June 2012 and 11 October 2012, and the circular of the Company
dated 23 December 2011.

Discloseable Transaction-Acquisition of DELTAMARIN

On 12 October 2012, AVIC International Investments, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which a newly established subsidiary by AVIC
International Investments has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of 4,650 shares
of Deltamarin Oy at a consideration of €32,109,348. As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing
Rules in relation to the acquisition were more than 5% but less than 25%, the Acquisition constituted a
discloseable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and therefore was subject to reporting and
announcement requirements under the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 12 October 2012.

Discloseable Transaction - Finance Lease Arrangement

On 7 December 2012, Shandong New Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. (the “Shandong Shipbuilding”),
an indirect subsidiary of the Company and Minsheng Financial Leasing Company Limited (the “Minsheng
Leasing”) entered into, among others things, a finance lease contract (the “Finance Lease Contract”),
pursuant to which Shandong Shipbuilding agreed to sell to Minsheng Leasing a 100,000 tonnes dock for
shipbuilding and a 100,000 tonnes dock for ship repairing (the “Shipyards”) for RMB140,000,000; and to
lease from Minsheng Leasing the Shipyards for a term of 36 months for RMB155,121,875.18 (subject to
adjustment according to the benchmark lending rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China from time
to time), inclusive of interest at an annual rate of 6.4575%, payable every three months (together the “Finance
Lease Arrangement”).

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in relation to the Finance Lease Arrangement are
more than 5% but less than 25%, the Finance Lease Arrangement constitutes a discloseable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Finance Lease Arrangement is subject to
the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the requirements of shareholders’
approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 7 December 2012.

Discloseable Transaction - Provision of Guarantee

On 20 December 2012, Catico Investments Pte. Ltd. (the “Catico”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, executed a deed of guarantee in favour of a bank, pursuant to which Catico guaranteed
to pay all due, owing or unpaid liabilities to the bank by the Borrower (a joint stock company owned as to
37% by Catico) from time to time in the maximum amount of US$26,412,820 (together with interests, and
all costs, charges and expenses of the bank). It is expected that the Deed of Guarantee will be released and
replaced by a guarantee agreement to be executed by Xiamen Company in favour of the Bank upon the
same being approved and registered by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the PRC.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules in relation to the provision of guarantee are
more than 5% but less than 25%, the provision of guarantee constitutes a discloseable transaction of
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the provision of guarantee is subject to
the requirements of reporting and announcement, but is exempted from the requirement of shareholders’
approval, pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company on 20 December 2012.

FRERRERBRAERAT 201260 EHE 149



Report of the Directors

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has no material foreign exchange risk as the Group’s products are mainly distributed in domestic market
and its export business is mainly settled in US dollar or HK dollar. Details of foreign exchange risk of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the Note 4 of the financial statement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, Weihai Shipyard had provided a three years guarantee of RMB150,000,000 in favour
of Weihai Port Group Co., Ltd. (E88£E AR A7), and a one year guarantee of RMB120,000,000 in favour
of Weihai Port Co., Ltd. (IUEE&BRND B R A 7]); Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. had provided a one
year guarantee of RMB15,000,000 and a three year guarantee of RMB22,000,000 in favour of Shandong New
Shipbuilding Ship Steel Outfitting Co., Ltd. (LI HAHE T A MBARE (FHER AR, a one year guarantee of
RMB55,000,000 in favour of Weihai Port Co., Ltd., a one year guarantee of RMB10,000,000 in favour of Shandong
New Shipbuilding Pipe Outfitting Production Co., Ltd, and a one year guarantee of RMB55,000,000 in favour of
Weihai Port Group Co., Ltd; Xiamen Company had provided a long term guarantee of RMB140,000,000 in favour
of Xiamen Tianma Microelectronics Co., Ltd, and a long term guarantee of USD26,412,820 in favour of Radiance
Catico Offshore Pte. Ltd.

MAJOR LITIGATION

On 27 September 2012, Xiamen Arbitration Committee accepted the application for arbitration hearing from
Xiamen Company in relation to discharge a sales and purchase agreement entered into by Xiamen Company with
a third party, and a claim for outstanding payment for goods of RMB13,145,000, legal costs of RMB150,000 and
arbitration costs. The judgment was ruled in favour of Xiamen Company and the execution is currently in progress.

On 28 September 2012, Xiamen Company filed a claim for damages of RMB36,680,000 and legal costs of
RMB150,000 for failure to deliver goods purchased and stored by the counterparty at the Intermediate People’s
Court of Nanjing City (F8 3= # & A KRAFT). Intermediate People’s Court of Nanjing City accepted the case on 20
November 2012. The proceeding is currently in progress.

On 4 December 2012, Xiamen Arbitration Commission (EF9{H#;Z & &) accepted the application for arbitration
hearing from Xiamen Company in relation to the performance of the sales and purchase agreement entered into
by Xiamen Company and a counterparty, requisition of the discharge of the sales and purchase agreement, and
a counterparty repayment of the loan of RMB21,480,000 with compensation for loss of interest, legal cost of
RMB150,000 and arbitration costs incurred by Xiamen Company. The proceeding is currently in progress.
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On 19 November 2012, the application of arbitration hearing from Xiamen Company was filed by Xiamen Arbitration
Commission (EF{+#Z B €) in relation to a claim of RMB25,370,000 for loss of goods, loss of interest and legal
costs, maintenance costs against the counterparty for failure to deliver the goods stored; and to requisition on the
confirmation of entitlement of the security rights and application for auction and sales of the pledged properties
as well as the priority of compensation over proceeds. On 13 December 2012, the People’s Court of Shanghai
Baoshan District (/&M 2 L& A RJABT) accepted the application from Xiamen Company and made the rule of
property preservation. The proceeding is currently in progress.

On 25 December 2012, the Higher People’s Court of Chongaing City (& E T =& A RER) accepted a legal
proceeding initiated by Chongging AVIC Vanke Yunling Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EEFRMERIZEEZ AR A7)
(owned as to 50% by AVIC Vanke), Chongging Wanbin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EE&EE KR A 7)) (owned as
to 50% by AVIC Vanke) and Chongging AVIC Vanke Junjing Real Estate Co., Ltd. (EEFMERIEKSEXAR
‘A7\]) (owned as to 50% by AVIC Vanke) (the above three companies are collectively referred to as the “Project
Companies”) and CNAIE Properties Development Co., Ltd. (i EERZE AR A R]) (“CNAIE Properties”)
(owned as to 80% by AVIC International and as to 20% by Engineering Company. The legal proceeding was
initiated against 3 defendants (the “Defendants”) relates to a series of contracts regarding parties’ cooperation in
the construction of property projects, pursuant to which the Defendants undertake to, among other things, migrate
high-voltage line on the lands, construct roads, and renovate and demolish existing properties on the lands.
The Project Companies were then initially established by CNAIE Properties to develop and operate the property
projects. The Project Companies and CNAIE Properties have claimed for damages resulting from the breach by the
Defendants of its contractual obligations under the series of contracts, among other things, (i) full performance by
the Defendants of the obligations, and penalty of RMB613,800,000, together with compensation of RMB4,000,000
and disbursement of RMB7,000,000 with joint and several liabilities, (ii) delivery of rights of operation to the
plaintiffs, together with penalty of RMB100,000,000, (iii) delivery of legal and valid invoice which can be accounted
for cost of RMB152,256,900 and (iv) the bearing by the Defendants of the relevant litigation costs.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1. Change of Company Name and Change of the Stock Short Name of the Company
On 5 February 2013, the Board of the Company announced that the name of the Company has been
changed from “F#IJFMmEBEKMND AR 27 (CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited)” to “Hbfin B BR $%2 i% A%
AR /AF (AVIC International Holdings Limited)”. Following the change of name of the Company, the
stock short name of the Company for trading in the H Shares on the Stock Exchange will be changed
from “CATIC SHENZHEN” and “RIIFMEERKH” to “AVIC IHL" and “HABEEIERR” with effect from 8
February 2013. The stock code of the Company remains unchanged. A new business license bearing the
new name of the Company in Chinese was issued by the Market Supervision Administration of Shenzhen
Municipality (ZIITFTIHEREIEF) on 4 January 2013. The Certificate of Registration of Change of
Corporate Name of Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
on 1 February 2013 certifying that the new name of the Company has been registered in Hong Kong under
Part XI of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 5 September 2012 and 5 February 2013, and the circular of the
Company dated 4 October 2012.
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2,

Continuing Connected Transaction - Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement

On 15 January 2013, Beijing Company (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and CATIC Real Estate
entered into an entrusted management agreement (the “Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement”),
pursuant to which CATIC Real Estate agreed to provide management services to Beijing Company for a
term commencing on 15 January 2013 and expiring on 31 December 2015. The service fee payable by
Beijing Company under the Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement (the “Entrusted Management Fee”)
for the period from 15 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, and for each of the year ending 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2015 shall not exceed RMB14,000,000, RMB12,000,000 and RMB17,000,000,
respectively.

Beijing Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as at 15 January 2013. CATIC Real Estate
is an associate of AVIC Shenzhen. Aviation Industry owns 76.83% of the equity interest in AVIC International
(a controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 39.37% of the issued share capital of the
Company and perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB1,604,736,493), which
in turns own 100% equity interest of AVIC Shenzhen (a controlling shareholder of the Company holding
approximately 35.63% of the issued share capital of the Company and perpetual subordinated convertible
securities in the amount of RMB118,207,225). Aviation Industry also owns 60% of the equity interest of
Beijing Raise (holding perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of RMB1,058,729,021).
Accordingly, CATIC Real Estate is a connected person of the Company and the transactions contemplated
under the Beijing Entrusted Management Agreement constitute continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 January 2013.

Continuing Connected Transaction - New Lease between Fiyta and Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company
On 21 January 20183, Fiyta and Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company Limited (“Xi’an Tianyue”) entered into a
lease (the “New Lease”). Pursuant to the New Lease, Fiyta, as lessor, agreed to grant and Xi’an Tianyue
Hotel Company, as lessee, agreed to take up the lease in respect of certain portion occupying an area of
12,455.06 sg.m. in Xi’an Tianyue Hotel for a term commencing from 21 January 2013 to 31 December
2013 for a total rent of not more than RMB6,000,000. As at 21 January 2013, Fiyta is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company is owned as to 100% by Shenzhen
CATIC Hotel Management Company Limited, which is an associate of AVIC Shenzhen. As at 21 January
2013, AVIC Shenzhen is a controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 36.63% of the
issued share capital of the Company and perpetual subordinated convertible securities in the amount of
RMB118,207,225. Accordingly, Xi’an Tianyue Hotel Company is a connected person of the Company and
the New Lease constitutes continuing connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 January 2013.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
Except for the code provision A.2.1, the Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions set out in

the Code of Corporate Governance Practices which was contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and was

effective before 1 April 2012 during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and the code provisions
set out in the revised Corporate Governance Code which was contained in the revised Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and was effective from 1 April 2012 during the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “4. Chairman and Chief Executive” in the Corporate Governance
Report in this Annual Report. During the period, the Company has introduced remedial measures and systems for
existing drawbacks in order to further improve its internal control.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules has been adopted as a code of securities transactions for the Directors and supervisors of
the Company. The Company, having made specific enquiries with all Directors and supervisors of the Company,
confirmed that, during the fiscal year ended 31 December 2012, all Directors and supervisors of the Company had
complied with the required standards of dealing in securities specified in the Model Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of the Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance with the
Listing Rules to fulfill the functions of reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting and internal control of the
Company. The Audit Committee members currently comprise all the independent non-executive directors, namely
Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping. The Audit Committee has reviewed and confirmed the
Company’s results announcement and financial statements for the twelve months ended 31 December 2012.

The figures in respect of this annual report of the Group’s results for the year have been agreed by the Company’s
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, to the Group’s financial statement for the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company has obtained written confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
concerning their independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2012. The Directors believe that the independent non-executive Directors had remained independent
based on the requirements set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2012.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the Board of the Company as at the latest
practicable date with respect to the publication of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float.

AUDITORS
The accompanying financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. There is no change in its
auditors in any of the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
Wu Guang Quan
Chairman

Shenzhen, 28 March 2013
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company currently comprises Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang
Ping, and is chaired by Ms. Wong Wai Ling. During the year 2012, the audit committee, a subcommittee
of the Board of the Company, performed its duties in strict compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has effectively monitored the
Company’s financial incomes and expenses and its operating activities for the year 2012. It has reviewed
the Company’s financial statements and interim and annual reports, as well as supervised the internal
control and information disclosure of the Company, and enhanced its communication with the auditors to
ensure that they have imposed effective supervision on the Company’s operation and management. The
performance of duties by the audit committee in 2012 is summarized as follows:

)

Vi)

The committee has got to know the actual operations and the progress of major events of the
Company, its controlling companies and its subsidiaries, and reviewed the financial statements
compiled by the Company.

The committee has overseen the quality of internal auditing and the disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules for the issuers. It has also reviewed the
interim and annual financial statements prior to the submission to the Board, and communicated
closely with the auditors to reach a consensus in all material aspects of the audit report.

The committee has examined the completeness of the Company’s financial statements and interim
and annual reports and reviewed the major opinions in respect of financial reporting of financial
information set out in the financial statements in accordance with the professional ethics of
independence, objectiveness and fairness.

The committee has acted as the major representative for the communications between the issuer
and the external auditor pursuant to the best practice of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and been responsible for monitoring their relationship. It has also reviewed and examined
the independence of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit procedures in accordance
with the applicable standards.

The committee has reviewed the implementation of Connected Transactions of the Company in 2012.

The committee has undertook the responsibilities for providing guidance in respect of internal control,
and considered and approved the working plan for internal auditing for the year 2012.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Reports of the Board’s Subcommittees

The annual result and consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2012 of the Group
have been reviewed by the audit committee.

The audit committee conducted two meetings during the year of 2012, the details of which are as follows:

Subcommittee Audit Committee

Members Wong Wai Ling, Wu Wei, Zhang Ping (appointed on 19 June 2012) and
Liu Xian Fa (resigned on 19 June 2012)

Number of meetings held 2

Date of meetings held 12 March 2012

21 August 2012

Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Auditor’s Report, Results
Announcement and Report of Directors of the Company for 2011

2. The Proposal to Review the Compliance of the Connected
Transactions of the Company

S The Proposal to Review the Enhancement of Corporate
Governance and Internal Control of the Company

4. The Proposal to Review the Interim Financial Report and the
Interim Report on Consolidated Results of the Company for 2012

B. The Proposal to Review the Corporate Governance and the
Internal Control of the Company for the First Half of 2012

REPORT OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company currently comprises Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong
Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, and is chaired by Mr. Zhang Ping. During
2012, the remuneration committee of the Company has reviewed the remuneration policy and the payment
method for the directors and senior management. It has also made an assessment on the disclosure of the
remuneration of the directors, supervisors and senior management in the Company’s annual report and of
the opinion that the remuneration standard set for the directors, supervisors and senior management by
the Company was in compliance with the relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration disclosures were true and accurate. The performance of duties by
the remuneration committee in this year is summarized as follows:

) During the reporting period, the remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration policy
or scheme for all executive directors, supervisors and other senior management in accordance
with laws, statutes and Articles of Associations, and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors to ensure that none of the directors was involved in the
determination of his remuneration. It was delegated the responsibility by the Board to determine
the amount of benefits in kind, pension and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;
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1) The committee has supervised the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure to formulate
the remuneration policy and structure of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the
Company;

1) The committee has reviewed the remunerations for the year 2011 of the Company’s directors,
supervisors and senior management, and deemed that the remuneration decision-making procedure
and distribution standard comply with the provisions of the remuneration system;

V) The committee has reviewed the performance of duties by the directors, supervisors, and other senior
management, and assessed their annual performance. It has also monitored the implementation of
the Company’s remuneration policies.

The remuneration committee held one meeting totally during the year of 2012, the details of which are as
follows:

Subcommittee Remuneration Committee

Members Wu Guang Quan, Sui Yong (resigned on 19 June 2012), Chen Hong
Liang (appointed on 19 June 2012), Wong Wai Ling, Wu Wei, Liu Xian Fa
(resigned on 19 June 2012) and Zhang Ping (appointed on 19 June 2012)

Number of meetings held 1
Date of meetings held 12 March 2012
Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Remuneration Policy of the Directors
and Senior Management of the Company for 2011
2. The Proposal to Review the Payment Method of the Remuneration

of the Directors and Senior Management of the Company for 2011

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company currently comprises Mr. Wu Guang Quan, Mr. Chen Hong
Liang, Ms. Wong Wai Ling, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Zhang Ping, and is chaired by Mr. Wu Wei. During 2012,
the nomination committee of the Company has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
as well as the qualification and experience of the candidates. It also has reviewed the proposal regarding
the independence of independent non-executive directors. The nomination committee considered that the
structure of the Board of the Company complies with the requirement of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of the Directors are competent
for the director of the Company, including skills, knowledge and experience. All of the independent non-
executive directors met the requirement of independence of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the period
under reviewed. The performance of duties by the nomination committee in this year is summarized as
follows:

l) During the reporting period, the committee has, considered and reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including skills, knowledge and experience, and made recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed change to the structure of the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;
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1) The committee has considered the suitability of a candidate to act as a director on the basis of the
candidate’s qualification, experience, integrity and potential contribution to the Company;

[11) The committee has assessed the independence of independent non-executive directors under the
requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The nomination committee held one meeting totally during the year of 2012, the details of which are as

follows:

Subcommittee Nomination Committee

Members Wu Guang Quan (appointed on 19 June 2012), Chen Hong Liang
(appointed on 19 June 2012), Wong Wai Ling (appointed on 19 March
2012), Wu Wei (appointed on 19 March 2012), Liu Xian Fa (appointed
on 19 March 2012 and resigned on 19 June 2012) and Zhang Ping
(appointed on 19 June 2012)

Number of meetings held 1

Date of meetings held 19 March 2012

Proposals considered 1. The Proposal to Review the Structure, Size and Composition of

the Board

2. The Proposal to Appoint the director of the Company or Re-
appoint of director.

Sk The Proposal to Review the Independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

The first meeting of sixth section of Supervisory Committee of the Company was held on 19 June 2012, in which
new members of Supervisory Committee were elected. The Supervisory Committee of the Company is composed
of Mr. Huang Bin (chairman of the Supervisory Committee), Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Deng Bo Song.

During the year of 2012, all members of the Supervisory Committee of the Company earnestly performed the
function of supervision in accordance with the regulations and requirements of Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Articles of Associations and the procedure rules of the Supervisory Committee. By means
of exercising their functions independently pursuant to the laws through attending the meetings of board of
directors as a non-voting member and convening the meeting of the Supervisory Committee, the members of the
Supervisory Committee supervised and examined the operations of the Company in accordance with the laws, the
financial position of the Company, the implementation of resolutions passed in the shareholders’ general meetings,
the process of making major decisions by the Board of Directors, the legality and compliance for the operation and
management activities of the Company as well as the performance of duties by the Directors. It was thus procured
that the Company is operated legally with a view to safeguard the benefits of the Company, its shareholders and
employees.

The Supervisory Committee deems that during the reporting period, the Company’s behaviors in the aspects of
legal operation, financial auditing & result and daily operation and management comply with relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Articles of Associations; the board of directors are
scrupulous about their duties, without breach of laws or rules or damaging the Company’s benefits by utilizing their
powers.

The Supervisory Committee expresses the following opinions for the performance of its operation during the
reporting period:

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinions on the legal operation of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company strictly abided to the laws and statutes such as Company Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China, Articles of Associations and Listing
Rules on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, established sound internal control system, run normally and executed
legal decision-making procedure. The shareholders’ general meetings and the Board meetings were convened
in accordance with the procedures as provided in the relevant laws, regulations and the Company’s articles of
association, where the contents of the relevant resolutions were legal and valid. When fulfilling duties, the directors
of the Company can consciously safeguard the benefits of the Company and shareholders, adhere to the principles
of good faith and diligence, and do not violate any laws or statutes, or damage the Company’s benefits.

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinions on review of Company’s financial status
The supervisory committee has reviewed the relevant information such as the 2012 interim report, 2012 annual
report and 2012 auditor’s report presented by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, with
unqualified opinion. The supervisor committee considered that the Company’s finance system and internal control
system are sound, the financial operation is normal and financial status is good, and that the auditor’ report can
truly, objectively and fairly reflect the financial position and operating results of the Company in 2012.
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The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinion on the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
Company

During the reporting period, the acquisition and disposal of assets by the Company were in compliance with the
requirements of laws and regulations including the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Securities
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Listing Rules as well as the Articles of Association and the required
review procedures have been performed to ensure that there was no damage to the interests of the listed company
nor any impairment to the Company’s assets.

The Supervisory Committee’s independent opinion on the connected transactions of the Company

The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the connected transactions and continuing connected transactions of
the Company during the reporting period and considered that the connected transactions of Company were in
line with the Company’s needs for business development and long-term growth, and strictly in compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Articles of Association and the
Internal Reporting System for Major Events and Connected Transactions issued by the Company. The Company
has conducted the review and disclosure procedures such that the interests of the Shareholders and the Company
were not prejudiced.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Huang Bin
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, China
28 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS

CATIC SHENZHEN HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 162 to
352, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

160 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



B 3 B ED R
Independent Auditor’s Report

BE RITIRF N ERA B4R S M ISR AT E
TREEBEERNBERERR - FMEENREZFIUR
RIZBEDR A - BREF BRI ERTE
BiRAMBHRREFAEA#ERR AN ERE - £
HZERRE  REEEBEZ AR REGS M
%Wﬁuﬁﬁéfﬁ 2 HY [ R AR R ) P BR 4R
H - ARFHEENBETRET - BEEMLIFH QA
%?ﬂ%ﬁ&&%%ﬁﬁ BN BREEE
EMEASTBENEBEERMEL G REEANE
B ARFHESRES W RRMERIIHRI A -

HIFIRE - RAFESHEHRIELERETEE
RPN ESERREER -

=
BMRA  ZEFAMBHRRERBEBERITER
SEANEEMAFRR SAFk EXERN

“E-CHEFTA=THNEBRR &k &
SEHEZREFENEMNMRESRE  YER
REBRAGHIHNREREZ AR

HttEH

A& (BRER) IARRMARIL EREEK
RS Rt ZIARERIEEME R - HAH
ERABRENATAEMEMA LA LSAEE
AEME -

EORKEBEETMERA
HEDEED
EF& —E—=F=A=-+)/\H

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and
only for you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-Z——F+=H=+—H As at 31 December 2012

BZ+=-A=+—-H1t
As at 31 December

—E——F —T——%F
2012 2011
Bt AR FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7)
(Restated)
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
+ 4 {5 F 4 Land use rights 7 1,293,452 1,214,682
PR Mining rights 8 505,317 519,906
= Goodwill 9 264,544 260,236
EEE Intangible assets 10 156,286 151,236
ME - BENEE Property, plant and equipment 11 8,673,372 9,659,889
KB YE Investment properties 12 2,099,314 2,030,986
TEETRE Construction-in-progress 13 1,252,051 1,128,005
REEE N AR E Investments in associates 15 1,887,517 1,521,992
A S [E] 1R 4 B2 3% % Investments in jointly controlled entities 16 2,410,774 2,216,165
B 5 N H A e zE Trade and other receivables 23 388,600 308,772
AItHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 259,819 205,046
EIERTESMEE Deferred income tax assets 19 264,331 234,018
HMIEmBEE Other non-current assets 20 309,916 174,120
19,765,293 19,625,053
REEE Current assets
=& Inventories 21 3,825,057 3,802,532
EEPYE Properties under development 22 1,256,078 494,427
B 5 R EH A EIGRIE Trade and other receivables 23 9,525,525 8,309,786
BERIHEMEE Held-to-maturity financial assets - 15,000
BURE A TIREFEIE Amounts due from customers
for contract work 24 1,161,194 802,666
TES@MTA Derivative financial instruments 25 3,110 -
EIRRITIF K Pledged bank deposits 26 510,563 557,414
ReRBEELEY Cash and cash equivalents 27 4,038,225 3,249,891
20,319,752 17,231,716
HMEE Total assets 40,085,045 36,856,769
s EQUITY
ERTERBFEA Capital and reserves attributable to
B ERERE owners of the Company
R& 2R Share capital 28 1,110,632 673,367
iR E Share premium 28 1,294,633 354,513
AR AR A AR 78 5 Perpetual subordinated convertible
securities 30 2,781,674 -
HAhfE Other reserves 29 (378,924) 3,816,137
FOBFE Retained earnings 2,764,599 1,794,760
7,572,614 6,638,777
FEIERR R R = Non-controlling interests 3,989,079 4,078,716
R Total equity 11,561,693 10,717,493

BEMt £ 1722 362 A WM X Rk FER A M ISR AKX B -
The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
R=ZF—=—F+=F=+—H As at 31 December 2012

BZ+=-A=+—H1t
As at 31 December

—E-CfF —E——F
. 2012 2011
Bt AREFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5)
(Restated)
aE LIABILITIES
FEREBESF Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 31 4,044,826 4,962,303
RIEFAETHEE Deferred income tax liabilities 19 539,245 526,800
R 1 B B R R WA Deferred income on government grants 32 538,990 576,231
B Provisions - 10,360
B 5 N A ENFE Trade and other payables 35 46,128 24,335
BRREEMEET Retirement and other supplemental
BAEE benefit obligations 33 48,064 46,595
HM3EneaE Other non-current liabilities 34 1,202,424 153,363
6,419,677 6,299,987
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 N E A fE F0E Trade and other payables 35 11,232,783 10,500,403
ENEHIRERP Amounts due to customers for
FRIB contract work 24 200,434 964,180
B Borrowings 31 10,561,740 8,205,377
TAEmIA Derivative financial instruments 25 - 441
MBS AasE Current income tax liabilities 106,526 165,043
RINEEAFETT Retirement and other supplemental
BHEE benefit obligations 33 2,192 3,845
22,103,675 19,839,289
waeE Total liabilities 28,523,352 26,139,276
BEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 40,085,045 36,856,769
REFER Net current liabilities (1,783,923) (2,607,573)
REERRBAEMSR Total assets less current liabilities 17,981,370 17,017,480

F162E32EMZFUBMREN _T—=F=A-T/\BREFSHE LA TIHEFKAREE -

The financial statements on page 162 to 352 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2013 and
were signed on its behalf.

BE R

Director: Wu Guang Quan

£% i

Director: You Lei

BER 1722362 B M T RZ F iR A M IERERMAERED -
The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Company Balance Sheet

R-Z——F+=H=+—H As at 31 December 2012

BZE+=-—BA=+—HL
As at 31 December

—EF-=F —F——F
2012 2011
k=3 AR FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENEE Property, plant and equipment 11 7,131 8,337
RITBRARIAERE Investments in subsidiaries 14 4,515,652 1,687,011
RELE N a]RE Investments in associates 15 298,198 298,198
RERIZESIEENNE Investments in jointly controlled entities 16 2,385,857 -
ARPESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 1,400 1,400
HMIEmBEE Other non-current assets 20 40,000 -
7,248,238 1,994,946
REEE Current assets
B 5 N E A fE Y F0E Trade and other receivables 23 666,609 300,763
ReRBFSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 27 81,117 26,579
747,726 327,342
MEE Total assets 7,995,964 2,322,288
P EQUITY
AAREREBEA Capital and reserves attributable to
LB REREE owners of the Company
R& AR Share capital 28 1,110,632 673,367
&Pt Share premium 28 1,294,633 354,513
KGR AT RS 35 Perpetual subordinated
convertible securities 30 2,781,674 -
Hithfk s Other reserves 29 70,001 70,001
Z5tEE Accumulated losses (395,981) (591,858)
HERER Total equity 4,860,959 506,023

BEFH 551722362 A MM i Rk AR & M IS IR AR ER (D

The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Company Balance Sheet (continued)
W=F—=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2012

BEt+t=-A=+—-HL

As at 31 December

—EF-=F —F——F
2012 2011
k3 ARHEFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
afE LIABILITIES
FREBERE Non-current liabilities
B3 Borrowings 31 - 186,000
HtFERBaE Other non-current liabilities 34 1,050,000 -
1,050,000 186,000
REAEE Current liabilities
B 5 LEMEN A Trade and other payables 35 285,005 316,265
BX Borrowings 31 1,800,000 1,314,000
2,085,005 1,630,265
wmes Total liabilities 3,135,005 1,816,265
HBEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 7,995,964 2,322,288
REFEEE Net current liabilities (1,337,279) (1,302,923)
BEERABAE Total assets less current liabilities 5,910,959 692,023

F162E32EMZEFFBHRREON _T—=F=A-+/\BREFSI & YA TIEEKLREE -
The financial statements on page 162 to 352 were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2013 and
were signed on its behalf.

BE R B% HiE

Director: Wu Guang Quan Director: You Lei

BEF 521722352 A M iE R A AR & BA IS SR O AE AR BB 1D ©

The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-T——F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE+t-—A=+—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—F-—F —F——F
. 2012 2011
it AR¥TFT AR ToT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&&E7)
(Restated)
WA Revenue 6 31,252,572 27,817,178
Fizk=1 0N Cost of sales 38 (27,343,668)  (24,547,910)
EF Gross profit 3,908,904 3,269,268
HEER Distribution costs 38 (1,191,380) (1,037,428)
THER Administrative expenses 38 (1,743,656) (1,594,893)
HEYEN R BEWE Fair value gain on investment properties 12 101,332 38,845
EH A Other income 36 688,367 755,855
Hiblezt,/(F518) —F%  Other gains/(losses) — net 37 37,038 (332)
weERF Operating profit 1,800,605 1,431,315
BB WA Finance income 40 84,298 137,876
BhE B Finance costs 40 (914,556) (702,325)
BB A —F58 Finance costs — net (830,258) (564,449)
FEIEBEE N RD® A Share of profit of associates 15 131,873 143,467
e FE[E) 4 1) B RS Share of profit of jointly controlled entities 16 345,172 171,393
BREF R BIER Profit before income tax 1,447,392 1,181,726
Fri8fiF Income tax charge 42 (182,014) (273,764)
REERER Profit for the year 1,265,378 907,962
PEAE &R : Profit attributable to:
RAFIRERTAA Owners of the Company 969,839 674,556
IR I R A i Non-controlling interests 295,539 233,406
1,265,378 907,962
ARl EAEN Earnings per share attributable to the
B EIRAF - FRA owners of the Company during the year
AREEHIR (RMB per share)
— &R - basic 44 0.8482 0.5823
—#E — diluted 44 0.5072 0.3528
% 8 Dividends 45 = 20,201

FEMIEE172E 352 B MBI E A

A ERAMIEHRRMEREND o

The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T——F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—B——F —E——F
2012 2011
izt AR FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
REERF Profit for the year 1,265,378 907,962
Hitt2mEWE - Other comprehensive income:
AIHHESFEEN A ARLE Fair value gains on available-for-sale
B - RIBRFI K financial assets, gross of tax 18 183 2,699
AIHHESFEENARL{E Fair value gains on available-for-sale
BElE - B financial assets, tax (46) (199)
IS A EYERE  Revaluation gains on transfer of owner-
SRS - RIBRTER occupied property to investment
property, gross of tax 12 6,831 138,336
IS A EYERE  Revaluation gains on transfer of owner-
SHES - Bk occupied property to investment
property, tax 12 (1,708) (34,584)
INEEAT L = RE Currency translation differences 24,267 (65,671)
PG — e 2 AR A% Share of fair value losses on available-
TREENQABERE  for-sale financial assets of an associate 15 - (338)
Frih—MEEt S AR EEWE  Share of revaluation gains on the
AR B ¥R ESH A  transfer of owner-occupied property to
nEERE investment property of an associate 15 - 30,124
FREMZEKE Other comprehensive income for
(FNBRBERK) the year, net of tax 29,527 70,367
FRAEZEARS Total comprehensive income for
(HIRFLFR) the year, net of tax 1,294,905 978,329
FEAS - Attributable to:
—ARRNBEZEFEA — Owners of the Company 996,129 723,472
— IEIERR AR R A - Non-controlling interests 298,776 254,857
FREZEEARE Total comprehensive income for
the year 1,294,905 978,329

F172E352 B BEMTHMI T A

A ERA M HRRWAKED -

The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AERESER
Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE — &+ = A=+—HIL5E For the year ended 31 December 2012
EAAREAEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
XARB
ThkES FER
Perpetual kRER
B&  BRHEE subordinated  Hfpfis AIRHE Non- s
Share Share  convertible Other  Retained A3t controlling Total
capital  premium  securities  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
(it29)
(Note 29
Wi AREFr AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFL
Note RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB000  ARMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
T5E Group
RZE--£-A-A Balance at 1 January 2011,
HEs(BES) as restated 673367 3545513 - 3776100 1140405 5944304 3430044 9383438
2EHE Comprehensive income
FERF Proft for the year - - - - BB 6456 233406 907,982
Eftﬁé@'&?& Other comprehensive income
A ESHERR Fair value gaing on available-for-sale
RAEEREHBTZ)  financiel assets, net of tax - - - 300 - 300 2,200 25500
BiNEER Revaluation gain on transfer of owner-
RENERES occupied property to investment
MERNE property, net of tax 12 - - - 77,559 - 77,559 26,193 103752
ErEER Currency translation differences - - - 8729 - 879 (6.942)  (65,671)
Fri— e N E AL Share of fair value losses on available-
HESHEEL for-sale financial assets of an
DMEEER associate 15 - - - (338) - (3%9) - (338)
il VNG Share of fair revaluation gain on the
%%@;Eﬁxﬁ%% transfer of owner - ocoupied property
BENARBEER to investment property of the
Wz (k) associate, net of tax 15 - - - 30,124 - 30,124 - 30,124
Ep2meka Total other comprehensive income - - - 48916 - 48916 21,451 70,367
2EANE Total comprehensive income - - - 48,916 674,556 123472 264,857 978,329
ERRERRIN Total contributions by and distributions
KAAREA to owners of the Company
BEER recognised directly
HEA R in equity
HELRRFER Transactions with non-controling
B3R5 interests - - - (8,888 - (8,888 (57,579) (66,463)
HENBRA Disposels of subsidiaries - - - - - - (6,467) (6,467)
FERRRER Capital contributed by non-controling
id interests 46 - - - - - - AN 4o
“5——5RE Dividends for 2011 - - - S0 o) (285 (43054)
FAEEALTE Total contributions by and distributions
RBEDR to owners of the Company - - - (8888  (20201) (29089 384815 355726
RZE--£+-B=+-F Balance at 31 December 2011,
HEs(BES) as restated 673,367 354,513 - 8816187 1794760 6638777 4078716 10,717,493
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
HEZT——F+=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BRAEE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARE
TaRES FER
Perpetual REER
B&  BRHEE subordinated  Hfpfi AIRHE Non- 5
Share Share  convertible Other  Retained &3t controlling Total
capital  premium  securities  reserves  earnings Total interests equity
(Hi229)
(Note 29)

Bt AEETr ARETT  ARETL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETL  ARETX
Note RMB000  RMB'000 AMB000  AMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMB'O00  RMB'000

W=Z-Z£-A-BHEH Balance at 1 January 2012 673,367 354,513 - 3816137 1,794,760 6,638,777 4,078,716 10,717,493
2EkE Comprehensive income

EEEA Proft forthe year - - - - 9983 %9839 29553 1265378
AE2ERE Other comprehensive income -

A ESHEAER Fair value gains on available-for-sale

MREERECIRR)  financial assets, net of tax - - - 448 - 448 (311) 137
BENEEARENER Revaluation gain on transfer of owner-

EEHMERGUECGNBRE)  occupied property to investment

property, net of tax 12 - - - 2,337 - 2,337 2,786 5128
NEREER Currency translation differences - - - 23,505 - 23,505 762 24,067
Eermalha Total other comprehensive income - - - 26,290 - 26,290 3,237 29,527
2EANE Total comprehensive income - - - 26,290 969,839 996,129 298,776 1,294,905
EERERRIN Total contributions by and distributions
KAIREALTE to owners of the Company
REEAR recognised directly in equity
SEERRRERNS S Transactions with non-controling
interests 29 - - - (4,892) - (4,892 (9,650) (14,542)
FEBEARIEEERRE  Share of reserve of an associate arising

ERNRANGRE from it's transactions with non-

(HBH) controlling interests 15 - - - (5,196) - (5,19) - (5,196)
Glit1 Merger reserve - - - (211,269 - (211,289 - (211,289
REBAMEINER Issue of domestic shares related to

business combination 28 437,265 940,120 - - - 1317386 - 1,317,388
HEBANES Issue of perpetual subordinated
KARB convertible securities related to
AhRES business combination 30 - - 2,781,674 - - 2781674 - 2781674
HEHBAR Disposals of subsidiaries 4% - - - - - - (338643 (338,649
FERRRES Capital contributed by
1B non-controling interests 46 - - - - - - 4,170 4170
“E-CERS Dividends for 2012 - - - - - - (44,290) (44,290)
FAAERALTE Total contributions by and distributions

REEAK to owners of the Company 265 010 2781674 (4.221.351) - B2 B84y (es009)
RZE-Z#+-B=+-HF Balance at 31 December 2012

fs 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,781,674 (378,924) 2,764,599  7572,614  3989,079 11,561,693

BEMI 1722352 AWM X Mk FiR A M ISRV A E 1 -
The accompanying notes on page 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T——F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—B-—F —E——%F
2012 2011
izt AREFT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(5 E5)
(Restated)
BEFEHEL2HEMRE Cash flows from operating activities
ustesgE e J(FrA)H) Cash generated from/(used in)

e operations 46 2,045,397 (332,153)
BFE Interest paid (976,632) (766,614)
B TSR Income tax paid (252,849) (209,965)
LEEEEL (FTA)B  Net cash generated from/(used in)

FIRE operating activities 815,916 (1,308,732)
REZHELMRELARE Cash flows from investing activities
TR MR Payment for the addition of construction-

in-progress (574,935) (1,190,803)
BEME - BENM&E Purchase of property, plant and

equipment (1,046,173) (1,201,199)
I8 B IR Purchase of mining rights 8 - (10)
fBE T Hh P e Purchase of land use rights 7 (244,465) (24,912)
HEELEE Purchase of intangible assets 10 (18,988) (72,677)
Hi3EmE&EE M Payment for the addition of other non-

(NE current assets (135,796) (6,657)
W EE B R A - Acquisition of subsidiaries,

HRWKIEHNIR S net of cash acquired 49 (2,246) (399,546)
Ui BE B 2 N RIS R Payment for the acquisition of associates 15 (73,730) (571,862)
WS RIS EEMN S Payment for the acquisition of jointly

controlled entities 16 (19,204) (72,636)
LS B AR ® Cash outflow from disposals of
ReHH subsidiaries 46 (5637,393) (635)
I iE — B A E Guarantee deposits for acquisition of a
B subsidiary 26 (216,618) -
W BB /B A B TR Z B Prepayment for the acquisition of
subsidiaries 20 (120,756) -
EEHEEREE Purchase of available-for-sale financial
assets 18 (85,633) (102,760)
HEWE  WER Proceeds from disposals of property,

RGPS TRIA plant and equipment 46 97,580 127,428

HEREYEMESRIE Proceeds from disposals of investment

properties 46 41,942 19,639
HEREEEMSRIE Proceeds from disposals of intangible

assets 35 455
HEHMIERBEE Proceeds from disposals of other non-

FriS 5008 current assets - 1,014
HERREESHEE Proceeds from disposals of available-for-

TS skI8 sale financial assets 45,476 13,122
HERZREHESMEE Proceeds from disposals of held-to-

TS 78 maturity financial assets 15,000 2,761
HERE AR FTERIE Proceeds from disposals of associates 9,746 5
SNBSS Government grants received 326,670 282,131
2UF B Interest received 81,377 137,876
RAEE T B K Loan to related parties (467,136) (289,845)
i EEER Repayments of loan to related parties 171,549 433,605
B WA B Dividends received 279,056 72,094
B EE AN EIR S Net cash used in investing activities (2,474,642) (2,843,412)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HEZT——F+-A=1+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2012

BEt-A=1+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—B-—F —T——%F
2012 2011
HtaE AR¥FT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
MEITHNEESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BB PT1SFRIA Proceeds from borrowings 11,956,045 10,015,008
BEER Repayments of borrowings (10,517,159) (7,520,619)
RAES 7 B 3K Borrowings from related parties 2,239,196 1,379,783
MR T EEER Repayments of borrowings from related
parties (1,310,031) (1,249,181)
B3EIZ RIS MM B Capital contribution to subsidiaries from
NEEE non-controlling interests 46 4,170 471,710
IR A B B A B FEHE AR Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
i PR 2 O R B of subsidiaries (44,290) (22,853)
TR FARATIIREARE  Dividends paid to the shareholders of the
Company - (20,201)
R ERTTIE R Release of collateral for bank borrowings 120,069 23,736
BMEETHEENFHS Net cash generated from financing
activities 2,448,000 3,077,383
RERREZEYHEIM -~ Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
(RD) 35 cash equivalents 789,274 (1,074,761)
FUWIEEL NIRELEMB/Y  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 3,249,891 4,329,084
HINETTEER Currency translation differences (940) (4,432)
FROME MRS ZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,038,225 3,249,891

BEMI 5172523652 B HMIsT A

ZELRAMBRERNVER IS -
The accompanying notes on 172 to 352 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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REPEARLME ([ E )RR
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BRI BRAR ]
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R-E-ZF+—A=+H ARFH
7l B2 o B ZE B T B BRI AR A IR 2 A
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REN([FHERY ) A7 imBERR AR
AE([ERIWE]) (GREIETT ) U
EEHAN AR (THRE] - [RE
2] [RESDRIT=HEBEHE ([ —F
—ZFEWRHE]) - ARF - BHREE - P
R Rt Rin B mP B E TEE
B AB ([T DES

RIFEPMBEROEEHZE  ARFH
fife 47 [F) B W B T o A BB B MR AR R B
ERE - AREREREMIERBERAF
(THE AR 1)100% fekE - A B 2= 4l
EFIBR AR (TEPIAF])100%M4E -
PEMERTEMNBERQR([EMQ
A1 1)100% k42 ~ M BERKERRE
[RARI(EEREF)I7.6%MHE - FEM
ERMBERTEERAR(TITRRA])
100% B ERFTMERBRAB(FHME
BH)40% 3 HE

REEPHFRINZWBERBZE - ARFE
{1 R 2 U T o AR Y B IR AR R
SRR AORES - BURIIfZ
FEHAER 2B (MR AE])100% M
1 o

GENERAL INFORMATION

AVIC International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was established as a joint stock limited company in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its shares
have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 5 February 2013,
the Board announced that the name of the Company has
been changed from CATIC Shenzhen Holdings Limited to
AVIC International Holdings Limited.

Very substantial acquisition:

On 30 November 2010, the Company entered into three
acquisition agreements with AVIC International Holding
Corporation (“AVIC International”), AVIC International
Shenzhen Company Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”), and
Beijing Raise Technology Company Limited (“Beijing
Raise”) (collectively “the Vendors”), respectively in
relation to the acquisition of equity interests (the “Sale
Interest 1”7, “Sale Interest 2” and “Sale Interest 3”) held
by the respective vendors (the “2010 Acquisition”). The
Company, AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing
Raise are all controlled by Aviation Industry Corporation
of China (“AVIC Industry”).

Pursuant to acquisition agreement with AVIC
International, the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire and AVIC International have conditionally agreed
to sell the Sale Interest 1, which represents 100% equity
interests in China National Aero-Technology Beijing
Company Limited (“Beijing Company”), 100% equity
interests in China National Aero-Technology Xiamen
Corporation (“Xiamen Company”), 100% equity interests
in China National Aero-Technology Guangzhou Company
Limited (“Guangzhou Company”), 97.5% equity interests
in China National Aero-Technology Trade and Economy
Development Company Limited (“TED Company”), 100%
equity interests in China National Aero-Technology
International Engineering Company Limited (“Engineering
Company”) and 40% equity interests in AVIC International
Vanke Company Limited (“AVIC Vanke”).

Pursuant to acquisition agreement with AVIC Shenzhen,
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire and
AVIC Shenzhen have conditionally agreed to sell the Sale
Interest 2 held by AVIC Shenzhen, which represents
100% equity interests in Shenzhen Aero Fasteners MFG
Company Limited (“MFG Company”).
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

Pursuant to acquisition agreement with Beijing Raise, the
Company has conditionally agreed to acquire and Beijing
Raise have conditionally agreed to sell the Sale Interest
3 held by Beijing Raise, which represents 20% equity
interests in AVIC Vanke, 90% equity interests in Beijing
AVIC Ruixin Investment Management Company Limited
(“Beijing Ruixin”), 60% equity interests in Chengdu AVIC
Raise Real Estate Company Limited (“Chengdu Raise”),
40% equity interests in Wuxi AVIC Raise Real Estate
Company Limited (“Wuxi Raise”), 50% equity interests
in Shenyang AVIC Raise Industry Company Limited
(“Shenyang AVIC Industry”) and 51% equity interests in
Xi'an AVIC Raise Xikong Real Estate Company Limited
(“Xi’an Raise”).

The 2010 Acquisition was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting and the H share class meeting of the
Company held on 16 February 2011. In July 2011, the
Company received the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission’s approval in principle of
the 2010 Acquisition.

The 2010 acquisition was completed on 5 September
2012 for a total consideration of approximately
RMB4,159,057,000 satisfied by:

(@) Issuing approximately 437,265,000 domestic
shares at the price of RMB3.15 per share to AVIC
International; and

(b) Issuing to AVIC International perpetual subordinated
convertible securities (“PSCS”) in the amount of
approximately RMB1,604,737,000 convertible into
approximately 462,460,000 domestic shares at
the initial conversion price of RMB3.47; and

(@) Issuing to AVIC Shenzhen PSCS in the amount of
approximately RMB118,208,000 convertible into
approximately 34,065,000 domestic shares at the
initial conversion price of RMB3.47; and

(d) Issuing to Beijing Raise PSCS in the amount of
approximately RMB1,058,729,000 convertible into
approximately 305,109,000 domestic shares at
the initial conversion price of RMB3.47.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

Prior to the completion of the 2010 Acquisition, the
Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacture and sales of liquid crystal displays, printed
circuit boards, watches and clocks, mining resources,
property development and hotel operation business. After
completion of the 2010 Acquisition, the principal activities
of the Group extended to trading and logistic services,
ship building, manufacturing and sale of standard parts
and construction services etc.

The office address of the Company is 25/F, Hangdu
Building, CATIC Zone, Shennan Road Central, Futian
District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue on 28 March 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and
derivative financial instruments. The accounting policies
and bases adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements differ from those used in the statutory
accounts of the Group which are prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
(2006) of the People’s Republic of China (“CAS 2006”).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB1,783,923,000, and it had outstanding short term
borrowings of approximately RMB10,561,740,000 which
are due for repayment within the next twelve months.
The Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to fulfill its financial obligations depends on the Group’s
profitability and operating cash flows and the continuing
supports of its lending banks to provide financing.

The Group has been servicing its principal and
interest payment obligations according to the terms
and schedules of the respective agreements for its
borrowings and it has maintained a good credit history.
The directors of the Company are confident that the
Company will be able to roll over its outstanding bank
loans when they are due for repayment in 2013. As at
31 December 2012, the Group had undrawn bank credit
facilities of approximately RMB17,200,000,000 which
can be drawn down when required and the directors are
continuing their efforts to arrange for credit facilities.

Furthermore, the directors will continue to implement
measures to improve the working capital and cash flows
of the Group including closely monitoring daily operating
expenses and ensuring capital expenditures are funded
by specific bank borrowings. They will also arrange to
convert certain short term borrowings into long term
borrowings whenever possible. The directors consider
that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements
on the going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures:

(a) The new or revised standards and amendments
to the existing standards, which are mandatory
for the financial year of the Company beginning
1 January 2012, are either not currently relevant
or have no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(o)

The following new standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2012, and have not been early adopted
by the Group.

° Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial
statements presentation’ regarding other
comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a
requirement for entities to group items
presented in ‘other comprehensive income’
(“OCI”) on the basis of whether they are
potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments).
The amendments do not address which
items are presented in OCI. The above
amendment will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

o IFRS 11 ‘Joint arrangements’ is a more
realistic reflection of joint arrangements by
focusing on the rights and obligations of
the arrangement rather than its legal form.
There are two types of joint arrangement:
joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where a joint operator
has rights to the assets and obligations
relating to the arrangement and hence
accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise
where the joint operator has rights to the
net assets of the arrangement and hence
equity accounts for its interest. Proportional
consolidation of joint ventures is no longer
allowed. The above new standard will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, and is not expected
to have material impact on the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(continued)

(0)

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’
builds on existing principles by identifying
the concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess. The above new
standard will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, and
is not expected to have material impact on
the Group.

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in
other entities’ includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, special purpose vehicles and
other off balance sheet vehicles. The above
new standard will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, and is not expected to have material
impact on the Group.

Amendments to IFRSs 10, 11 and 12 on
transition guidance. These amendments
provide additional transition relief to IFRSs
10, 11 and 12, limiting the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative information
to only the preceding comparative period.
For disclosures related to unconsolidated
structured entities, the amendments
will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before
IFRS 12 is first applied, and is not expected
to have material impact on the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(continued)

(0)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ aims
to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise definition
of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRSs. The requirements do
not extend the use of fair value accounting
but provide guidance on how it should be
applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within IFRSs.
The above new standard will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, and is not expected to have
material impact on the Group.

Amendment to IFRS 7 ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’ on asset and
liability offsetting. The amendments also
require new disclosure requirements which
focus on quantitative information about
recognised financial instruments that are
offset in the statement of financial position,
as well as those recognised financial
instruments that are subject to master
netting or similar arrangements irrespective
of whether they are offset. The above
amendment will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, and is not expected to have material
impact on the Group.

Amendment to IAS 32 ‘Financial
instruments: Presentation’ on asset and
liability offsetting. These amendments
are to the application guidance in IAS
32, ‘Financial instruments: Presentation’,
and clarify some of the requirements for
offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities on the balance sheet. The above
amendment will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, and is not expected to have material
impact on the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(continued)

(0)

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ addresses
the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010. It
replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate
to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured
as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification
depends on the entity’s business model
for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the IAS 39
requirements. The main change is that, in
cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit
risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than profit or loss, unless
this creates an accounting mismatch. The
above new standard will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, and is not expected to have
material impact on the Group.

IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 (Amendments)
“Mandatory effective date and transition
disclosures” delay the effective date to
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, and also modify the relief
from restating prior periods. As part of this
relief, additional disclosures on transition
from IAS 39 to IFRS 9 are required. The
above amendments will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, and is not expected to have
material impact on the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(continued)

(0)

Fourth 2011 annual improvements to
IFRS. The improvements will be effective
for annual periods on or after 1 January
2013, and is not expected to have material
impact on the Group.

IAS 27 (revised 2011) ‘Separate financial
statements’ includes the provisions on
separate financial statements that are left
after the control provisions of IAS 27 have
been included in the new IFRS 10. The
above revised standard will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, and is not expected to have
material impact on the Group.

IAS 19, ‘Employee benefits’, was amended
in June 2011. The impact on the group will
be as follows: to immediately recognise
all past service costs; and to replace
interest cost and expected return on plan
assets with a net interest amount that is
calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability (asset).
The amendment is not expected to have
material impact on the Group.

IAS 28 (revised 2011) ‘Associates and
joint ventures’ includes the requirements
for joint ventures, as well as associates, to
be equity accounted following the issue of
IFRS 11. The above revised standard will
be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013, and is not
expected to have material impact on the
Group.

There are no other IFRS or IFRIC interpretations that
are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.



PA RS IR R MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

mELERE (7)

EREstEst
REE1REN T —FFRBRESS
EEREH TERBZEEAH - 1LIIA
RARBRAARRFHKE - RE2R
RESREZ M IR HLRRF -

R-ZFE——F—AAB  AAFIEEFE
2EMBARFRINTFEH AR EZRF
ODBRAR(IZFEMAA]) EAMET
BHBRAF (DR HEPMIEREKHE
BHAES1% P MRIIEE21.47%) 7]
VWERE  WBEETEHEERR
AR ([FEHARD100%BF AR - K
B A ARKS56,100,000T - WER ZZ
——F-_A-+N\BEK - BEEEEF
NERBTEH AR ZILGE - EA 6
Aig > AFPEREICEAHFERY AP
MIEREITS ARG EPRERE
PEENEBSH -

Hit - BEARTHRE - KE2ERK
EIRFEHARAZUBEMGERIE
ARG ([BEGMAE A
B EAB B RELERNGFIE3IES
SIHRRENAHRE ZAMHEREE]
(T&7H#E5I 55 ) 2 RE LA H R
BMARRRFBHREK - REAHERZ
SR AT B BIEAEREEFE
SALF o

ZERAMBIRR BB EEHESI$S5
FEAIAMNAHEHRANGRE - ZE5RE6
HHEREBEEEAGER WX KE
ehREXR  BUWBEENEBEFKIEHET
ik BEFE - R=_F—F+= A
=+ HERENFEZUEREFTEIRE
EEEZY -

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Application of merger accounting

The 2010 Acquisition disclosed in Note 1 was regarded
as a business combination involving entities under
common control, since the Company and all the
companies in Sales Interest 1, Sales Interest 2 and
Sales Interest 3 were all under common control of AVIC
Industry.

On 5 January 2012, Shenzhen Harmony World Watch
Centre Company Limited (“Harmony Company”), an
indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an acquisition agreement with AVIC Trust
Co., Ltd, which was directly and indirectly owned as to
51% by AVIC Industry and 21.47% by AVIC Shenzhen
respectively. Harmony Company acquired the 100%
equity interest in Liaoning Heng Da Rui Commerce
& Trade Co., Ltd (“Heng Da Rui Company”) at a
consideration of RMB56,100,000. The acquisition was
completed on 28 February 2012, and consequently
Harmony Company obtained control over the Heng
Da Rui Company. As both the combining entity and
the combined entity are ultimately controlled by AVIC
Industry, both before and after the combination, this
transaction is a business combination involving entities
under common control.

Thus, the financial information of the companies acquired
in Sales Interest 1, Sales Interest 2 and Sales Interest 3
and Heng Da Rui Company has been consolidated into
the financial statements of the Company under merger
accounting in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” (“AG 5”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
No adjustment has been made to the net assets or net
profit to achieve consistency of accounting policies as a
consequence of the combination.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared using the principles of merger accounting,
as prescribed in AG 5. These consolidated financial
statements include the balance sheets, income
statements and cash flow statements of the acquired
companies as if they had been in existence throughout
the year, or since its date of incorporation. Comparative
figures as at 31 December 2011 and for the year then
ended have been presented on the same basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Application of merger accounting (continued)
Accordingly, the financial information of the comparative
period presented in this consolidated financial information
has been restated.

RZE——F+-_A=+—8 &K%

The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December

182

ERERNTE 2012:
AARAHET
7 kx|
Amounts —E-ZF
without -
taken into INGIE-X SEH
consideration Merger of DRAZAH
of the effect companies Merger of
of merger under 2010  Heng Da Rui Eid gE5
accounting Acquisition Company  Adjustments Restated
AEETT AREFZ AEEFL AREFT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(i
E ey Non-current assets 18,074,565 4,888,008 129,107 (3,326,387) 19,765,293
TEEE Current assets 7,642,194 13,222,502 21,683 (566,627) 20,319,752
BERE Total assets 25,716,759 18,110,510 150,790 (3,893,014) 40,085,045
FREas Non-current liabilties 4,966,173 1,453,506 - 2 6,419,677
VEIELE Current liabilities 10,037,544 12,542,265 119,314 (595,448) 22,103,675
BaE Total liabilities 15,003,717 13,995,771 119,314 (595,450) 28,523,352
BA& Share capital 1,110,632 2,570,000 51,000 (2,621,000) 1,110,632
] Share premium 1,204,633 - - - 1,204,633
KARBABSES Perpetual subordinated convertible
securities 2,781,674 - - - 2,781,674
Eikifs Other reserves 1,119,511 375,156 - (1,873,591) (378,924)
RBEH Retained eamings 913,795 796,257 (19,524) 1,074,071 2,764,599
RAAEREEAES Capital and reserves attrioutable to
RAREE owners of the Company 7,220,245 3,741,413 31,476 (3,420,520) 7,572,614
FERRFER Non-controling interests 3,492,707 373,326 - 122,956 3,989,079
@n Total equity 10,713,042 4,114,739 31,476 (3,207,564) 11,561,693
BRERNEE Total equity and liabilities 25,716,759 18,110,510 150,790 (3,893,014) 40,085,045
nEFaRE Net current liabilities (2,395,350 680,237 (97,631) 28,821 (1,783,923)
BEENRHERE Total assets less current liabilities 15,679,215 5,568,245 31,476 (3,297,566) 17,981,370
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2 WBEXE &) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
RZE——F+—_A=+—"H £H&%8 The consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
EBERNTE 2011:

“T-TF
FR Wigz
—T——F NG TEH

FRETZT Merger of  ARZA&G

Originally ~ companies Merger of
stated in 2011 under 2010  Heng Da Rui HE Rl
annual report  Acquisition Company  Adjustments Restated
ANEBFT ANEEFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

()

FRBEE Non-current assets 11,997,646 7,555,351 132,839 (60,783) 19,625,053
TEBE Current assets 6,798,507 10,464,299 32,985 (64,075) 17,231,716
BEE Total assets 18,796,153 18,019,650 165,824 (124,858) 36,856,769
FERHEE Non-current liabilities 5,202,737 1,097,250 - - 6,299,987
mEaE Current liabilities 7,977,451 11,794,950 130,963 (64,075) 19,839,289
waE Total liabilities 13,180,188 12,892,200 130,963 (64,075) 26,139,276
BB Share capital 673,367 1,421,600 51,000  (1,472,600) 673,367
BiDHE Share premium 354513 - - - 354,513
HiofEE Other reserves 537,563 1,924,936 - 1353638 3,816,137
REEF Retained earnings 702,850 1,159,649 (16,139) (51,600) 1,794,760

AAAERBAAENL  Capital and reserves

PR Rk attributable to owners
of the Company 2,268,293 4,506,185 34,861 (170,562) 6,638,777
SRR R R R Non-controlling interests 3,347,672 621,265 - 109,779 4,078,716
el ey Total equity 5,615,965 5,127,450 34,861 (60,783) 10,717,493
HWEERARE Total equity and liabilities 18,769,153 18,019,650 165,824 (124,858) 36,856,769
TEFaE Net current liabilities (1,178,944)  (1,330,651) (97,978) - (2,607,573)

BEERRBER Total assets less current
liabilities 10,818,702 6,224,700 34,861 (60,783) 17,017,480
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2 REEEs) 2  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
AT AERIZESEHGREBEROEE The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from
& the common control combination on the consolidated

income statement:

HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—B8I1LFE The consolidated income statement for the year ended
HERE K - 31 December 2012:
A Raftest
7 kx|
Amounts —E-EE
without il -l
taken into AFEH SEH
consideration Merger of INGIPACY
of the effect companies Merger of
of merger  under 2010  Heng Da Rui il &E3
accounting Acquisition Company  Adjustments Restated

ARRFR  ARBTx  AREFr  ARETZ  AREFZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

i

WA Revenue 10,772,476 20,481,301 3,909 (5,114) 31,252,572
REEEH Profit for the year 528,570 653,957 (3,385) 86,236 1,265,378
HEgz—_T——F+-_A=1+—HIEF The consolidated income statement for the year ended
EMRERERNTE 31 December 2011:
“E-TF
R bt v NAE
—F——F AAlaf FEH HRAH
ERAEZF Merger of DAz AH Elimination
Originally stated companies Merger of of the
in 2011 under 2010 HengDaRui  intercompany ]
annual report Acquisition Company balance Restated
NEEFT NEEFT NEETFT NEEFT NEBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
f)
WA Revenue 10,435,966 17,382,245 2,815 (3,848) 27,817,178
KEEER Profit for the year 486,377 437,558 (16,139) 166 907,962
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AT AXRZHAHES REROYEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

S/ .
A

=

BE-_E——Hf+-A=+—R1LtFE

MFEERERER

The following is a reconciliation of the effect arising from

the common control combination on the consolidated

statement of cash flows:

The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2012:

RetR&EH
SR ECeE
Amounts
without
taken into aptest
consideration %1
of the effect Impact of
of merger merger RE
accounting accounting Restated
AREFIT AR¥FT ABR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEHELR D Net cash inflow generated from
MAFEE operating activities 1,333,461 (517,545) 815,916
KREEBFRARE Net cash outflow used in
T FER investing activities (2,238,105) (236,537)  (2,474,642)
REEEARS Net cash inflow generated from
MAFEE financing activities 825,373 1,622,627 2,448,000
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2 mBEZE ) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
HEE-_ZE——F+_-_A=+—RHIt=F The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
EWGEEHEeRERNTE ended 31 December 2011:

R
—ET——F GHfEE
FHRAZET R
Originally Impact of
stated in 2011 merger LE5
annual report accounting Restated
AREFr AR®TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEEHARS Net cash outflow used in
T EER operating activities (505,369) (803,363) (1,308,732)
KRETHMARS Net cash outflow used in
Piplape:x: investing activities (1,423,067)  (1,420,345)  (2,843,412)
BMEFESEARS Net cash inflow generated from
MAFER financing activities 1,244,701 1,832,682 3,077,383
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The above adjustment represents adjustment
to eliminate the share capital of the combining
entities against the investment cost. The
difference has been made to the merger reserve
in the consolidated financial statements, and
the adjustments to eliminate the intercompany
transactions, receivable and payable balances
between the Group and companies under 2010
Acquisition companies and Heng Da Rui Company
were eliminated.

No other significant adjustments were made to
the net assets and net profit or loss of any entities
or businesses as a result of the common control
combination to achieve consistency of accounting
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

3.1 Subsidiaries
3.1.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. The Group
also assesses existence of control where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial
and operating policies by virtue of de-facto
control.

De-facto control may arise in
circumstances where the size of the
Group’s voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of other
shareholders give the Group the power to
govern the financial and operating policies,
etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

3.1.1 Consolidation (continued)

Except for business combinations applying
business combination involving entities
under common control as detailed in
Note 3.1.1(a) below, subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances,
income and expenses on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

(@) Business combination involving
entities under common control
For business combination involving
entities under common control, the
consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common
control combination occurs as if
they had been combined from the
date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining
entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective.
No amount is recognised in
consideration for goodwill or excess
of acquirers’ interest in the net
fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of
common control combination, to
the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Subsidiaries (continued)
3.1.1 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

Business combination involving
entities under common control
(continued)

The consolidated income statement
includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where
there is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements
are presented as if the entities or
businesses had been combined at
the previous balance sheet date or
when they first came under common
control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies
is adopted by those entities. All
intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between combining entities or
businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Subsidiaries (continued)
3.1.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Subsidiaries (continued)
3.1.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Business combination other than
involving entities under common
control (continued)

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to
be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
IAS39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as
the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the
fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Subsidiaries (continued)
3.1.1 Consolidation (continued)

(©)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Subsidiaries (continued)

3.1.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis
of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates and jointly controlled entities
Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights.

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture
established as a corporation, partnership or other
entity in which the ventures have their respective
interests and establish a contractual arrangement
among them to define joint control over the
economic activity of the entity.

Investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates and jointly
controlled entities includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(continued)

If the ownership interest in associates and jointly
controlled entities are reduced but significant
influence are retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
movements in other equity items is recognised in
other reserves of the Group with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in
associates and jointly controlled entities equal or
exceed its interest in the associates and jointly
controlled entities, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associates and jointly controlled
entities are impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associates and jointly controlled entities
and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of profit of associates’ or ‘share
of profit of jointly controlled entities’ in the income
statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates and Group.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates and jointly controlled entities have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments
in associates and jointly controlled entities are
recognised in the income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the board of directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the functional currency of the Company
and the presentation currency of the
Group.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(®)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
related to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of
the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or
loss, and other changes in the carrying
amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included
in other comprehensive income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

- Income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions);
and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation
(that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly
controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the
company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or
jointly controlled entities that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control) the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is provided using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, after deducting the
estimated residual value. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Buildings
Leasehold improvement
Machinery and Equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer and

electronic equipment
Mining structures*
Other equipment

10 to 50 years
3 to 5 years

5 to 30 years
5 to 18 years
3 to 10 years

10 to 20 years
5to 13 years

Mining structures comprise the main and
auxiliary mine shafts and underground tunnels.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other gains/(losses) — net’
in the income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the income statement as part
of a valuation gain or loss in ‘fair value gain on
investment properties’.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be
made when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by:

(a) commencement of owner-occupation,
for a transfer from investment property to
owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a
view to sale, for a transfer from investment
property to properties under development;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from owner-occupied property to
investment property; or

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Investment property (continued)
commencement of an operating lease
to another party, for a transfer from
inventories to investment property.

(d)

When an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, which is measured as fair

value,

(@)

Any resulting decrease in the carrying
amount of the property is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any resulting increase in the carrying
amount is treated as follows:

(i)

To the extent that the increase
reverses a previous impairment
loss for that property, the increase
is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount recognised in profit or
loss does not exceed the amount
needed to restore the carrying
amount to the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net
of depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised.

Any remaining part of the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and increases the
revaluation surplus within equity.
On subsequent disposal of the
investment property, the revaluation
surplus included in equity may be
transferred to retained earnings. The
transfer from revaluation surplus
to retained earnings is not made
through profit or loss.

For a transfer from investment property carried
at fair value to owner-occupied property, the
property’s deemed cost is its fair value at the date
of change in use.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Intangible assets

@

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Gooawill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the
fair value of the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups
of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(®)

(c)

(@)

()

Trademarks and licenses

Separately acquired trademarks and
licences are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
and licences have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost of trademarks and licences over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software programmes
are capitalised on the basis of the costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful lives of
5 to 10 years on a straight-line basis.

Cost associated with developing
or maintaining computer software
programmes which do not generate
economic benefits are recognised as
expense as incurred.

Patents

Patents are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Maritime right of use

Maritime right of use are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of 10-50
years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

3.10

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of mining rights is calculated on unit
of production method basis.

Land use rights

All land in the PRC is stated-owned and no
individual ownership right exists. The Group
acquired the rights to use certain land and the
premiums paid for such rights are recorded as
land use rights.

Land use rights which are held for self-use are
stated at cost and amortised over the remaining
period of the leases on a straight-line basis.

Land use rights which are held for development
for sale are inventories and measured at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Land use rights are
transferred to properties under development upon
commencement of development.

Construction-in-progress
Construction-in-progress represents plant and
other property, machinery and equipment under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes
the costs of construction, the costs of plant and
machinery, and interest charges arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during
the period of construction or installation and
testing. When the assets concerned are available
for use, the costs are transferred to property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policies as stated above.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11

3.12

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for
example, goodwill or intangible assets not
ready to use — are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

3.12.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivable
and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.12 Financial assets (continued)
3.12.1 Classification (continued)

(b)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be
settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period,
these are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and
other receivables comprise ‘trade
and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ and ‘pledged
bank deposit’ in the balance sheet
(Note 3.17 and Note 3.18).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management
intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.12 Financial assets (continued)

3.12.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

When securities classified as available for
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the income statement
as ‘gains and losses from investment
securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14
@

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14
(b)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14

3.15

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(c) Assets classified as held-to-maturity
financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payment and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
position intention and ability to hold it
maturity. If the Group were to sell other
than an insignificant amount of held-
to-maturity financial assets, the whole
category would be tainted and reclassified
as available for sale. Held-to-maturity
financial assets are included in non-current
assets, except for those with maturities
less than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as
current assets.

(d) Assets classified as derivative financial
instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The Group’s
derivative instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes
in the fair value of the Group’s derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Trading derivative are defined
as a current asset and liability.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.16

3.17

3.18

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to
the sale proceeds of properties in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expense and the anticipated costs to completion,
or by management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Development cost of property comprises land
use rights, construction costs, capitalised finance
costs and professional fees incurred during the
development period of a normal operating cycle.
On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

If a property under development becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment. Property under development for
future use as investment property is classified as
investment property under construction.

Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and
deposits held at call with banks.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

3.21

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to owners of the Company
until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
Where such shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received (net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects) is included in equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities
Perpetual convertible securities issued by
the Group gives the right to the holder to
convert those securities into a fixed number
of the Company’s shares at any time at a
fixed exercise price per share. The perpetual
convertible securities have no maturity date and
are not redeemable. These securities are equity
instruments.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition and construction of a property,
plant and equipment that needs a substantially
long period of time of acquisition and construction
for its intended use commence to be capitalized
and recorded as part of the cost of the asset
when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs have been incurred, and the activities
relating to the acquisition and construction that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use have commenced. The capitalization of
borrowing costs ceases when the asset under
acquisition or construction becomes ready for
its intended use, the borrowing costs incurred
thereafter are recognized in income statement.
Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended
when the acquisition or construction of a property,
plant and equipment is interrupted abnormally and
the interruption lasts for more than 3 months, until
the acquisition or construction is resumed.

For a borrowing that is specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amounts of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are the
actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing
during the period less any investment income on
the temporary investment of these borrowings.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

Borrowing costs (continued)

For the other borrowings related to acquisition,
construction and production of a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation shall be the lower of the actual
borrowing costs incurred and the amount
of qualifying asset not financed by specific
borrowings multiplying capitalisation rate. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average interest
rate of these borrowings. All other borrowing
costs are expensed.

Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised when incurred.
When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable. When
the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the
contract will be profitable, contract revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract. When
it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that they have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount
to be recognised in a given period. The stage of
completion is determined based on the completion
of a physical proportion of the contract work by
reference to the cost incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated
budgeted cost for each contract.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24

3.25

Construction contracts (continued)

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceed progress billings. Progress billings not
yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross
amount due to customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses).

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(®)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

3.26 Employee benefit

@

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Pension obligations and other
supplementary benefit obligations

The full-time employees of the Group in the
PRC are covered by various government
sponsored pension plans under which
the employees are entitled to a monthly
pension based on certain formulas.
The relevant government agencies are
responsible for the pension liability to
these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these
pension plans. Under these plans, the
Group has no obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed
as incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.26 Employee benefit (continued)

@

Pension obligations and other
supplementary benefit obligations
(continued)

The Group also provided supplementary
pension subsidies to certain retired
employees in the PRC. Such
supplementary pension subsidies are
considered to be defined benefit plans as
the Group is obligated to provide post-
employment benefits to these employees.
The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheets in respect of these defined
benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the balance
sheet date, together with adjustments for
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent qualified actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates of
government securities which have maturity
approximating to the terms of the related
pension liability. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions in excess
of 10% of the defined benefit obligation
are charged or credited to profit or loss
immediately. Past-service costs are
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statements, unless the changes
to the pension plan are conditional on
the employees remaining in service for a
specified period of time (the vesting time).
In this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.26 Employee benefit (continued)

(®)

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Termination benefits and early retirement
benefits

Termination and early retirement benefits
are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination and early retirement benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to
either: (i) terminating the employment
of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or (i) providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. The
specific terms vary among the terminated
and early retired employees depending on
various factors including position, length
of service and district of the employee
concerned. Benefits falling due more than
12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present
value.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.27

Research and development

Research expenditures is recognised as
an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on
development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new and improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

o it is technically feasible to complete the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use;

° management intends to complete the

intangible asset and use or sell it;

o there is an ability to use or sell the
intangible asset;

o it can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

° the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development can
be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development cost previously recognised
as an expense is not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs
are recorded as intangible assets and amortised
from the point at which the asset is ready for use
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.28

3.29

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are
recognised when: the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties
and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities,
as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods
Sale of goods are recognised when a
Group entity has delivered products to the
customer. The customer has accepted the
products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Contract revenue
Revenue from individual construction
contracts is recognised by using the
“percentage of completion method” (Note
3.24).

(c) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties
leased out under an operating lease is
recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

(d) Services income
Revenue from rendering of services is
recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

f Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income on government grants and are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. After initial recognition,
an issuer of such a contract shall measure it at
the higher of the best estimate of the obligation
and the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation calculated to
recognise the fee income earned on a straight line
basis over the life of the guarantee contract.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk
(i Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s activities are principally
conducted in RMB. Although majority
of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, the Group is still
subject to foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in non-RMB, including US
dollars (“USD”), European dollars (“EUR”),
Arab Emir. dirham (“AED”), Venezuelan
bolivar (“VEF”), Sri Lankan rupee (“LKR”),
Kenyan shilling (“KES”), Hong Kong dollars
(*HKD”), Tanzanian shilling (“TZS”), Algerian
dinar (“DzZD”), Japanese yen (“JPY”),
Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”), Uganda Shilling
(“UGX”"), Korean won (“KRW”), Swiss franc
(“CHF”), Great Britain pounds (“GBP”)
etc. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. In addition,
the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange controls
promulgated by the PRC government.
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4 B EEEIE &) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) TWEEGE) (a)  Market risk (continued)

1] SME R R (42 ) (i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
REBAINERE 2 B The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign
BEEREKAENS AL currency denominated monetary assets
HEHZEEEWNT : and monetary liabilities at the respective

balance sheet dates are as follows:

—2-C-F —F—F
t=A=t-8 +=A=t—H

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
ARETT ANREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(F=E7))
(Restated)

BE Assets
eI usD 3,386,632 2,399,544
BT EUR 306,447 130,196
P Bt 8 2eh iy 4 AED 152,823 200,713
T NEGhLER VEF 147,644 -
HMEREREL LKR 136,383 346,576
BRDLAS KES 47,737 30,002
BT HKD 39,399 82,433
HERRES TZS 36,197 29,220
BT 8 e 1|25 BB 4N R DZD 29,234 15,339
H JPY 9,831 3,569
BRADME R MYR 7,071 -
BT KRW 6,699 6,330
I ARD CHF 4,578 -
W GBP 296 761
EFELES UGX 290 1,261
i Others 62,585 119,626
HET Total 4,373,846 3,365,570
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4 BERREEZ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) TWERERGE) (@)  Market risk (continued)
1] SNEE R (4B ) (i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
—F-=F 5

+=A=+-A +=A=t+-A

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&=5)
(Restated)

&& Liabilities
ETT usD 2,600,850 3,022,095
HEBRER LKR 382,856 629
BT HKD 308,389 221,549
BT EUR 296,440 194,685
o Bt B 26k 4y 4 AED 239,355 272,706
= JPY 123,311 130,934
MM EFIEEHRR DZD 58,866 44,606
HEEEES TZS 26,119 2,974
BEREES KES 18,470 18,470
EFELS UGX 2,610 2,610
mmry: CHF 2,289 -
BRATME R MYR 442 _
T KRW 259 1,841
Hib Others 3,018 51,505
MmEt Total 4,063,274 3,964,604

FRERERBRAERAT 20120 EHE 227



SRR M

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 BHEREESE) 4
(@ WEEREGE) (a)
0 SMNERE(E)
TRETARERL BRI

B4 Bt B L FH(B6% 0 B¢
RS BT ° ARG 5T
8 @ IE AN I 8 1 K 0
HR - WEFERS AN
RSB A E B -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis on profit before tax of a 5%
increase in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the year end for the respective changes
in rate.

—E-—F —E——%F

2012 2011
AR¥FTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
HETIEERAES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against US Dollar
FEEBBBLEF L), (Decrease)/increase in the profit
&N before tax for the year (39,289) 31,128
HABTTIERFAES% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against Hong Kong Dollar
FEREFIE M Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 13,450 6,956
HHT B R RE LI R 5% appreciation in exchange rate
FE5% against Sri Lankan rupee
FEEBRBMALEFILIN,  Increase/(decrease) in the profit
(R ) before tax for the year 12,324 (17,297)
HENIBRAIREERTFHE 5% appreciation in exchange rate
5% against Venezuelan bolivar
FERBANG MR Decrease in the profit before tax
for the year (7,382) -
HBEERAESY% 5% appreciation in exchange rate
against Japanese Yen
FEBRBRDNR IS0 Increase in the profit before tax
for the year 5,674 6,368
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4 BHEREESE)
(@) TWHEERGE)

@) B
NN LIRS e IE B
PTEABRR B A EER
BERIAATHEESRE
E - AR EE R ARE S
ERRR(HE18) - A&
BFEERAAHEE SR
BEMNERERILTERK -

(i)  HE2RERILEEFF
2R
RS R R B E 2K
BER o WFEBF REIT
MERSAEEAZTR
MEMERER - ZEEF
RETOBRSAEE A
XAnBEMERR - X
& E B A3 8 A A
Ris P - Rl - A&k
EenA®EEREEL
MERRER -

IR AR A L B B
TET  MER=ZF—Z
F+-A=+—HZz#

HARBFERAN 2 HE -

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk of its A share investments in
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange which are
classified on the consolidated balance
sheet as available-for-sale financial assets
(Note 18). The exposure of the price risk
of available-for-sale financial assets is not
material to the Group.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The table below summaries the impact of
changes in interest rate at 31 December
2012 with all other variables held at
constant on the Group’s profit for the year.

Fl =
Interest rate
10% L7 10% T &
10% higher 10% lower
FEBFCRL), /B
(Decrease)/increase
in profit for the year

ARETIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

TR EER Borrowings at variable rates
REVERA (3B ), 5t A (Charged)/credited to finance costs (45,042) 45,042

REBERZFREER
HAPAB 5319 55 ©

The interest rates and terms of repayment
of borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
Note 31.
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MRRRER#E)

(b)

FERR
AEERREMREEEY
MHRBEER=EA < EMEFER
RRHIR 2 M B 5 5 H A WK
FAZEERR -

AEEBABIRERREEE
M ERRBRSEEEENHE
BRAESHEE ARES 25
BROBNBREBDRITHES - R|RIT
FRRZREERRERAFE
WEITEN A -

B REMEWRIEB L FHEE
BAEEREBMEEMEYNR
AKEERR R-_T——F+—
A=+—B M AKEFPHES
o L A 8 U 20 T8 45 R ) 8128 9% ( —
T——1F 1 24%) °

AEBE-RAREEPERHOTHE
B-FOERAAR - BTHEMA
m o AKEE SRR KR
DTN E23KE - ERETEH
B8 5 N HE b YR IR 2 AT W [El
HETER RERIFE  EER
BENREE  BERERE
B AR BUIR R K B AR B (B 75 A
ERBEMFZE - NEER K
B 5 M E AR FIA 2 B KR
BEJREHESERN  EFAR
B B AJ U B R AT 3R B S
o

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with
initial term of over three months, restricted cash,
and trade and other receivables.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are held in state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. None of
cash at bank, bank deposits and restricted cash
of the Group that were fully performing has been
renegotiated during the year.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. The top 5 customers accounted for more
than 28% of the balance of trade and other
receivables as at 31 December 2012 (2011: 24%).

The Group normally grants credit terms of not
more than 1 year to existing customers without
collaterals. Aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 23. Management
makes periodic collective assessment as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.
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(b)

(c)

FERR(E)
MEFHA R mEAMERRR
Az &=mEARE

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements:

rEEESER
Group Maximum exposure
=F—-F —F—F
2012 2011
AREFT AERETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAEEBERINERE Credit risk exposure relating to off-
FEERRE : balance sheet items:
B HER Financial guarantees 733,018 270,000
REE S @R (c)  Liquidity risk

AEBEFEEBEBARRE
AR B S & @A AR B BR
TEE(BEEHERYRTE
FBRERCEERERRDED
R X"EBEESE P
LREBRASENRBES MRS
REEHE - FIFH2HME2 -

TREBEZBRTHHEZAH
A DN - BAEERAR
AHZEITESRABES REBE
HBEAR -  ZRABENSER
BHARMRBER - ARITIRG
FEIK BRTZEAREE
MRS N A ARE AR -

The board of directors of the Group manage the
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash to meet
the normal operating commitments and sourcing
adequate funding through banking credit facilities,
including short-term and long-term bank loans.
The board of directors of the Group have further
assessed and managed the liquidity and going
concern issue of the Group. Please refer to Note
2 for detail.

The table below analyses the Group’s and
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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B EEREE ()

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) FEBESLEARE) (¢) Liquidity risk (continued)
HME 122% 2255 BiB5E
Lessthan  Betweeni1  Between 2 Over o
iyear and2years and 5 years 5 years Total
ABETFL  AREFT ARETT  ARETn  AREFZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
piN-3 | Group
R=B-—£+=B=1-HF At 31 December 2012
B Borrowings 11,008,384 1,304,205 2,699,049 477405 15,579,043
B REMENTE Trade and other payables
(MRsEemaR) (excluded non-financial liabilities) 7,097,751 46,128 - - 7143879
EfFERBakE Other non-current liabllties 71,049 133,625 1,196,643 1,180 1,402,497
FBERAY Financial guarantee contracts 458,018 135,000 - 140,000 733,018
& Total 18,725,202 1,618,958 3,895,692 618,585 24,858,437
PRIE 15256 PN e oloked
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over Bzt
Tyear and2years  and 5 years 5 years Total
ANEEFT AREFT  AEEFT  ARETT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZ-—-%+=F=+-H: At31December 2011,
FER ] as restated
Ex Borrowings 8,730,219 1,308,129 3,225,018 888,788 14,152,154
BHREMENTE Trade and other payables
(MBS RaRE) (excluded non-financial liabilties) 7,526,255 24,335 - - 7,550,590
EbERBEE Other non-current liablties 20,118 6,755 112,483 41,180 180,536
HBEREY Financial guarantee contracts - 270,000 - - 270,000
@5t Total 16,276,592 1,609,219 3,337,501 929,968 22,153,280
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B EEEE ) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) NREEMEE (d) Fair value estimation

TREZREEEDMIRA L EES The table below analyses financial instruments

E7&MITEAE - FRIKNMNERE carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

™ different levels have been defined as follows:

o FifEEENBELERM . Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
% ERmE CREFHE)(F markets for identical assets or liabilities
—#) o (level 1).

D BRE—RATBEENRE o Inputs other than quoted prices included
Gy BESBENAEE within level 1 that are observable for the
(BB ) s Rz (BB S asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
BH)EBRmERAEB(E prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
&) e prices) (level 2).

o I IER 1B Al B T 5 B o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
ErMmEElaEn AE based on observable market data (that is,
(BN AR AE)(FE= unobservable inputs) (level 3).

) e

TRHEIWARAZZE—ZF+_A The following table presents the Group’s assets

—t+—HAEEEZEAAREBEE that are measured at fair value at 31 December

ZERE o 2012,

-4 -t | A CH)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ANEETFT AE®Tn AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EE Assets

fTHESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 3,110 - 3,110

EHESRHERE Available-for-sale financial assets 23,449 - 236,370 259,819

BEE Total assets 23,449 3,110 236,370 262,929
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MBEREREE) 4
(d) 2AAREEMRETE) (d)

TRHFIR_F——F+_H
=t -HAKRERAAEEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31

ZEBEREE - December 2011,
F—1K E-M E=/ B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ANREFL  ANREFT AREFT AREFTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
EZNHEHEE Held-to-maturity financial assets - 15,000 - 15,000
EHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 23,976 - 181,070 205,046
HWEE Total assets 23,976 15,000 181,070 220,046
=i Liabilities
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - 441 - 441

RREEBTHEEENERTA
RABEREREHROT ISR
BE - REEBRMIS IR &
HRERERZ A - EiHER -
BN TEER  RERKHL
RERBRESRENTS > MA
BHRERKREET  ARAVEAR
FEBETHNMERS - AKHE
i RMEEMMANTSRER
ERERE - RZFLTESHIR
F—F - F-AMBRENTAR
SAREERE

REBMSTEEENERTA
DABEDLNBEERNEE
HEXMEENBABRM S
BE)  FELOKEERZE
EfbE - MEEESRTANDAR
BEMBAEEABASIUBEE
g BIZemIAIIAE K-

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise
equity investments in A shares.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.
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ARG zELEEREHEESE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Fair value estimation (continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial
assets between level 1 and level 2 fair value
hierarchy classifications.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current
financial assets, including cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and
the Group’s current financial liabilities including
trade and other payables and current borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year are assumed
to approximate their fair values. The fair value
of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level
3 instruments for the year ended 31 December
2012.

AHHE

EHMEE

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

RS Opening balance 181,070
NE Additions 84,066
RS HERH BB (Mt 18) Transfer to jointly controlled entities (Note 18) (640)
HE Disposals (28,126)
BR & #R Closing balance 236,370
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e)

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including ‘current and non-current
borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2012 and
2011 are as follows:

—E-—F —E——%F

2012 2011

AR¥FT AREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&g=E5)

(Restated)

BB Total borrowings (i) 16,661,917 14,498,064
B RERIRSEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents

(Hizo7) (Note 27) (4,038,225) (3,249,891)

BEFE Net debt 12,623,692 11,248,173

R Total equity 11,561,693 10,717,493

FER2YIN Total capital 24,185,385 21,965,666

BEARAELE Gearing ratio 52% 51%
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Capital risk management (continued)

(e)

(i)

Total borrowings comprised borrowings of
RMB14,606,566,000 (2011: RMB13,167,680,000)
(Note 31), borrowings included in other non-
current liabilities of RMB1,190,000,000 (2011:
RMB140,000,000) (Note 34), and borrowings
included in trade and other payables of
RMB865,351,000 (2011: RMB1,190,384,000)
(Note 35).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

5.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment
of receivables based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables with reference to the extent and
duration that the amount will be recovered.
Provisions are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification
of potential impairment requires the use
of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the period in which such estimate has been
changed.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

®)

(c)

Mineral resources reserves

Mineral resources reserves and the
amortisation method are key factors in
the calculation of amortisation of mining
rights. Mineral resources reserves are
also an important element in testing for
impairment. Changes in mineral resources
reserves will affect amortisation recorded in
the financial statements for mining rights.
A reduction in proven developed reserves
will increase amortisation charges. Proven
reserve estimates are subject to revision,
either upward or downward, based on
new information, such as from changes in
economic factors, including product prices,
contract terms, evolution of technology or
development plans.

Impairment of mining rights and property,
plant and equipment

Mining rights and property, plant
and equipment are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and
depreciation. These carrying amounts
are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.
In estimating the recoverable amounts of
assets, various assumptions, including
future cash flows to be associated with
the mining rights and depreciation and
discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions,
the recoverable amounts will need to be
revised, and this may have an impact
on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position. Management considered
that there was no impairment charge
required to be made to the carrying value
of the mining rights and property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2012.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

(@)

(e

Investment property valuation

The Group’s certain investment properties
are located in areas where there are no
active property market, in such cases, the
fair value is estimated by discounted cash
flow method, which involves a number of
key assumptions, including market rents,
occupancy rates, discounts rates. The
assumptions require the use of judgment
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value
of investment and fair value gain/loss on
investment property in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Recognition of deferred income tax assets
Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may
be different.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
5.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

®

9
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Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment annually
or, whenever there is an indication of
impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3.11. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. These calculations
require the use of estimates (Note 9).

Construction contracts

The Group uses the percentage-of-
completion method to account for its
contract revenue. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to the contract
costs incurred to date compared to the
estimated total costs for the contract.

Significant assumptions are required to
estimate the total contract costs and in
making these estimates, management has
relied on past experience and industry
knowledge. Management monitors the
progress of the construction and reviews
periodically the estimated total costs for
each contract as the contract progresses.

If the actual costs differ from management’s
estimates, the revenue, cost of sales and
provision for foreseeable losses would be
adjusted.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

5.2

Critical judgments

De facto control in certain subsidiaries

The Group’s equity interests held in two listed
subsidiaries, Tianma Micro-electronics Co. Ltd.
(the “Tianma”) and Fiyta Holdings Limited (the
“Fiyta”), were 45.62% and 41.49% respectively,
other equity interests are widely held by public
interests. The Group’s voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of other
shareholders give the Group the power to govern
the financial and operating policies. As such, the
directors of the Company considered that the
Group has maintained de facto control of these
subsidiaries despite its equity interests in these
two subsidiaries are below 50% and the Group
continued to report them as subsidiaries.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. Management
has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the board of directors that are used
to make strategic decisions.

The board considers the business from a product
perspective. The Group is organised into five business
segments:

° High-tech Electronic Products — manufacture
and sales of liquid crystal displays, printed circuit
boards and standard parts

° Retails and High-end Consumer Products —
manufacture and sales of mechanical and branded
quartz timepieces

° Real Estate and Hotel — providing construction
services, real estate development and hotel
operation

° Trading and Logistics — trading of commodities,

ship building and providing logistic services

° Resources Investment and Development — mining
and sales of minerals

The board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the profit.

Segment assets consist primarily of land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
construction-in-progress, inventories, properties under
development, trade and other receivables and cash and
equivalents.

Inter-segment revenue are carried out according to the
terms and conditions agreed by both parties.

The segment information provided to the board of
directors for the reportable segments for the year ended
31 December 2012 is as follows:
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6 HPBERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
AEENDHBERSWTOT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s segment information is as
follows:
H2-R-“EtR=T-HLEE
Year ended 31 December 2012
ZERER BRRE
HER SR
E75MH  Retallsand  HEREE Resources
High-tech  High-end Real E5M%  Investment
Electronic ~ Consumer Estate Trading and and KAEER st
Products ~ Products  and Hotel  Logistics Development Unallocated Total
PHEE Segment results
RENIZERSLMA  Revenue from external customers 6,779,206 2,087,657 2,769,814 17,656,704 1,058,991 - 31,052,572
APEA Inter-segment revenue 1,106 4,008 - - - - 5,114
S Segment results 321,245 227,404 99,019 305,154 (18575 (51,219) 973,868
At Hi36) Other income (Note 36) 301,818 25,209 1,128 286,196 70,661 3355 668,37
Higlz/(B18) -8  Other gains/(osses) - net
(His7) (Note 37) (7,053) 299 1,243 66,825 (23,971) (305) 37,038
RENELAEGBNE  Fair value gain on investment
Wi12) properties (Note 12) 1,015 7,387 51,342 41,588 - - 101332
foeiarl/(B%8) Operating profit/oss) 617,025 260,200 153632 789,763 28,115 (48,220) 1,800,605
WENREE(W#40)  Finance costs, net (Note 40) (227,341)  (99,083)  (65178)  (201,571) (72,884)  (164,251)  (830,259)
ElEBERTER/  Share of profitlosses)
(&) (Wizt1s) of associates (Note 15) (9,179) 1,732 61,910 (14,505) - 92,005 131,873
FEELFEMHEREN  Share of proft of jointly controlled
(Hz16) entities (Note 16) - - - 2,518 - 342654 345172
FEMTEHHE42)  Income tax charge (Nofe 42) (42,867)  (22674)  (35410)  (75,626) (5,437) - (182,014)
EREH/(58) Profit/oss) for the year 337,638 140,324 11495 500489 (50,206) 222,479 1,265,378
EepHBENT Other segment items are as follows:
NHEE Segment assets 059609 2975076 5,204,437 11280158 2245772 4454315 35,786,754
ERYSDR) 2B (W:215) Investments in associates (Note 75) 191,520 4,649 100496 705,684 - 83,168 1,887,517
ELREEZEZEE  Ivestment in jointly controlled
(HiE16) entties (Note 16) - - - 88,314 - 2320460 2,410,774
wEE Total assets 9768516 3016725 5343933 12,074,156 2245772  7,615043 40,085,045
hag Total labilties 6,404,481 1853582 4,991,515 10,200,026 1,981,117 3,001,731 28,523,352
B Capital expendture 585,470 118,245 89,519 439,820 188,720 - 142,774
IRERY Non-cash expenses
-% FERHEE - Depreciation of property, plant and
WEHs8) equipment (Note 38) 723,530 11,010 51,534 75,856 59,544 1,206 914,680
- HR AL - Amortisation of land use rights
(Wiiss) (Note 38) 7,756 - 11,480 9,745 872 - 29,853
-FREgH - Amortisation of mining rights
(Hits8) (Note 38) - - - - 14,589 - 14,589
-BEEER - Amortisation of intangible assets
(Wiiss) (Note 38) 4,604 1,356 % 4,140 37 - 10,441
-EWEEHEEEE - Amortisation of other non-current
(Hits8) assets (\ote 39) 2,692 2,043 3,671 4,693 1,264 - 14,383
-EFEE/(EE) - Provision for/lreversal of) bad debts
(Wiiss) (Note 38) 12,280 2,335 6,897 43,212 (7,143) - 57,581
-REGEEE - Provision for inventory
(Wiitss) obsolescence (Note 38) 40,297 4,553 - 526 - - 45,376
-EWANEFHERE - Provision for amounts due from
SB(WH38) customers for contract work
(Note 38) - - - 2,808 - - 2,808
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6 DEE R (&) 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE Z——Ff_A=T-HILFE(LE5)
Year ended 31 December 2011 (Restated)
SERER
HER BRIRE
E758%  Retalsand R
High-tech Hgh-end  ESEE Z59%  Resources
Electronic ~ Consumer  RealEstate  Tradingand Investmentand ~ AAFER ot
Products Products ~ and Hotel Logistics  Development  Unallocated Total
PHEE Segment results
RENSEEHLENA  Revenue fom external customers 6,812,696 2537539 2,004,047 15208425 1,006,776 47,60  27817,178
G LN Inter-segment revenue 520 3,041 - 287 - - 3,848
YL Segment results 16,722 212,892 (10,178) 289,851 9,519 (21,859) 636,947
ﬁﬁﬂ N/ (BE) Other income/(losses) 456,294 19,235 (5,113) 241,829 44,339 (729) 755,855
Eiols /(B%)-%8  Other gains/(losses) - net (908) (399) (408) 241 (177) (911) (332)
?xﬁ%% M fﬁ fElgg  Fairvalue gain on investment
properties 3,066 2472 4,080 29,221 - - 38,845
Fyagil Operating profit 615,174 234,200 (11,619) 563,378 58,681 (23,499) 1,431,315
BENKNFE Finance costs, net (156,641) (69,29) (81,557) (128,602) (50,334) (88,019 (564,449)
ERBENTRT/ Share of profit/{losses) of
(E#) associates (15,589) - 4,683 37,969 - 116,404 143,467
JEELRAHERER  Share of profit of jointly controlled
entities - - - (2,948 - 174,341 171,393
FERZL Income tax charge (30,890) (33,544) (12485 (202,033) 5112 6 (273,764)
Ematl/(B8) Profit/fosses) for the year 42054 141360 (100978) 267,764 8459 179303 907962
EpArdEamT : Qther segment items are as follows:
ﬁéﬁ EE Segment assets 10,607,837 2976140 6,639,483 10,424,492 1,913,133 557,027 33,118,612
ERERRRE Investments in associates 148,589 - 38,060 566,988 - 768,355 1,521,992
TERESEEZIFE  Ivestment in jointly controlled
entities - - - 71,359 - 2,144,806 2,216,165
BgE Total assets 10,756,426 2,976,140 6,677,643 11,062,839 1918133 3,470,688 36,856,769
BefR Total liabilities 7204806 1599552 4,155,863 9,925,844 1,392,604 1,800,497 26,139,276
ERETH Capital expenditure 1,299,938 148,180 191677 1,524,310 166,987 328 3,331,320
LR Non-cash expenses
-0% BERKE - Depreciation of property, plant
il and equipment 757,819 30,021 43,721 140,363 48,54 1,649 1,022,114
- DR REES - Amortisation of land use rights 3,344 344 6,584 3,787 453 - 14,462
- REESH - Amortisation of mining rights - - - - 14,133 - 14,133
-V EESRH - Amortisation of intangible asssts 3252 572 il 2,711 3 1 6,550
-EfEREAE - Amortisation of other non-current
B assets 14,735 14,904 3,529 4614 581 - 38,363
-EHEE/(ER) - Provision forflreversal of) bad debts 1,183 3128 (12) 1,304 (303) - 5390
-REGERE/ - Provision for/[reversal of) inventory
(Bm) obsolescence 13,310 2,759 - (166,227) - - (150,158)
-EWANTIREEZE - Provision for amounts due from
& customers for contract work - - - 148,337 - - 148,337
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6 DEER (&) 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
AREBEEREITEMNRPRH -  HEREGH The Group entities are principally domiciled in the PRC.
PA Ko EAth B 3R B 3 [ A S 30 = A & The result of its revenue from external customers in PRC
FWAPREAT ¢ and other countries and districts are disclosed as follows:

=F—=F —F——%

2012 2011
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(ge=5)
(Restated)
WA Revenue
AR A Mainland China 22,376,960 20,795,220
E Hong Kong 1,812,764 1,537,164
EES Europe and America 2,139,626 1,408,930
R REmMIE East and Southeast Asia 2,981,482 2,049,134
HAa B R Other countries 1,941,740 2,026,730
Wzt R WA 4258 Total revenue per income statement 31,252,572 27,817,178
WATREFPREBRRETHE - & Revenue is allocated based on the country in which
BE-FEFPELBBRKAI0%HHEA customers are located. No revenues derived from a
single external customer have exceeded 10% of the total
revenues.
—B--F —F——F
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(5&EH)
(Restated)
MREm T AERIELERE Total of non-current assets other than
EEMERBEE financial instruments and
wiE deferred tax assets
R A 3 Mainland China 14,420,247 15,081,764
B Hong Kong 86,605 125
FES Europe and America 6,148 548
ECEYSE East and Southeast Asia 23,564 27,718
HAth Others 17,687 28,910
14,554,251 15,139,060
REEERRZIEE Investments in associates 1,887,517 1,521,992
NERIEHIEEZIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 2,410,774 2,216,165

18,852,542 18,877,217
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6 oHERE 6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
=F-—-F —F—F
2012 2011
AR¥ETFT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&=E75))
(Restated)
EARM T H Capital expenditure

AR i, Mainland China 1,399,860 3,254,248
&5 Hong Kong 14,805 1,388
EES Europe and America 3,688 22,978
R NEFEDR East and Southeast Asia 996 24,190
Hith Others 2,425 28,516
1,421,774 3,331,320

BEARMES BIREEMEETHR Capital expenditure is allocated based on where the

assets are located.
WAHA T - Revenue consists of the following:

=F--F F—F

2012 2011
AREFT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)

oA D Analysis of revenue by category
EmifE Sale of goods 24,950,855 21,305,875
BEAEY Construction contracts 5,768,383 6,020,184
HelA Rental income 200,260 230,935
AR U A Services income 172,073 105,466
EHAh, Others 161,001 154,718
W R WA 4258 Total revenue per income statement 31,252,572 27,817,178
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7 * b f5F A RE 7 LAND USE RIGHTS
rEE
Group
—F-—-F =ZF—F
2012 2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g&E5))
(Restated)
R—A—BZERmEFE Net book value at 1 January 1,214,682 878,985
NE Additions 244,465 24,912
W B — R B R A Acquisition of a subsidiary - 372,806
i Amortisation (30,503) (22,191)
EEREIEYE Transfer to investment properties
(Hiat12(e) (Note 12(e)) = (39,830)
HEK B AR (4 iF46) Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 46) (135,192) -
R+ A=+—BZEmEFE Netbook value at 31 December 1,293,452 1,214,682
AEH
Group
=F-=F —F—F
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E3))
(Restated)
REBLASIN - LAS0ZE504F Outside Hong Kong, held on leases
GRS o) of 30 to 50 years 1,293,452 1,214,682
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FPALHLE AR AR®ET72,214,0007T
TER-ZE——FRERMBEESMHEE
PR 2R ([BUS MR 1) 69.77 % A% ¥ BS
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2 i TR AR 9 b B 930 T AR & e (e
WRIrBEMEERNBRMBER -
FEWR B Z A BB i R AR & SR LA
HE BRI o E B BE 1R B 0B
EELHERRABSREEMERER
AIRRER MR - RIEE B BF /R
RBBMBAUESER L ERE
96% M FRIA - A RARIEHME 2

N
i
ax °

s AR 29,853,000t (ZF——
F: AR#¥14,462,0007T) (MI7E38) &
ARH650,000c(ZF——F : AR
7,729,0007T) B2 BlET AF AT E A
RESRCERTIRE °

AEE 2 T EREAMRPBIRA
AR B H) A BE - s 8 A
RENTHWERERE TIOE0FEM
- ZYEaREZ BEst -

RZE——F+_-_A=+—H TR
TEFEAEEEAFEALZARYE
517,952,000 L (= ——F : AR¥
518,721,0007T ) /9 - Hb {F A #E {EHE 17 -
EADHEBERZFBEAMTES -

7

LAND USE RIGHTS (continued)

Included in land use rights were RMB72,214,000 arose
from fair value evaluation of land use rights of (AVIC
Weihai Shipyard Co.,Ltd. (FHUEEM AR A A)
(“Weihai Shipyard”)) for acquiring 69.77% equity interests
of Weihai Shipyard in 2011.

Weihai Shipyard relocated its business according to
local government’s requirement for city planning and
promoting the development of shipbuilding industry of
Shandong Peninsula. The land on which Weihai Shipyard
operated its business before relocation will be taken
back by the local government, local government will then
compensate Weihai Shipyard through proceeds from
transferring the land use right to property development
companies. According to local government’s policy,
Weihai Shipyard could get 96% of proceeds from
transferring the land-use-right, and the proceeds shall be
used for the new factory construction.

Amortisation charges of RMB29,853,000 (2011:
RMB14,462,000) (Note 38) and RMB650,000 (2011:
RMB7,729,000) were included in the administrative
expenses and capitalised in construction in process for
the year respectively.

The Group’s land use rights are situated in the mainland
China, the respective land use rights in mainland
China were granted by the Town Planning and Land
Administration Bureau for periods of 30-50 years from
the date of grant.

As at 31 December 2012, certain bank borrowings
were secured by the land use rights of the Group
with net book value totalling RMB517,952,000 (2011:
RMB518,721,000). Details of the secured borrowings are
in Note 31.
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PRiERE MINING RIGHTS

AEE

Group
—E--F —ET——%F
2012 2011
AR¥FRT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—BZEEHE Net book value at 1 January 519,906 534,029
INE Additions - 10
B Amortisation (14,589) (14,133)
A+-_A=+—B2ZEME%E Netbook value at 31 December 505,317 519,906

Bt a5 ARE14,589,0005T ( =
T——4F : AR¥14,133,0007T ) (FisF
38)BEf ARFELEA WRE R ERA
ﬁq °

R-F——F+-A=+—A0 5%
BREZEME B DA T ARPX

— BRmEFE A ARE219,212,000
T (2T ——F: AR
219,212,0007T ) 2 WilE 2 EREHE
W RERE2.4553F A A8 - i1
RPEEmEEEAMRIIE -

- Bk m % E A R % 220,250,000
T(ZE——F : AR
233,897,0007T ) 2 #1E < £RE #E
W N ETEX)284,526 F F R E - i1
R ESEESAMRAE -

- R FE A AR 65855000
T (2T ——F: AR
66,797,0007T ) 2 WilE 2 PRIE
BN EENESSTFARE IR
PEREEEERTR)IE -

BRI RBERERFRASE105F - BHE
TAEAB /R E AP AR BI Pl S B R AR

Amortisation charges of RMB14,589,000 (2011:
RMB14,133,000) (Note 38) were included in the cost of
goods sold in the consolidated income statement for the
year.

As of 31 December 2012, the mining rights of the Group
comprise the following:

- The mining rights of the phosphorus mine of
a net book value of RMB219,212,000 (2011:
RMB219,212,000) has a site area of approximately
2.4553 sqg. Km. It is located in Dongchuan District,
Kunming Prefecture of Yunnan Province, the PRC.

- The mining rights of a potassium mine of a
net book value of RMB220,250,000 (2011:
RMB233,897,000) has a site area of approximately
284,526 sqg. Km. It is located in Lenghu District,
Haixi Prefecture of Qinghai Province, the PRC.

- The mining rights of a phosphorus mine of
a net book value of RMB65,855,000 (2011:
RMB66,797,000) has a site area of approximately
6.85 sg. Km. It is located in Dongchuan District,
Kunming Prefecture of Yunnan Province, the PRC.

The remaining useful life of mining rights is 5-10 years.

Management expects to be able to renew the mining
rights without significant cost.
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EmE 9 GOODWILL

KEE
Group
AREFr
RMB’000

BE—Z2——F+=-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2011
RZE—F—H As at January 2011 5,240
W BB B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries 254,996
MN-ZTE——F+=F  &KF75 As at December 2011, as restated 260,236

BEZ2-E——F+=-A=1+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2012
R-E——%F—A As at January 2012 260,236
W BE — B A R (A77E49) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 49) 4,308
N-—E——F+_81 As at December 2012 264,544

BAEEAR_ZZNFRESTETME
BRERAB([FEFMEIR])60%MK
BRI ——FREBIME69.77%
RERSBEERF(LE) BRAQF
(TEMEE100%BAE  R_T——4F
Wt R MERENERER AR ([
Z&)T0%AXEFTEEL ©

HEBMBEECREELEM 2K
COeBRAABEREEKNATE &
R G EEEL 2 AU E &R ERE
REENE  HEEEEEMRREER
F 2 B %5 TEORI 2% B B AT 3R & R TR ORI G
B -BBRFZRSRIIEBIAT AL
HfETIEREHEE o

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of 60% interest
of Qinghai CATIC Resources Company Limited (“Qinghai
CATIC Resources”), 69.77% interest of Weihai Shipyard,
100% interest of Superior Metal Hardware Products
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Superior Metal”) (£ £ &
Z4:(E8)AR AT and 70% interest of CATIC Huatai
Liankemao (Beijing) Company Limited (“Huatai”) (it 5=
MERERZERAAR]) in 2008, 2011, 2011 and 2012
respectively.

The recoverable amount of the CGU related to Weihai
Shipyard is determined based on fair value less costs to
sell calculation, the recoverable amount of other CGUs
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Those
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial forecasts prepared by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below.
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9 &) GOODWILL (continued)
BEALBEBBEEKRANREREES The key assumptions used for fair value less costs to sell
B FBREBWOT : and value-in-use calculations are as follows:

58

AT E IR

Qinghai B RE R HHRE

CATIC Weihai Superior HEH
Resources Shipyard Metal Huatai
BRI FE Net book value 5,240 227,107 27,889 4,308
EERAE Gross margin 27.68% 10% 24.8% 5%
HERE Growth rate 5% 13% 2% 5%
BLIE & Discount rate 15% 15% 9.2% 8%

HERRCARDIMLEDBAZE S
EAEBA -

EEEREBERANANLREEMSER
ZEHMEETRESENE - IRAZ
DOAEF 1538 = R B 5 IR E P 2 FAA
—H - IRAZMIREAHAAIRE
I RER B RIS 0 B AERE 2 5 R R

RETHENRR  ARAREZTA/E
AR E R -

s KRR S REER_E——FR
—E——Ft-ACt—AEREZMH
FFE10% + K BB AR R E BN E
BB(—E——F &) -

MR —FE——FR_F——F+=A
=+ RABRAKRBEM2% - AEERE
ARERHERERR(ZE—F  8)-

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of
each CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The weighted average growth rates used
are consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant operating segments.

The directors of the Company consider that no
impairment charge was required after performing the
impairment assessment.

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management’s estimates as at 31 December
2012 and 2011, the Group would have recognized no
impairment loss on the goodwill (2011: Nil).

If the discount rate had increased 2% as at 31 December

2012 and 2011, the Group would have recognized no
impairment loss on the goodwill (2011 Nil).
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BrEE 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BEREM
BREA HBER
EMHE Capitalised HUE BHERE
Computer development Trademark  Maritime Vi =0 a3t
software costs and licenses rights of use Patents Others Total
ABEFE AEEFT ARETn AREFT ABEFr AREFT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R=B-Z%-F-B  At1January 2012
KA Cost 85,142 57,973 7,199 25,669 - 5,943 181,926
ZHBHERZE Accumulated amortisation and
imparment (24,331) - (828) (3,648) - (1,883) (30,690)
REFE Net book amount 60,811 57,973 6,371 22,021 - 4,060 151,236
BE-B--E+ZF  Yearended 31 December 2012
St-ALEE
ENEEERE Opening net book amount 60,811 57,973 6,371 22,021 - 4,060 151,236
HE Additions 9,066 9,922 - - - - 18,988
SREET Transfer to patents - (66,947) - - 66,947 - -
il Disposals (35) - - - - - (35)
BREY Amortisation charge (10,869) - (12 (1,073) (1,619) (330) (13,903)
ERRARE Closing net book amount 58,973 948 6,359 20,948 65,328 3,730 156,286
RZB-Z%+ZF At 31 December 2012
=t+-A
[ Cost 94,161 948 7,086 25,670 66,947 5,943 200,755
ZHEERZ A Accumulated amortisation and
imparment (35,188) - (121) (4,722) (1,619) (2,213) (44,469)
BEFE Net book amount 58,973 948 6,359 20,948 65,328 3,730 156,286

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10

E|LERE =) 10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
BERA
g HER
El#E  Caplalised HTE BHERE
Computer  development  Trademark Marttime £V =0
software costs and licenses  right of use Patents Others
ANRETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WZE--F-A—F &E5  At1January 2011, as restated
A Cost 71,800 - 7,199 - 5,943 84,942
ZiBERZEE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (15,982 - (186) - 2915 (19,089
BEFE Net book amount 56,818 - 7,013 - 3,028 65,859
BZ-2--£+-B=t-AL Yearended 31 December 2011,
Eg &E5 as restated
ENEEEE Opening net book amount 55,818 - 7013 - 3,028 65,859
WE-EHBAA Acouisition of a subsidary 1227 - - 22810 - 24,087
RE Additions 13,342 57,973 - - 1,362 72,677
HE Disposals (455) - (587) - - (1.042)
BHERY Amortisation charge (9.121) - (59) (789) (330) (10,295
FREETE Closing net book amount 60,811 57,973 6,371 22,021 4,060 151,236
R-B8--%+28 At 31 December 2011, as restated
=+-R Q&7
5 Cost 86,142 57,973 7,199 25,669 5,943 181,926
ZHBERZHE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (24,331) - (828) (3,648) (1,883 (30,690)
REFE Net book amount 60,811 57,973 6,371 22,021 4,060 151,236

B ARE10,441,00000(ZF——
F . AR¥6,550,0007T) (Hf5E38) & A
R#3,462,000 (= ——F : ARM
3,745,0007) D AIET AR FEITHE A KR

BENMEAERTRE -

Amortisation charges of RMB10,441,000 (2011:
RMB6,550,000) (Note 38) and RMB3,462,000 (2011:
RMB3,745,000) were included in the administrative
expenses and capitalised in construction in progress for
the year respectively.
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ME -  BERSKE 11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AERE Group
—E-CF
2012
BlR
BT
BERRE Computer
HEEE  Machinery RE and  FREEH AbRfE
%  Leasehold and Motor electronic Mining Other am
Buildings improvement  equipment vehicles  equipment  structures  equipment Total
ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETL  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE-E--F4+-F  Yearended 31 December 2012
ST-LLEE
A Cost
) At beginning of year 5,076,688 147,290 6,385,906 181,239 262,794 249,106 109,242 12,412,265
BEIREN(H313)  Transfer from construction-in-
progress (Note 13) 91,520 - 346,881 - 546 13,798 - 452,745
I —SIHB AR #49) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 49) - - 7 197 48 - - 252
HE Additions 103,094 47 221,554 36,878 23,989 5,333 9,853 478,118
FEMEEA(Hi12)  Transler from investment properties
(Note 12) 35,494 - - - - - - 35,494
BEERENE Transfer to investment properties
(Wt126) (Note 12(e) (17,227) - - - - - - (17,227)
WEHBATH46)  Disposals of subsidaries ot 46 (714,537) - (3605000 (16,687) (4,058) (3169)  (1,008951)
£ (ii46) Othr disposals (Note 46) (82,937) - (129365 (10,8)) (8,659) - (015)  (193658)
EREH Exchange differences (1,408) - (514) (612) 359 - (258) (2,433)
X At end of year 4,530,687 224,707 6,463,969 190,332 275,020 268,237 113,653 12,066,605
it Accumulated depreciation
) At beginning of year 535,034 36,871 1,860,789 82,439 132,329 21,847 61,351 2,736,660
REEHR Charge for the year 157,891 68,386 598,912 22,715 47,845 20,963 17,232 934,004
BRZLENE Transfer to investment properties
(HiE12) (Note 12(g)) (1,519) - - - - - - (1,519)
HERBAF(Mi46)  Disposals of subsidlaries (Note 46) (80,035) - (71,975) (3,307) (1,449) - (900)  (157,666)
it E(Hi46) Other disposals (Note 46) (0.817) - (107629 (7,515) (7,757) - (150 (133962)
EX Atend of year 601,554 105,257 2,280,103 94,392 170,968 48,810 76,433 3,377,517
HE Impairment
ENRER At beginning and end of year 5,524 - 9,919 - 213 - - 15,716
BEFE Net book amount
EX Atend of year 3,923,609 119,450 4,173,947 95,940 103,779 219,427 37,220 8,673,372
2] At beginning of year 4,536,130 110,419 4,515,198 98,800 130,192 221,259 47,891 9,659,889
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11 Y% BEERRE#)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
NEE(E) Group (continued)
5%
2011
Bk
ERE ]
BERRHE Computer
FEEE  Machinery e and  FEEEN EGET
#F  Leasshold and Motor electronic Mining Other et
Buildings  improvement  equipment vehicles ~ equipment structures  equipment Total
NREFT  AREFT AREfr AREFr AREFr ARETT  AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
BZ-8--#1=8  Yearended 31 December 2011,
ST-ALEE(EES)  as restated
A Cost
1) At beginning of year 3,518,147 49,674 5,390,696 143,868 344141 199,846 165,806 9,812,008
EEIREA(Hi#13)  Transfer from construction-in-
progress (Note 13) 756,646 - 224,560 - 15,490 49,245 - 1,045,941
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries 754,440 - 306,225 7,791 3,846 - - 1,072,302
FAMEEAH12)  Transler from investment properties
(Note 12) 32,434 - - - - - - 32,434
RE Additions 282,531 97,616 564,847 44,966 30,596 15 16,600 987,171
ERTRENE Transfer to investment properties
(Hii12p) (Note 12(e)) (170,142) - - - - - - (170,142)
EMBAE Disposals of subsidiaries (6,566) - (289 (538) (5,819) - - (13,206)
Al Other disposals (36,725) - 63869 (14733 (125384) - 74284 (334,995
ERER Exchange differences (4,077) - (16,170) (109) (76) - 1,120 (19,308)
EX At end of year 5,076,688 147,290 6,385,906 181,239 262,794 249,106 109,242 12,412,265
ZHHE Accumulated depreciation
) At beginning of year 365,805 7,059 1,183,362 70,265 204,945 10,385 108,484 1,950,355
TR Charge for the year 199,814 29,812 704,909 21,991 36,521 17,462 17607 1028206
ERERANE Transfer to investment properties
(W 128) (Note 12(e) (18,10 - - - - - - (18,102
HERBAT Disposals of subsidiaries (360 - P10) (254) (5,008) - - 0.077)
EfiE Other disposals (8,925) - (27.212) 0563 (104132 - (64830 (214,729
£X Atend of year 535,034 36,871 1,860,789 82,439 132,329 21,847 61,351 2,736,660
BE Impairment
L)) At beginning of year - - 9,919 - 273 - - 10,192
KERHR Charge for the year 5,524 - - - - - . 5,54
EX At end of year 5,524 - 9,919 - 273 - - 15,716
BEFE Net book amount
X At end of year 4,536,130 110,419 4,515,198 98,800 130,192 221,259 47,891 9,659,839
1) At beginning of year 3,152,292 42,615 4,197,315 73,593 138,923 189,461 57,322 7,851,621
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11 9% BERRE®) 11  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
RAF] Company
—E—_F
2012
BERRE
Machinery AE
¥ and Motor Fok )
Buildings equipment vehicles Total

ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFZT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BZ-E--%+=A Year ended 31 December 2012

=t-ALEE
R Cost
FORER At beginning and end of year 19,000 1,646 4,327 24,973
it E Accumulated depreciation
E4) At beginning of year 11,946 598 4,092 16,636
REFFR Charge for the year 855 309 42 1,206
N At end of year 12,801 907 4,134 17,842
REFE Net book amount
F£X At end of year 6,199 739 193 7,131
F4 At beginning of year 7,054 1,048 235 8,337
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11 ME - BMERFZEE) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
WNT () Company (continued)
—E——fF
2011
HERE
Machinery HE
BTF and Motor B
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT ANREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HE-E--F+=H Year ended 31 December 2012
=t-HILEE
R Cost
4 At beginning of year 19,000 1,646 4,107 24,7583
NE Additions - - 220 220
FX At end of year 19,000 1,646 4,327 24,973
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation
1 At beginning of year 11,091 286 4,068 15,445
REEHIR Charge for the year 855 312 24 1,191
FR At end of year 11,946 598 4,092 16,636
REFE Net book amount
ER At end of year 7,054 1,048 235 8,337
F4) At beginning of year 7,909 1,360 39 9,308
KEBZWE  BENBEIVIZFES K The property, plant and equipment of the Group were
KT BE o stated at historical cost.
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11 Y¥ - BERSZES) 11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
WEBENNDEPERNREZAER : Depreciation charge was capitalised or expensed in the

following categories:

=F—=-F —F—F

2012 2011
AR¥TF T AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&E?))

(Restated)

SHER A Cost of goods sold 769,991 852,518
THEA Administrative expenses 130,254 161,997
HEEH Distribution costs 14,435 7,599
TEEIR Construction in progress 19,324 6,092

934,004 1,028,206

REEEEFEZMRFBIRA - The Group’s buildings are mainly situated in the mainland
China.
WZZE—=—%F+=-_fF=+—8 ' &F As at 31 December 2012, certain bank borrowings
R 17 B A R #1,764,343,000 7T ( = of RMB1,764,343,000 (31 December 2011:
T——HF+_A=Z=+—H: AR¥ RMB2,341,941,000) were secured by the property, plant
2,341,941,0007C) A % - W E R&E and equipment as follows:
TELN TR -
—E-CF —E——f
2012 2011
AR¥TFrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
RAEFE Net book value
BF Buildings 1,444,472 1,300,473
28 R 1 Machinery and equipment - 218,983
1,444,472 1,519,456
BHE-_T-——_F+ZA=+—8H " As at 31 December 2012, the Group was still in the
AEBDEREEEFEAARE progress of obtaining title certificates of buildings
619,879,000 (ZF ——F : AR with a net book value of RMB619,879,000 (2011:
1,141,582,0007T ) FIIEF R EREF o RMB1,141,582,000).
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12 BEYE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE
Group
—F2--F =—F—F
2012 2011
AREFT AR TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
BARERE At fair value
—A—BE¥&E Opening balance at 1 January 2,030,986 1,719,187
W - BB MEEX Transfer from property, plant and equipment
T fE AREEA and land use rights 22,539 330,206
DR EEEHFWE Net gain from fair value adjustment 101,332 38,845
HEERYE - BB NRE Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Braz11) (Note 11) (35,494) (32,434)
& (Hit46) Disposals (Note 46) (20,049) (24,818)
+=—A=1+—HE K& Closing balance at 31 December 2,099,314 2,030,986
(a) BEWEZHEREZSEINRW (a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
™ investment properties were as follows:

—F-=-F =—F—F

2012 2011

AREFrT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&=E5)

(Restated)

HEBA Rental income 166,621 173,453
EEREWA Y HBWE  Direct operating expenses from property

CEEBEEBR that generated rental income (52,885) (49,439)
TEERERAZEA Direct operating expenses from property

MEEERBEEER that did not generate rental income (3,629) (27,887)

110,107 96,127
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12

260

REWME %) 12

(b)

(c)

(d)

hEER (b)
—E - FZERERT BB
EEREMNEAERABNBEILN

fl - FHEERRNRIABEIZ
MEANER T ZHBBRRFR

5 ERE—E - RIGREAR
HRFFEEE N FEYEEE R
WIS B RIER -

REYEEREE (c)
WN-_TET——F+-_A=+—H"

ATROTEZIHEREBRAEE
EERAR(ERER ) AAE

BE# AR #857,700,0007C (=&

——44F : AR#826,881,0007T)
m&§%¥¢ﬁ# ETRITHE
FALRRAFAABEHOARE
%&%ammﬂ_v——i z)
I EYEIELRRE - ERBBE &
ItRARAEAREENBEAR - A
R R IRE R BB B RS »

HEWHE (d)
ETREMERBRAKEHE
HEFABEA AEASAXN

He -

ERARERBRETHERIRE
MEZTABHEEERE TR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation basis

The 2012 revaluations were based on independent
assessments made by China United Assets
Appraisal Co., Ltd. The valuations represented the
fair value amounts for which the properties could
be exchanged between willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction, based on current prices in an
active property market for similar properties in the
same location and condition and subject to similar
leases.

Investment properties pledged as security

As at 31 December 2012, certain bank
borrowings were secured by the investment
properties of the Guangdong International Building
Industrial Co., Ltd. (“GIB Company”) at the fair
value of approximately RMB857,700,000 (2011:
RMB826,881,000). Certain bank borrowings
were secured by the investment properties of
Beijing Company at the fair value of approximately
RMB283,956,000 (2011: Nil). GIB Company and
Beijing Company are subsidiaries of the Group.
Details of the secured borrowings are in Note 31.

Leasing arrangements
Certain investment properties have been leased
to tenants under long-term operating leases with
rentals payable monthly.

Minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases of investment properties not

EEWHEERBEINT - recognised in the financial statements are as
follows:
=B—-F _T—F
2012 2011
AR¥Fir AEREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(=)
(Restated)
—FLAR Not later than one year 134,461 84,547
—FUAERFUA Later than one year and not later than
five years 330,305 125,696
FFELAE Later than five years 260,985 99,086
725,751 309,329

AEBENREMEDULRHEE
m o

The investment properties of the Group are

situated in the PRC.
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13

BREYE =) 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
e) —ZEZE——F FEEFEIINEA () In 2012, owner-occupied property of buildings
R #15,708,00070( =& ——4F : and land use rights with net book values of
A R #152,040,00070) R ZE (= RMB15,708,000 (2011: RMB152,040,000) and
Z——%F : AR%39,830,0007T) nil (2011: RMB39,830,000), respectively, were
N EEYEET R+ E AER transferred to investment properties. As at the
ERREME BEEEZAH - date of transfer, the fair value of these investment
ZEREYWENARBEAAR properties amounted to RMB22,539,000 (2011:
#02 539,000 L( & —— 4 : RMB330,206,000). The difference between the
AR #330,206,0007T ) ° £ 8 & fair value and net book value at the transfer date
ZEMNAREEEEMFECE of RMB5,123,000 (2011: RMB103,752,000), net
F(INBRELEHREAEER) ARK of deferred tax liability, was recorded in other
5,123,000t (ZZFE——F : AR comprehensive income.
#103,752,0007T ) 1£ H 47 & U
mHARR o
EEZIRE 13 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS
KEE
Group
—R—=F —E——f
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(geEH)
(Restated)
F1) At beginning of year 1,128,005 907,143
U BE B /B X R Acquisition from subsidiaries = 94177
NE (Kiita) Additions (Note (a)) 577,681 1,174,243
B BB NERE Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(HteE11) (Note 11) (452,745)  (1,045,941)
EREHMIERBEE Transfer to other non-current assets (890) (1,617)
1,252,051 1,128,005

NETEERBREERE K&K
&N T2 EEHPR ©

RZE—ZF  FFAEEIRE®
EARLCBETERFINEBARKE
10,457,0007L( =& ——4F : A
R #804,0007T) + EXLFIE A
5.66%(—ZT——4F : 4.65%) °

Included in the additions were mainly costs
incurred for the construction of production plants,
modernisation and renovation projects.

Bank loan interest capitalised in the construction
in progress in 2012 amounting to RMB10,457,000
(2011: RMB804,000) and the capitalised interest
rate was 5.66% (2011: 4.65%).
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14

262

EEIR#E) 13 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS (continued)
R-ZB——F+-A=+—0 " &R As at 31 December 2012, certain bank borrowings
ITIEFAERBEE KL R AREREEA were secured by the construction-in-progress of GIB
K#16,361,000c(ZF——%F : AR Company and Beijing Company at the net book value of
3,301,00070 ) B9 fE 2 T2 /E3K 3R - 58 approximately RMB16,361,000 (2011: RMB3,301,000).
EERER Z B EH NI EEST - Details of the secured borrowings are in Note 31.
RHBARZRE 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
b N
Company
—B-=-F —F——%
2012 2011
AREFIT AEETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE RN Investments at cost:
— ARG, - shares in listed companies 432,838 432,838
—3F bR - unlisted equity interests 4,082,814 1,254,173

4,515,652 1,687,011

R-_E——F+-_A=+—H t5A
A& 1D 2 T {E 4 A AR #3,005,864,000
T(ZZF——4F : AR¥3,154,498,000
JC) °

RZE——&F+-_A=+—H " ' &ARQ7
R REEEH B R B R A R AR (K
PEIEZRAZSEWB AR (NP HZ
B ) EAREBFR S SR A S
EEENMBEBERHBEEKNL) -

As at 31 December 2012, the market value of shares
in listed companies approximated RMB3,005,864,000
(2011: RMBS3,154,498,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had equity
interests in the following major subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, materially contributed to the net
results of the Group or constituted a material portion of
the assets or liabilities of the Group (all incorporated/
established and operated in the PRC).
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14 REBARZREZ) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
i/ RIAS
Date of TEER
i} PR incorporation/ i AfES Type of TEER
Name of subsidiary establishment Attributable equity interest Registered capital  legal entity Principal activities
—E-C E-f
2012 2011
E# B BE B
Direct  Indirect Direct Indlirect
RE(Wit) “AWNZET-ANR 4562% - 4562% - ARB674237500m  BHERAFAGRIE BERHERSETE
Tianma (Note(a)) 8 November 1983 RMB574,237,500 QETETAT)  Manufacture and sales of
Joint stock company  fiquid crystal displays
(isted on the
Shenzhen Stock
Exchange)
REERARLA “NNEFLA=ZE 93.00% - 88.35% - ARE130800000T BREFLT HERHEIRERR
(lFaEH]) 3 July 1984 RMB139,800,000 Limited liabiity Manufacture and sales of
Shennan Circuit Co., Ltd. company printed circuit boards
('SCC")
REE(lite) “ANBEZAZTR  41.49% - 449% - NR®280548479T RAERAF(RIE HERHEERK
Fiyta (Note(a)) 30 March 1990 RMB280,548,479 QETETAT)  Manufacture and sales of
Joint stock company  watches and clocks
(isted on the
Shenzhen Stock
Exchange)
AR ERER AT “ERLENATLR 100% - 100% - ARMs00000000r BELE REARAR
([PHEER]) 17 September 2007 RMB500,000,000 Wholly owned Mineral resources
Shenzhen AVIC Resources Co., company development
Ltd. (‘Resources Company’)
ERER ZEENE-A=t-R 5% - 75% - ARB416450417T  RELRERER  EERMESE
GIB Company 31 January 2009 RMB416,459,417 Contractual jointly ~ Hotel and property
controlled entities ~ operations
MEAF -NBE=RT=H 100% - - - ARE21600000m BELE HEREERERH
MFG Company 13 March 1985 RMB21,600,000 Wholly owned Manufacture and sales of
company standard parts
FRAT —WNZEAARA 100% - - - ARE300000000m BELE BREBREERS
Beijing Company 4 June 1992 RMB300,000,000 Wholly owned Trading activities and
company shipbuilding
B8R —hNRET-AZR 97.5% - - - AR%60,0000007  BREFAF BEETREHRENR
TED Company 2 November 1995 RMB60,000,000 Limited liability REER
company Trading of electronic and
computer equipment and
tender management
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14 HKBATIZEE(#) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
i/ RIAS
Date of TEER
i) RS incorporation/ e 3 AfEs Type of IEEH
Name of subsidiary establishment Attributable equity interest Registered capital  legal entity Principal activities
—E-C 2k
2012 2011
B B BE B
Direct  Indirect Direct Indlirect
EMAT “hehE+-A-A 100% - - - ARH300000000m HELE BENE  BHRENES
Guangzhou Company 1 November 1979 RMB300,000,000 Wholly owned Ship buiding, trading and
company other business
BMAT “NN\EFLA-R 100% - - - ARHs50000000 BELE RENE  EFREMER
Xiamen Gompany 1 July 1980 RMB550,000,000 Wholly owned Ship building, trading and
company other business
TRAR —NNEENARH 100% = - - ARE4000000007m HELE BEXK BEEE EH
Engineering Company 6 August 1980 RMB400,000,000 Wholly owned ERE BENHEER
company RESHBHS
Construction activities,
project management,
Real estate development,
construction material trade
and rendering of labour
service
Tt ZEECETIAZTH 90% - - - ARH60000000m RELAEHEE RHELR
Beijing Ruixin 30 December 2002 RMB60,000,000 Contractual jointly ~ Real estate development
controlled entties
EXE “EE/EMAZTZR 51% - - - ARH0000000m RELAEHEE RHELR
X'an Raise 22 April 2008 RMB30,000,000 Contractual jointly ~ Real estate development
controlled entties
e ZEEETATAR 60% - - - ARE120000000n RELREHEE RHELR
Chengdu Raise 18 October 2007 RMB120,000,000 Contractual jointly ~ Real estate development
controlled entties
ESREWHDY) ZERCETATCR 40% - - - ARE30000000T RELREHER FHELR
Wuxi Raise (Note (b)) 12 Qctober 2007 RMB30,000,000 Contractual jointly ~ Real estate development
controlled entties
TRERFERERERAT —E-BECACTAR - 60% - - ARE00000000 REHREHEE BEBENERE
([5meE)) 26 July 2010 RMB100,000000  Contractual jointly  Trading of renewable energy
AVIC International Renewable controlled entities ~ equipment
Energy Development Co.,
Ltd (‘RED Company’)

264
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14 MARBATZRE %) 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
#R/RLAH
Date of LEER
HEAREH incorporation/ FribRiERs ifEx Type of ITEH
Name of subsidiary establishment Attributable equity interest Registered capital  legal entity Principal activities
“E-CE 5%
2012 2011
E# i3 E% M
Direct  Indirect Direct Indirect
FERFHETRAARAA —ZELFMALE 21% 30% 21% 0% ARES15000000% RELREHEE HERKEARELRE
([HEXRE)) 7 April 2007 RMB515,000,000 Contractual jointly ~ Manufacture and sales of
Shanghai Tianma controlled entities  liquid crystal displays
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Tianma’)
EEMARARAT ZZELFRATAR - 100% - 100% ARM550000000 BELE WEREH
([BaHnEE]) 16 May 2007 RMBS50,000,000  Wholy owned Potassium resources
Qinghai CATIC Resources company business
Co., Ltd. (“Qinghai CATIC
Resources”)
RAXEHETRAERAA —EE\EAAT-H - 30% - 30% ARE1200000000m AEREREHEE HEREERGETA
([R&@XB ) (Hzm) 11 September 2008 RMB1,200,000,000  Contractual jointly ~ Manufacture and sales of
Chengdu Tianma controlled entities ~ liquid crystal displays
Microelectronics Co., Ltd
(“Chengdu Tianma") (Note(b))
ZHIEEARLE “F-—FAATER - 5% - 5% ARBI0G703604T AEAREHER WARRH
([Z@aE)) 15 September 2011 RMB108,793,654  Contractual jointly  Phosphorus resources
Yunnan Hongfu Fertiizer controlled entities  business
Company Limited (*Yunnan
Hongfu')
(a) REBRKERRDENRED R A (a) The Group’s equity interests held in Tianma and Fiyta are
45.62% % 41.49% - HREHR AR 45.62% and 41.49% respectively, other equity interests
BiZRE - AEEREREEREMRK are widely held by public interests. The Group’s voting
RHOFERERDEEEMS @ AT rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
SEENAEZEHIZMEAT B R other shareholders give the Group the power to govern
BERTE  BRNBEEARAENEAR the financial and operating policies and account them as
Al e subsidiaries.
(b) RAFE HZENE QR IEERE R (o) The Company has reached the agreement with non-

BERURRLREETGERRZEKE
ARB—HITH W - BIEARFS
UEHIR S -

[\

controlling shareholders of those subsidiaries to act
in concert with the Company when casting votes in
shareholder and board of director’s meetings, pursuant
to which the Company is able to control them.
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15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

by 3 | ¥ NG|
Group Company
-2 _"T—f ZB-Zf C"T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTFT AREFT ARBEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
F4) At beginning of year 1,521,992 825,591 298,198 298,198
EE Capital injection 73,730 571,862 - -
EREINECIN Transfer from prepayment
(Hfs20) (Note 20) 40,300 - = -
ELENEIEEEIN Transfer from subsidiaries
(#1i#46) (Note 46) 248,923 - - -
L5 Dividends received (127,079) (8,104) - -
SE— L AR At & Share of fair value losses from
PREEAABEEE available-for-sale financial
(BEt29) assets of an associate
(Note 29) - (338) - -
SME—FIBL AT BEYE Share of gain on the transfer
BAREMERESH of owner-occupied property
Wk (H5£29) to investment property of an
associate (Note 29) - 30,124 - -
b — g E A E 8 Share of reserve of an associate
IR R FHREE arising from its transactions
(Het29) with non-controlling interests
(Note 29) (5,196) - - -
DEINE H =R Share of currency translation
differences 9,268 (40,079) - -
HE Disposals (6,294) (5) - -
THZSABR G  Elimination of unrealised profit
from downstream transaction - (526) - -
DIEEE N EEF Share of profit of associates 131,873 143,467 - -
FR At end of year 1,887,517 1,521,992 298,198 298,198
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REZNATNRE &) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
RZEBE——F+_A=+—H K& As at 31 December 2012, the Group had direct interests
BEEERESZETERES AR ¢ in the following major associates:
TEER/EMREES
2W/KiIBH bR Principal activities/
L UNGES Date of incorporation/ Attributable TEER place of incorporation
Name of associate establishment equity interest Type of legal entity and operation
—§--f _TF
2012 2011
AR EERA R —“WRE+-ATER 50% 50% AREMLAHF SERRERRRRE -
CASTIC-SMP Machinery 15 November 1986 Limited liability company &

Corporation Limited Manufacture and sales of
dry cleaning machines,
PRC

AIFETREMERAA —“WNE-ATLH 30% 30% BREMAT BERRETEHN

Shenzhen Shenrong Engineering 17 January 1989 Limited liability company ~ Manufacture and sales of
Plastics Co., Ltd. plastic casings, PRC

A REEBEIRERAR —FERF-A-1A 39.51% 3051% ARELRA YFAETEOTR  BER

(ThimgE)) 26 February 2005 Limited liabiity company ~ $4%& «

Shenzhen CAERO Digital Display Research and development

Inc. (‘CAERQ’) and sales of digital
displays, PRC

REREHEFAERAA Mite) —22\E+—AT+A 10% 10% BREERA REBETENEE  HRER
Wuhan Tianma Microelectronics 17 November 2008 Limited liabilty company ~ $5& - &

Co. Ltd. (Note (a)) Manufacture, research and
sales of liquid crystal
displays, PRC

PRBERDERAA - NWEFRAZTAA 22.35% 22.35% BAERARRIERSN DEREREE RE-
AVIC Real Estate Co., Ltd. 29 May 1985 LmRE) TEREEEE F
Joint Stock Company Property developing and
(Listed on the Shenzhen  construction, investment,
Stock Exchange) retailing and hotel
operation, PRC
ERRBAERMRHERLF 2% A-thA 20% 20% BREMLAR FFETENTR  RER
Huangshi Raece Technology 29 June 2011 Limited liability company & +

Co., Ltd. Research and development
and sales of digital
displays, PRC

LESEARAT ZEETF-ACH 25% - ARELEATA SEREEFR +
Shanghai Watch Industry 2 March 2000 Limited liability company  Manufacture and sales of

Co., Ltd.

watches, PRC
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RESZATHIRE 2) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TEER/HEMREES
RaYg AL fEfbER Principal activities/
NGRS Date of incorporation/ Attributable TEER place of incorporation
Name of associate establishment equity interest Type of legal entity and operation
—%--F %%
2012 2011
FBAREEARARA “E-ZETAZTEH 20% - BREALT RTEILBRTERE
Shanghai Heying Industrial 25 October 2012 Limited liabilty company — 1RALERTE - &
Investment Co., Ltd. Provision of service for
China Printed Circular
Association (R E ) E
B1T%15), PRC
BRVERNRAERERLE —E-ZEAAZTHA 15% - AREEAF FAERWE  +
AR FEELEEERE 29 September 2012 Limited liability company  Integrated circuit research,
mb(Hritb) PRC
Advanced Semiconductor
Packaging Technology Research
& Development Centre (ASPTC)
(Note (b))
WRILEEERERERAR  —FE=F+-A=1-H 25% 2% AREEAT TXERRE T8
Shandong Shantui Ouyatuo 21 November 2003 Limited liability company  Industrial product
Machinery Co., Ltd. manufacturing, PRC
FMPFEMELER AR ZERECFRAZTH 45% - AREEAF BUERBEMNE -
(I=MeM)) 21 June 2002 Limited liability company ~ Manufacture and repairmen
Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy of ships, PRC
Industry Limited (“Taizhou AVIC”)
KHD Humboldt Wedag —NEAF 20% 0% BROBRAR(ERREE KERBLE  EH
International AG Year 1856 RETETAR) Cement equipment
Joint Stock Company production, Germany
(Listed on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange)
LUEFMET BRI “ZSE/\ANA 30% - AREERF HERRENEDY -1
HBAT 9 August 2007 Limited liability company ~ ZAREEER - &
Shandong New Shipbuilding Manufacture and installation
Pipe Outfitting Production of ships’ components.
Co., Ltd Antirust paint and
machine operation, PRC
EFEHELXEARAT “E-TET-ANA 30% 30% BREEAT MERRREE
Xiamen Fu Ming Property 9 November 2010 Limited liability company  Property developing and
Co., Ltd. construction, PRC
EfRmnEER LT “Z-—4¥MA-T+HA 30% 30% EREMFAF MEER - HE
Xiamen AVIC Property 25 April 2011 Limited liability company ~ Property management, PRC

Management Co., Ltd.
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15 REEQATNKREE) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TEER/HEMREED
M/ RLB8 iy Principal activities/
NGRS Date of incorporation/ Attributable TEER place of incorporation
Name of associate establishment equity interest Type of legal entity and operation
—¥-=F F%
2012 2011
Radiance CATICO Offshore “Z-Z4MALA 37% - AREMEAH BERE - R
Pte. Ltd. 05 April 2012 Limited liability company  Manufacture of ship,
Singapore
BMEMBTEARAR “Z-“#+A-1+Z=A 40% - ARELRA BERHEES  BIEE
Guangzhou Huahang Bicycle 23 July 2012 Limited liability company 2 £ER&E - &
Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sales
of bicycles, exercise
equipment instrument
and apparatus and
fumniture, PRC
ENRERBAARARAR —ERRET-AKRA 25% 25% BAREMLLH BEFRARER  TH
Changzhou TED Golf Product Ltd. 6 December 2005 Limited liability company  Trading of golf product,
PRC
MEREERARAT “Z-ZEAAZTAR 20% 0% BREAAT NEERRER  RH
Hangfa Investment Management 29 September 2010 Limited liability company  Property developing and
Co., Ltd. management, PRC
PREEHEREARAT —AWNEERATNE 20% 20% BREERT NEERRER H
CATIC Real Estate Development 18 June 1997 Limited liability company  Property developing and
Co., Ltd. management, PRC
HBETRERAT —MAZET-AZ+EA 25% 2% BRELAT] BEXBRERER  1E
CATIC Construction Engineering 24 November 1992 Limited liability company ~ Construction activities,
Co., Ltd. project management,
PRC
HEPREERLERAA “E-CH+-AZt=H 40% - ARELATA BEEH  PE
Hengyang AIVC Electroplating 23 November 2012 Limited liability company  Manufacturing industry,
Centre Co., Ltd. PRC
B EARENERAR) “EERFAZH 30% 30% AREEAT REREENEHY
(TRRE2)) 2 June 2006 Limited liability company ~ Manufacture and installation
Jinan Iron & Steel Group Weihai of ships’ components,
Qiyue Ship Materials Co. Ltd. PRC
("Qi Yue')
EMZeTMEEARAR “E——%+-A-1+-H 15% 15% BRELRR NEER TE

(W)
Xiamen Zijing CATIC Co., Ltd.
(Note (c))

21 November 2011 Limited liability company  Property developing, PRC
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15 REEQATNKREE) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
AEERMEEZEHME NG ZEENEN The Group’s share of the results of its principal
FEE(BEEE)NT associates and its share of the net assets (including

goodwill) are as follows:

RE/ER KERR
Bl Authorised/ EAREE Bt
28 Place of Registered Paid up ZE-CF % Interest
Name incorporation  capital capital 2012 held
R/
(B8)
(3 8 KA Profit/
Assets Liabilities ~ Revenue (Loss)

ABRTR ABRTR ARETZ ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

Mt EER AR PE 1,595,00057T 1,595,000570 58,650 37442 53,540 281 50%
CGASTIC-SMP Machinery Corporation Limited The PRC USD1,595,000 USD1,595,000

HFATRENERAF PE ARE3600,000  ARS3,600,0007 8,265 2,302 9,050 (901) 30%
Shenzhen Shenrong Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB3,600,000 RMB3,600,000

Mt TEEERRERAA PE ARE10,000,000  AR%10,000,0007 3,370 478 - - 3951%
Shenzhen CAERO Digital Display Inc. The PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000

HERENETERAA PE AREI 7111100007 ARBA711,1100007 537,712 394,377 246,182 (10,546) 10%
Wuhan Tianma Microelectronics Co. Ltd. The PRC RMB1,711,110,000  RMB1,711,110,000

PERDERDA PE AR666,961 4167 AR6669614167 3,196,119 2,294,172 935420 92,625  22.35%
AVIC Real Estate Co,, Ltd The PRC RMB666,961,416  RMBG666,961,416

ERREHERIRNERAT PE AR30000,0000  AK%30000000T 16,898 9,512 29,632 1,431 20%
Huangshi Raece Technology Co., Ltd The PRC RMB30,000,000 RMB30,000,000

LEgEERARA HE NEH15,3500000  ARE153500000 19,861 1,18 14,110 1,732 25%
Shanghai Watch Industry Co., Ltd The PRC RMB15,350,000  RMB15,350,000

LRREEEERAA PE ARH10,000,000  AR%10,000,0007 3,968 10 - 1] 20%
Shanghal Heying Industrial Investment Co., Ltd ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000

EprEspgr iR ERAALEENE BB AE100,0000000 AK%100,000,000 11,098 - - - 15%

EERERD The PRC RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000
Advanced Semiconductor Packaging Technology
Research & Development Centre (ASPTC)
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REZATNKRE #) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
RE/SRER KERR
it Authorised/ BHERA Bl
B Place of Registered Paid up —E--f % Interest
Name incorporation  capital capital 2012 held
%N/
(Fi8)
&E 8f WA Profit/
Assets Liabilities ~ Revenue (Loss)
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETZ
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
WRILEETRERARAT Giled ARH20,000000 AR%20,0000007 128978 87,126 154,382 9,146 25%
Shandong Shantui Ouyatuo Machinery Co.Ltd ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000  RMB20,000,000
M TERELAR A HE AR200,000000 AE®200,000000 1,178,005  1,100214 702,177 (31,080) 45%
Taizhou AVIC Shipbuilding Heavy Industry Limited ~ The PRC RMB200,000,000  RMB200,000,000
KHD Humboldt Wedag International AG BE 49,703 573B 7T 49703 573BITT 724772 336,155 355238 3,813 20%
Germany EUR49,703,573 EUR49,708,573
WRAHET EFERERR A HE AR3000,000m  AR%3,000,0007 10,329 9,338 8,436 - 30%
Shandong New Shipbuilding Pipe Outiting The PRC RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000
Production Co., Ltd
EFEHESARLA Ll ARH400,0000007 AK%400,0000007 1,094,011 1,874,050 - - 30%
Xiamen Fu Ming Property Co. Ltd The PRC RMB400,000,000  RMB400,000,000
RFRmEERNA Giled ARH6,000,000  AK6,000,0007 2,624 1,009 4,148 19 30%
Xiamen AVIC Property Management Co. Ltd The PRC RMB6,000,000 RMB6,000,000
Radiance GATICO Offshore Pte. Ltd., 7 5,000,000%7 5,000,000%7 56,455 46,194 - (1,368) 37%
The PRC UUSD5,000,000 1JSD5,000,000
BNERRTEERAR HE ARH1,000,000  ARE1,000,0007 623 301 624 2 40%
Guangzhou Huahang Bicycle Co., Ltd The PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000
BiFERRFRRERAT Giled ARE20796247  ARM2,079,6247C 14,252 mo 2123 4,505 25%
Changzhou TED Golf Product Ltd The PRC RMB2,079,624 RMB2,079,624
AEREERARLA HE ARE80,000,000  AK%80,0000007T 3,608,893 3,426,662 81,226 61,351 20%
Hangfa Investment Management Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB80,000,000 RMB80,000,000
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15 REZEATINEE#Z) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
B/ RER KERR
e Authorised/ BMRRE BAl
2% Place of Registered Paid up —E-C % Interest
Name incorporation  capital capital 2012 held
A/
(F#)
gE & A Profit/
Assets  Liabilities  Revenue (Loss)
ABRTT AREFr ARETL ARETR
RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000
PHREHEREERAA PE AR20,000,000  AR%20,000,0007 3,327 2,449 - (27) 20%
CATIC Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 RMB20,000,000
TREEIRERAT HE AR#100000,000 ARE100000,000 41,060 15301 79,646 585 5%
CATIC Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000
EErmEETLARAA ke AR¥50,000000  ARH50,000000 19,943 - - (57) 40%
Hengyang AIVC Electroplating Centre Co., Ltd The PRC RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000
FEERRERARAR HE ARE9,000,000  ARH9,000,0007 204616 212404 170,602 289 30%
Jinan Iron & Steel Group Weihai Qiyue Ship The PRC RMB9,000,000 RMB9,000,000
Materials Co. Ltd
EFRePhERARAT GilE7 ARH250,000000 AKH250,000000 57,780 20,514 1,905 - 15%
Xiamen Zijing CATIC Co., Ltd., The PRC RMB250,000,000  RMB250,000,000
11,931,618 9,872,068 2,867,551 131,878
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REZNATNRE &) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
RE/HRER HEER
Ry Authorised/ BARRA BAl
%8 Place of Registered Paid up —E——F % Interest
Name incorporation  capital capital 2011 held
B/
(B#)
BE 8 WA Prof/
Assets  Liablities  Revenue (Loss)
NREFT \REFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
MR EERAA 7 1,695,005 1595,000% 44,202 19,841 60,491 563 50%
CGASTIC-SMP Machinery Corporation Limited The PRC USD1,595,000 USD1,595,000
MIFRIRERERAT Giled ARE3600,000  AR3,6000007 10,083 3170 10,689 217 30%
Shenzhen Shenrong Engineering The PRC RMB3,600,000 RMB3,600,000
Plastics Co., Ltd.
R REERETRRERAA HE ARE10000,000  ARKE10000,000 3370 478 - - 3051%
Shenzhen CAERO Digital Display Inc. The PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000
RERBHETERAF HE ARH ARH 505080 363686 92674 (15729 10%
Wuhan Tianma Microglectronics Co. Ltd. The PRC 1,600,000,0000c  1,600,000,0007
RMB1,600,000,000  RMB1,600,000,000
hiERNERAT Giled AEH666,961 4167 ARE606961 416 2475440 1715581 828274 115604 22.35%
AVIC Real Estate Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBG666,961,416  RMB666,961,416
EREEAERERABRAT HE ARE30000000 AR®30000000T 14940 9054 15505 133 20%
Huangshi Raece Technology Co., Ltd The PRC, RMB30,000,000 RMB30,000,000
WRILERERERARAT Giled ARE20,0000000 AE®20000000T 119185 37082 268382 10914 25%
Shandong Shantui Quyatuo Machinery Co.Ltd ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 RMB20,000,000
KHD Humboldt Wedag International AG 24 49,703 573 49703 573BITT 705113 323872 382,947 20,881 20%
Germany EUR49,703,573 EUR49,708,573
WRIHET SRR EERAA HE ARE3000000  AR3,0000007 5,757 4,906 5,561 44 30%
Shandong New Shipbuilding Pipe Outfitting The PRC RMB3,000,000 RMBS,000,000
Production Co., Ltd
EFEBEZERAT PE ARE400,000,0007 AR 400,000,000 1,179,016 1,059,055 - (39) 30%
Xiamen Fu Ming Property Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB400,000,000  RMB400,000,000
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15 REZEATINEE#Z) 15 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
RE/ERER KERR
B Authorised/ BARER ARt
4 Place of Registered Paid up % % Interest
Name incorporation  capital capital 2011 held
#l/
(B#)
BE 8f B Profit/
Assets  Liabilties ~ Revenue (Loss)

NRETT ARRTL ARRTL ARETR
RVB000  RMB'OOD  AMBO00  AMBO00

ERTHREEELA Giled AE®6,000000  AK6,000,0007C 2202 606 1,09% 322 30%
Xiamen AVIC Property Management Co., Ltd The PRC RMB6,000,000 RMB6,000,000

ENRESEXARERAT B ARE2,079.6247  ARM2,079,6247C 10,068 38 17821 5,847 25%
Changzhou TED Golf Product Ltd The PRC RMB2,079,624 RMB2,079,624

AEREERARDA e AE%80,000000  AK®80000000 1977190 1,881,964 - 4714 20%
Hangfa investment Management Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBS0,000,000  RMBS0,000,000

PhEEEREERAT PE AE20,000,000  AR%20,000,0007 4,787 2,009 - ) 20%
CATIC Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 RMB20,000,000

PREETRERLA e AE100,000000 AK®100,000000 22,906 7,022 501 10 25%
CATIC Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000

FREHREHERAT PE 4.300,000%7 4,300,00057 10271 3,115 13,087 - 35%
Beijing T.G.I.Friday Restaurant Co., Ltd The PRC USD4,300,000 USD4,300,000

ERZeTMESARAA e AE%250,000000 AR®250,000000% 38,130 752 - - 15%
Xiamen Ziing CATIC Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB250,000,000  RMB250,000,000

7128619 5433531 1696978 143,467
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REHE RTNRE (#)

(@)

BEAKREMMBREXRFMET
ERAB(THEXRS ) BED
R20% @ NREBHREREXRS
EXemBESTRAANM T
Mo ATEEARESD  XHE
2ENERFHEREEBRRN
N

BEAKRBAFFEREELE
Bt 3k L HE D10 20% - AR E
HREIFBRHRALEMERL
B REFHAAOETHE
MoRTEEARES  XLHAE
SELERHRLBWHEH LY
15 B A E R AR -

BEAREMMBEMZRETME
XBRRFIRELR20% » A&
BHZEEMZREFMEXER
NRAEFEE - REFHAAHM
THM ATEEAREN A
ERZBAEMRETMEXAR
NEII T RIS RRENREK o

RZE—=—F+=-A=+—8"
REBRFPMHBLERDER
RAINEZ AR EBEBEBARARE
997,397,000 7T ( =& — — 4
469,627,000) - &I At 2 AR
DAERARFFINFERZFT LT °

RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—80 "
REBPKHD Humboldt Wedag
International AGH#EZE A K7 BE
B AR 387,782,000 T ( = &
— — £ : 405,705,400 ) * KHD
Humboldt Wedag International
AGREBIER T £ ©

AEBELBEARAKRES
HEEENXABBAARYE
176,019,000 (=& ——4F : A
R#10,000,0007T) °

15

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(a)

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the
equity interest in Wuhan Tianma Microelectronics
Co. Ltd. (“Wuhan Tianma”), the Group exercises
significant influence by virtue of its contractual
right to appoint two directors to the board of
directors of Wuhan Tianma and has the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of Wuhan Tianma.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the
equity interest in ASPTC, the Group exercises
significant influence by virtue of its contractual
right to appoint one director to the board of
directors of ASPTC and has the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of ASPTC.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of the
equity interest in Xiamen Zijing CATIC Co., Ltd,
the Group exercises significant influence by virtue
of its contractual right to appoint one director
to the board of directors of Xiamen Zijing CATIC
Co., Ltd and has the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of Xiamen
Zijing CATIC Co., Ltd.

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in AVIC Real Estate Co., Ltd.
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
was RMB997,397,000 (2011: RMB469,627,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in KHD Humboldt Wedag
International AG, which is listed on the Germany
Stock Exchange, was RMB387,782,000 (2011:
RMB405,705,400).

The Group’s share of associates contingent
liabilities incurred jointly by investors is
RMB176,019,000 (2011: RMB10,000,000).
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REeREZEHIER 2RE 16 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
iy ] ¥ NS
Group Company
—F--F —F—F =B--F ZFTF
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(L =75)
(Restated)
F14 At beginning of year 2,216,165 1,971,995 - -
AE Capital injection 19,204 72,636 - -
—E-TFE 2010 Acquisition - - 2,385,857 -
AEHENSREEEA  Transfer from available-for-sale
(He£18) financial assets (Note 18) 640 - = -
BUERE Dividends received (168,541) - = -
HEERESR Share of currency translation
differences (23) 141 - -
HWHRZWELF (a) Transfer to subsidiaries (a) (882) - = -
BEE THRHEK Elimination of unrealised profit
FIREF from downstream transaction (961) - - -
AERREHIEEEH Share of profit of jointly
controlled entities 345,172 171,393 - -
G N At end of year 2,410,774 2,216,165 2,385,857 -

EfAEEETM(ER) BER
RERAR(TEMEE])S1%K
o REBEEME f?ikﬁﬂﬂﬁu'ﬁ
BARGEBEE= D 2K
FEERRBRAUER - At
EfEEARA —BEREHE
B-R_E——-F=-A=+H"
ERMACEBE  WSESTE
RRBERB—FEREEN AR
RFATAK - At EFIEER
ZE-—ZHF=-A=F+HZ%EAK
BB AR -

Xiamen Company held 51% equity interest in AVIC
(Xiamen) Medical Technology Co., Ltd (“Xiamen
Medical”). According to the articles of association
of Xiamen Medical, the decision of the Board of
Directors meeting shall be valid on condition that
more than two-thirds of the votes were cast in
favor of resolution. Therefore, Xiamen Medical
was accounted as a jointly controlled entity. On
30 March 2012, the articles of association have
been amended so that the decision of Board of
Directors shall be valid on condition that more
than half of the votes were cast in favour of the
resolution. Thus, Xiamen Medical was accounted
as a subsidiary by Xiamen Company after 30
March 2012.
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R-E——F+-_A=+—H8 £X&EH
HEEEED EBHREHEEHNT ¢

ZRE(#E)

16 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had direct interests
in the following major jointly controlled entities:

TEEH/
R/ RLAS EfREEE
Date of EEER TEER Principal activities/
NGRS incorporation/ Attributable HMEX Type of place of incorporation
Name of associate establishment equity interest Registered capital legal entity and operation
“2-ZF  —T—-F
2012 2011
BN ) ZEStFZRTAA 60% 60% ARE BRMIARBHER  DFERREE ¢
AVIC Vanke (Note (a)) 15 March 2007 3,000,000,0007¢ Contractual jointly Property developing and
RMB3,000,000,000 controlled entities construction, PRC
EEPhES ZEENELAZTLA 50% 50% AR®1000000007 AAHRAEHEE NFEXRREE TH
Shenyang AVIC Industry 27 July 2009 RMB100,000,000  Contractual jointly Property developing and
controlled entities construction, PRC
CATICBJ-SHANTUI —5-——5-A=tmA 51% 51% 1,000,000%7 BNMILREHERE B5 ERGHAE
Construction Machinery 24 February 2011 USD1,000,000 Contractual jointly Trading, Republic of Kenya
(E.A) Company Limited controlled entities
WEERSHEEIR  —F5,F+-A=1H 50% 50% ARM2600000T AUKAREHER MEREEIRRHR
BRAF 30 December 2006 RMB2,600,000 Contractual jointly R
Shandong Deta Malin Marine controlled entities  Ship and marine
Engineering Company engineering design and
Limited service
TR=EWRkERG < —E-—FN\ATEA 50% 50% AR¥5000000007 AOKAREHER WRREE  hE
BRAF 15 August 2011 RMB500,000,000  Contractual jointly Logistics and investment,
AVIC Sanye Logistics controlled entities PRC
Investment Co., Ltd.
Brizo Marine Limited “2-——£-f-+7A 50% 50% 3,045,000 ANNIARANERE WERE EBRXER
25 March 2011 USD3,045,000 Contractual jointly Shipping building, British
controlled entities virgin island
Vesper Maring Limited “Z——%=F-+t1A 50% 50% 3,045,000% 7 RUBILRAEHER hERE RERIES
25 March 2011 USD3,045,000 Contractual jointly Shipping building, British
controlled entities virgin island
Hermus Marine Limted ~ —E——%=A=1%H 50% - 3,045,000 ANFLRENERE WERE EBRRES
25 March 2011 USD3,045,000 Contractual jointly Ship building, British virgin
controlled entities island
Proteus Maring Limited ~ ~F——%=fA-+1H 50% - 3,045,000%7 ANNARANERE WERE KBRXES
25 March 2011 USD3,045,000 Contractual jointly Ship building, British virgin
controlled entities island
Nereus Maring Pte. Ltd. ~ ~E——#-F~18 50% - 100,000%7 ANHIARRHER MERE KBRLES
20 February 2012 USD100,000 Contractual jointly Ship building, Singapore

controlled entities

PHERERROERAE
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REFEFHERKREE) 16 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
AEFEEEEIERAZEHEB 2 EZER The Group’s share of the results of its principal jointly
FFEE(BERE)WT controlled entities and its share of the net assets
(including goodwill) are as follows:
R
tEER
Place of RE/HRER HhER
incorporation Authorised/ BHERE BAl
E4 and kind of Registered Paid up “8-CF % Interest
Name legal entity capital capital 2012 held
FhogE FREEE &R/
hBEE Non- %BEE  Non- (%)
Current  current  Current  current WA BX  Profit/
assets  assets liabilities [liabilities Revenue Expenses (Loss)
ABETE AREFL ARETT ARETL ARETRL ARETL AREFZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HHER PE - BREAAF ARM ARE 491,379 3,338,430 4835485 537,158 3,658,206 3,315,552 342,654 60%
(i) The PRC, 3,000,000,0007 3,000,000,0007C
AVIC Vanke (Note (b)) Limited Liabity ~ RMB3,000,000,000 ~ RMB3,000,000,000
company
BRTMES M) RE BREFLE  AREI00000000T AKE100000000% 35492 10,772 50 - - - - 0%
Shenyang AVIC Industry  The PRC, RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000
(Note (c)) Limited Liabilty
company
CATICBJ-SHANTUI ERE BREFE 100000037 1,000,000 16,826 1,000 15282 - 895 23412 483 51%
Construction machinery ~ A% USD1,000,000 USD1,000,000
(E.A) Company Limited  Kenya, Limited
(i) Liabilty company
CATICBJ-SHANTUI
Construction machinery
(E.A) Company Limited
(Note (c)
WREHSHESTRE 8 BREFLA AR¥2600000m  AK2,600000T 1,158 318 318 - 2,129 2,129 - 50%
R The PRC, Limited ~ RMB2,600,000 RMB2,600,000
Shandong Deta Malin Liability company
Marine Engineering
Company Limited
(Note (c))
PR-ENRRERGE PE-ARETAA ARB50000000m  AKE50,000,0007 47323 1,671 109 - - 293 (293) 50%
B W) The PRC, Limited ~ RMB50,000,000  RMB50,000,000
AVIC Sanye Logistics Liability company
Investment Co., Ltd.
(Note (c))
ERER (0 wE BREMLA ARBI000000T  AKRH3000,0007 13,802 212 11,550 - 16908 16979 ] 50%
Xiamen Medical (Note (c)) The PRC, Limited ~ RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000

Liability company
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16 REFEFER2KRE®) 16 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
AR
rEER
Place of RE/HRER KA
incorporation Authorised/ BHERE At
E4 and kind of Registered Paid up “8-CF % Interest
Name legal entity capital capital 2012 held
FhogE FREER &R/
RHEE  Non- FiBEE  Non- (B8)
Current  current  Current  current WA Bx  Profit/
assets  assets liabilities liabilities Revenue Expenses (Loss)
ABETT AREFL ARETFT ARETL ARETRL ARETL AREFZ
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Brizo Marine Limited HE - BREMLF 3045000%T 3,045,005 9,648 - 1 - 4,249 378 3,81 50%
(i) UK; Limited Liabilty ~ USD3,045,000 USD3,045,000
Brizo Maring Limited company
(Note (c))
Vesper Marine Limted ~ XBRLES BB 3,045,000%7 3,045,005 3 9,098 92 - - 308 (308) 50%
i) BfAA USD3,045,000 USD3,045,000
Vesper Marine Limited ~ British Virgin Island,
(Note (c)) Limited Liability
company
Hermus Marine Limited ~ #EEXES - BB 3,045,000% T 3,045,005 3,618 9,098 3,707 - - 561 (561) 50%
i) BfAA USD3,045,000 USD3,045,000
Hermus Marine Limited ~ British Virgin Island,
(Note (c)) Limited Liabilty
company
Profeus Marine Limted ~ #EEXES - AR 3,045,000% T 3,045,005 4 9,098 92 - - 560 (560) 50%
i) BfAA USD3,045,000 USD3,045,000
Proteus Marine Limited ~ British Virgin Island,
(Note (c)) Limited Liabilty
company
Nereus Marine Filg o ABRER 10000057 100,000%7 72 5468 5468 - - 4 (43 50%
Pte. Lid (i) S| USD100,000 USD100,000
Nereus Marine Pte. Ltd. ~ Singapore, Limited
(Note (c)) Liability company

5,039,525 3,385,220 4,872,200 537,158 3,705447 3,360,275 345172
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16 RHEFZE4FIEEZ2KRE#) 16 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)
R
TR
Place of Rig/HRER R
incorporation Authorised/ BARRA BAl
2 and kind of Registered Paid up It S 2 % Interest
Name legal entity capital capital 2011 held
FRDEE FraaE &7/
THEE Non-  REI&(E Non- (B518)
Curent  curent  Curent current WA BY  Profif
assets assets  liablities  liabiities  Revenue  Expenses (Loss)
NEBTT NRETT ARETL ARETT ARETL AREFT ARETL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  AMB'000
SREM M) BE BREFAT ARES000000,0007 ARE30000000007 5765528 3638801 6313980 327404 2075123 1898746 176377 60%
AVIC Vanke (Note (b))~ The PRC, Limited ~ RMB3,000,000,000  RMB3,000,000,000
Liability company
ARThES BE - BREALA ARE100,000,000m  ARE100,000,0007 35,583 10,930 59 - - 2086 (2,030) 50%
(o) The PRC, Limited ~ RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000
Shenyang AVIC Industry  Liahility company
(Note (c)
CATICBJ-SHANTUI BT BREMA 1,000,057 1,000,000%7C 5413 666 3,853 - 3,338 4385 (1,017) 51%
Construction ] UUSD1,000,000 USD1,000,000
machinery (E.A) Kenya, Limited
Company Limited Liahility company
(Wte)
CATICBJ-SHANTUI
Construction
Machinery (E.A)
Company Limited
(Note (c)
WRERENEZTIE B BREMLA ARK2600000m  ARE2600,0001 859 502 243 - 2,637 2,130 507 50%
BRDR(WAE)  ThePRC, Limted  RMB2,600,000 RMB2,600,000
Shandong Deta Malin Liability company
Maring Engineering
Company Limited
(Note (c)
Ph-ENRRERG P8 BREMLE ARE50,000000T  AKES0,000,0007 48,052 1,197 n - - 823 (823) 50%
BRDR(We)  ThePRC, Limted  RMBS0,000,000 RMB50,000,000
AVIC Sanye Logistics Liability company
Investment Co., Ltd
(Note (c))
EFREMH0) wE - BREFLA ARE3000000m  ARHS0000007% 1539 134 739 - 20127 BT 50%
Xiamen Medical The PRC, Limited ~ RMB3,000,000 RMB3,000,000
(Note (c) Liability company
Brizo Marine Limted ~ EEEXES - AR 3,045,000%7 3,045, 00057 &5 91 18 - - 785 (785)  50%
(o) EDF USD3,045,000 133,045,000
Brizo Marine Limited British Virgin Island,
(Note (c) Limited Liabilty
company
Vesper Merine Limited ~ £BRXES R 3,045,007 3,045,000 70 45 911 18 - - %3 (253 50%
(i) EERA 1USD3,045,000 USD3,045,000
Vesper Marine Limited ~ British Virgin Island,
Note () Limited Liabilty
company
5857064 3670472 6318981 327,404 2,081,818 1910425 171,398
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(@)

FRMERERERARARRIRE=ZT
ERNCERMDBERRAA D B E
60% &% 40% ° RIFEFMER A
BERZMER  EFBREEWE
EHREEREL =Dz —RER
IR A& - At - P ER A
AR REBRCERMDER AR
HEZH  WARABARQF MK

RIZHIEEE

AEEEAETMEHMNRRAE
(I

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

(@)

The equity interest of AVIC Vanke is owned as
to 60% by the Company and 40% by Vanke
Enterprise Company Limited, which is a third
party. According to the article of association of
AVIC Vanke, its financial and operating policies
shall be approved by shareholders representing
at least two thirds of the voting rights. Therefore
AVIC Vanke is jointly controlled by the Company
and Vanke Enterprise Company Limited, and is
accounted for as a jointly controlled entity by the
Company.

The Group’s share of contingent liabilities of AVIC
Vanke is as follows:

R+=-—H=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—=F -4
2012 2011
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
HETHEERFEE Guarantees in respect of mortgage
BB R ER facilities for certain purchasers 54,811 123,936
BLEFIEER Guarantee in respect of borrowings - 163,200
54,811 287,136

AEBRIETMEROAELLT

The Group’s share of commitments of AVIC Vanke
is as follows:

R+=-—HA=+-—H

As at 31 December
—E--F —E——%F
2012 2011
AEB¥TFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&ES))
(Restated)

FELERDPYENER Development costs attributable to

D% properties under development 500,345 782,180

BBt B AR E N AR
HEBIREEHENEANLRA
BRAEE  MAREHEBAS
MEERRARAE -

©

There are no other significant contingent liabilities
and commitments relating to the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entities and no
contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled entities
themselves.
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BERSENEMIA
AEME

R-B-Z-H+-A=+—H
BE  WEaEEREXSE

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The Group:
At 31 December 2012
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet

HEE
HHAM AfHE
T4 CHEE SREE
ERK $WMIA Held-to-  Available-
FEWFIE  Derivative maturity for-sale
Loans and financial financial financial st
receivables instruments assets assets Total
ARETFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AtHECREE Available-for-sale financial
(Hi#18) assets (Note 18) - - - 259,819 259,819
(TS BIE(ff325) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 25) - 3,110 - - 3,110
B REmENFE Trade and other receivables
(MpfEE2REE)  excluding non-financial
(Hit23) assets (Note 23) 7,658,804 - - - 7,658,804
EIREITER(M7£26)  Pledged bank deposits
(Note 26) 510,563 - - - 510,563
BeRBALEEY Cash and cash equivalents
(Hit27) (Note 27) 4,038,225 - - - 4,038,225
4=t Total 12,207,592 3,110 - 269,819 12,470,521
BE  WiGaEEBEXAMEH Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
Hih &
=N
B EE R A
Other
financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
AEFT
RMB’000
B (H1at31) Borrowings (Note 31) 14,606,566
BENhEMmENZIE(TEIEIESF  Trade and other payables excluding non-financial
af&)(H15735) liabilities (Note 35) 7,143,879
HEmIEmRBaE (7o) Other non-current liabilities (Note 34) 1,202,424
HBEt Total 22,952,869
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17 RENPENEMIE#) 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
KEHR : (&) The Group: (continued)
HNo-BE——F+=-A=+—H(KEF|) At 31 December 2011, as restated
BE  WiraBERELXAE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
BEZ

HMWAMN AHHE
T4 SREE SREE
EXR $RIA Held-to-  Available-

FEWFIE  Derivative maturity for-sale
Loans and financial financial financial @t
receivables instruments assets assets Total

AREFIL  ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETIL
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

AL ESREE Available-for-sale financial
(H1i£18) assets (Note 18) - - - 205,046 205,046

HEZFHEMSRERE Held-to-maturity financial
assets - - 15,000 - 15,000

B 5 REMEWRFUR Trade and other receivables
(MafEdEeRARE)  excluding non-financial

(Hiz#23) assets (Note 23) 5,564,448 - - - 5,564,448
BRI (M7226)  Pledged bank deposits
(Note 26) 557,414 - - - 557,414
BekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents
(Hiz27) (Note 27) 3,249,891 - - - 3,249,891
et Total 9,371,753 - 15,000 205,046 9,591,799
BIE  WtEEEREBEXTE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
Hith
sRmas
8RR A
T Other
@I H financial
Derivative liabilities
financial at amortised et
instruments cost Total
AREFr AR Fr ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
&R (H77231) Borrowings (Note 31) - 13,167,680 13,167,680
TSR ITE(H7#25) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 25) 441 — 441
B 5 NEMERR Trade and other payables
(TBEEFESHARE) excluding non-financial
(H1:235) liabilities (Note 35) - 7,550,590 7,550,590
HiIEmB A& (#1:#34) Other non-current liabilities
(Note 34) - 153,363 153,363
st Total 441 20,871,633 20,872,074
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17 RENPENEMIE#) 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
Vi /N The Company:
R=B-—Z=F+=ZH=+—8H At 31 December 2012
BE  WEEBEXIE Assets as per balance sheet
At HE
SREE
EBERK Available-
YR IE for-sale
Loans and financial st
receivables assets Total
ARETFT ARETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHHEEREE Available-for-sale financial
(Ktst18) assets (Note 18) - 1,400 1,400
Eofh el R R EULAR 8. Other receivables and dividends
(H1i223) receivables (Note 23) 666,609 - 666,609
ReERFSEEY Cash and cash equivalents
(Hiz27) (Note 27) 81,117 - 81,117
45T Total 747,726 1,400 749,126
BlE  WEEBEXIE Liabilities as per balance sheet
Hih &
=N
1 85 B A<
Other
financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
ARETFT
RMB’000
B (H15£31) Borrowings (Note 31) 1,800,000
BENAEMEMZTIE(NEIEIESR  Trade and other payables excluding non-financial
a&)(H735) liabilities (Note 35) 278,396
HIEmsaE(its4) Other non-current liabilities (Note 34) 1,050,000
HEt Total 3,128,396
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17 RENPENEMIE#) 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
AT () The Company: (continued)
R=B——F+=H=+—8H At 31 December 2011
BE  WEEBEXIE Assets as per balance sheet
At HE
SRMEE
BRE Available-
PEURFRIE for-sale
Loans and financial st
receivables assets Total
ARET T ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AIHEEEREE Available-for-sale financial
(B1#£18) assets (Note 18) - 1,400 1,400
HAth EUFRIB (M 52123) Other receivables (Note 23) 300,763 - 300,763
ReRREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents
(Hiaz27) (Note 27) 26,579 - 26,579
HEt Total 327,342 1,400 328,742
BE WMEEREXIH Liabilities as per balance sheet
Hirewm
=N
BeH A A
Other
financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
ARETFT
RMB’000
& (HTaE31) Borrowings (Note 37) 1,500,000
BEREMEMNTE(TBRIEIESH Trade and other payables excluding non-financial
81&)(HiE35) liabilities (Note 35) 313,746
HEt Total 1,813,746
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18 AHHELREE 18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
r5E v N
Group Company
~®--f _-T-—F =-B--f _"T—F
2012 2011 2012 2011

ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(mE5)
(Restated)
BRI L EES Investments in listed A shares of
RS EHARMN companies listed in Shenzhen
AR E or Shanghai Stock Exchange 23,449 23,976 - -
RIELTATIRMBZHEE  Investments in shares of unlisted
companies 236,370 181,070 1,400 1,400
259,819 205,046 1,400 1,400
FrEaHEESmEEUARENE - All available-for-sale financial assets are all denominated
in RMB.
FAAHREECRHEE 2SEWT ¢ The movements of available-for-sale financial assets

during the year are as follows:

rEE VN
Group Company
—¥-=F —F——F Z=B--fF _F—F
2012 2011 2012 2011

ARETE AREBTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(E75)
(Restated)
F£4]) At beginning of year 205,046 121,252 1,400 1,400
ERERREEHER Transfer to jointly controlled
(fi:#16) entities (Note 16) (640) - = -
NE Additions 85,633 102,760 - -
HE Disposals (30,403) (12,499 - -
HAEZZAABEES  Fair value change charged to
(KRBT equity, gross of tax 183 2,699 - -
B Provisions - (9,166) - -
ESN At end of year 259,819 205,046 1,400 1,400
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19 EEMBH 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
rEE AR F
Group Company
—2--f %% Z-B-"f T —F
2012 2011 2012 2011

ABBTR ARETFTT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

(E5)
(Restated)
ERERIEEE Deferred tax assets:
— BB+ —EA%ERE - t0 be recovered after more
than 12 months 249,403 196,088 - -
-+ AR REE - to be recovered within
12 months 14,928 37,930 - -
264,331 234,018 - -
EIERIERLE Deferred tax liabilities:
— BT A — to be settled after more than
12 months (539,245) (526,800) - -
EXERIBEE T8 Deferred tax liabilities — net (274,914) (292,782) - -
RIEFRISFIRIE 2 FE BN T - The net movements on the deferred income tax account
are as follows:
Fi - | ¥ NG|
Group Company
—%--fF ZF % Z=B--F ZF—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBKETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E5))
(Restated)
E4) Beginning of the year (292,782) (246,079) - -
Rz &bt A (fif3242)  Credited to income statement
(Note 42) 22,923 497 - -
EEREMEGE T Tax charged directly to other
k2 #E comprehensive income (1,754) (34,783) - -
HEWMB AR (H1:246) Disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 46) (3,405) (836) - -
A NG 2 ) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 49) 104 (11,581) - -
FX End of year (274,914) (292,782) - -
FrS BT I 5T 425 i © The income tax charge is detailed in Note 42.
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19 EIEFREHKE) 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
FRELEMSHEENBECREZRE The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
SRAITE R — & [ A8 ) = Ehan T - during the year, without taking into consideration the

offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are
as follows:
BELEHEEE : Deferred tax assets:
158
Group
Effe
g3k HRERR
Ak AhEE
SERE FAES
FERR Salaries
Provision for payable and
impairment A retirement
losseson ~ REFERE FEREA  and other
tradeand  Provision BFEE  temal  supplementdl  ENEX  EfifE
other ~ for inventory BE  HEEE  Govenment  unrealised benefit  Accrued  Interest i %
receivables obsolescence  Provisions  Tax losses grants profits  obligations  expenses payable Others Total
NEETT  AEETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ABEFT AREFT AEEET ARERT ARERT ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RAMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
RZF--E-F At1January 201,
-B @85 asrestated 39,376 16,999 6484 27081 11309 13941 20912 - - 2664 165,876
ABZ(8)/ (Charged)/credited to he
A income statement (56,940) 10,608 et 7613 3540 16545 (10501) 2,369 3684 16,616 14265
WEHBAR  Acquistion of subsiciaries 5427 - - - - - - - - - BT
HEMBAT  Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (636 (63)
RZE--F  At31 December 2011
t-R=t-R 37,863 20,55 2010 3460 1409 30486 74n 71309 3684 3,64 8T8
WA/ Creaited/charged) to the
(1) income statement 13545 (7.200) 20 31520 2873 1517 5310 22.99%) (151 278 41503
WE-FHEBAT Acquistion of a subsidiary
(49 (Nots 49 104 - - - - - - - - - 0
HEMBAT  Disposals of subsidaries
(i) (Note 46 (6,989) - 220 - - - - - (2,166) - (1,445)
WZF-2E  At31 December 2012
tZR=t-H 44603 20,350 - 86,214 nmn 52,003 2781 4313 - 1498 264944
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19 EBIEFREHK &) 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
EEBIEERS Deferred tax liabilities:
K&E
Group
qftLe
SHEE,  ERUWEL BENEE
MR BELR RENE

k&  EEGE  REMEZ  Transfer of
MEHE  Fairvalve  Fairvalue ZAAEEZE owner- KB
& gainsof gainonassets  Fairvalue  occupied LGRS
Accelerated available-for- acquired from  changeon  propertyto Unrecognised

tax  sale financial business investment  investment financial @
depreciation assets  acquisition  properties  properties cost Total

ARBTE  ARETT  ARRTL  ARRTR  ARETL  ARRTL  ARETT
RMBOOO  AMBODD  RMBOOO  AWBODD  AMBOOO  RWBOO  AUBOO0

RZZ2--%-A-0  At1January 2011, as restated

HEL] (131) (2,028) (263,096) (156,700) - - (411,955
IRERIBGIA)/HB  (Creditec)/charged to income statement 3 426 5,332 (19,609 - (526) (13,769)
WEHBAT Acquistton of subsiciaries - - (67,008) - - - (67,008)
BENEfRA T Tax credited directly to other

FALTE comprehensive income - (199) - - (34,584) - (34,783)
H=8--£+=B=+-A At31 December 2011 (129) (1801 @412 (176303 (3458) 6% (7514
MEERA/ () Credtedt(charged] to income statement 128 (580) 5,515 (23693 - - (18630]
HEWBRR(Hi#46)  Disposals of subsiciaies (Note 46) - - 8,040 - . : 8,040
BEREMEANEDRHA  Tax credted drectl to other

comprehensive income - (46) - - (1,708) - (1,754)
HZE-ZE+ZB=+-A At31 December 2012 - R4 B0S1T) (1999 (3629 62 (639859
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19 EBIEFREHKE) 19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
ELEREBEEE : (&) Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)
RINBE ZBREEHRBEENT - The potential deferred tax assets not recognised in the
accounts were related to:
—E——F —ET——F
2012 2011
AR¥TFrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
AT TE B 18 Tax losses carried forward 1,424,425 1,307,373
BEFFBECEMSHE - RRQRAH According to the new Corporate Income Tax Law, tax
HBBEEEAUNEERRRAEFAZ losses of the PRC companies can be carried forward to
FERTIRF © offset future assessable profit for a period of 5 years.
A A T8 B A% 2R A1 A] gE B FE R BO& 7 Deferred income tax assets had not been recognised as
Myt A8 A L AT N BB R SR E it is not probable that taxable profit will be made available
B W EERELEMSHEE ° to utilise the deductible tax losses and temporary
differences in the foreseeable future.
RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H B As at 31 December 2012, deferred tax assets and
MEEEREESBEBESHARE deferred tax liabilities balances of RMB613,000 (2011:
613,000t (=& ——4F : AR¥714,000 RMB714,000) were related to the same company and
7 ) B[R — A B E B R B B IR A o were offset against each other.
Hagted v FiIREE AR A RS BR CIRIT The expiry date of deferred tax assets not accounted for
MIBEEDBHANT in respect of tax losses carried forward is as follows:
—E-=fF %
2012 2011
AR¥TFr ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
—FNHH Expire within 1 year 87,461 2,998
—Z ZFRNEH Expire in 1-2 years 336,743 87,461
—E=FRHH Expire in 2-3 years 223,216 336,743
— E=PUFRNEIE Expire in 3-4 years 487,923 223,216
Mz R FAEIH Expire in 4-5 years 289,082 656,955
1,424,425 1,307,373
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20

HtEREBEE 20 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
by 3 | KAH
Group Company
“E-—% %—% —B--f <Z%——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTFT AREFT ARBEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
T FEREENR Prepayments for land use rights - 45,618 - -
s —FaR 4 N B FE A 3k(a) Prepayment for acquisition of an
associate (a) - 40,300 - -
PN EN(9) Prepayment for acquisition of
subsidiaries (o) 120,756 - 40,000 -
BERERENX Prepayment for purchase of
equipments 115,850 25,650 - -
EEERENK Prepaid advertisement fee 6,801 13,624 = -
ity Others 66,509 48,928 - -
309,916 174,120 40,000 -

ZeRHIERDEREE FGKESR
RARI(AASEESEEZERARS
MIEN—HEHERQRFEITH
MIEEEBERRAGIZ2EHE)
5% IEMTENR - BREERE
A ARBEA40,300,0007T °

FESBEFZENFMERUA
R #96,690,000T # B IL R &R
BEREER DA 70% AR
WIEAZ  QIERQARAAARE
120,000,000 70 A% 32 7 fin #8184 (4
FORBEERAR (AR ARERE
B0 AR ) MTE N : &(Q)
182 R A A R 7,650,000 7T 5%
MHMRE (L) FeERERA
B (HPAREEEHES1 %R AR
@) MTENR -

The amount represented prepayment by Fiyta
for the purchase of 25% equity interests in
Shanghai Watch Co., Ltd which is wholly owned
by Shenzhen CATIC Investment Management
Company Limited, a subsidiary of AVIC Industry,
the ultimate holding company of the Group. Total
purchase consideration is RMB40,300,000.

The amount mainly represented (1) prepayment by
Resources Company of RMB96,690,000 for the
purchasing of 70% equity interest of Shandong
Luyuan Mining Investment Co., Ltd. (U & & J&
% & E AR R F) (2) prepayment by Beijing
Company of RMB120,000,000 for establishing Yu
Ming (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. (fn#45 (4t
)R ABR A A, in which the Group will have
60% equity interest; and (3) prepayment by RED
Company for establishing CATIC Photosynthetic
(Shanghai) New Energy Co., Ltd (Y& ( H&)
HEe R AR A a]) of RMB7,650,000, in which the
Group will have 51% equity interest.
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292

EE 21 INVENTORIES
AEH
Group
=F—=-F —F——F
2012 2011
AEB¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g&E5)
(Restated)
FE KA Inventories — cost
ERAE Raw materials 526,091 833,015
TR Work-in-progress 316,045 292,840
K m Finished goods 3,099,566 2,777,505
3,941,702 3,903,360
T TR E WU Less: provision for write-down of inventories
R Raw materials (34,965) (49,165)
PR Work-in-progress (6,122) (7,135)
BIRK Finished goods (75,558) (44,528)
(116,645) (100,828)
FE—#E Inventories — net 3,825,057 3,802,532

ERAER LI AHEEKANTEFEERK A
A AR #25123,249,0000 (=T — —
& AR#22,811,541,0007T) °

REBER -_ZE——_FHENBEFE
EH 2 B A R #29,559,0007T ° A&

EEhERMAER  HEBE AKE

RIGHEMA]

‘cost of sales’ in the income statement.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to
RMB25,123,249,000 (2011: RMB22,811,541,000).

The Group had written-off provision of RMB29,559,000
in 2012 that was made in prior years. The Group has
sold all the goods and the amount has been included in
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22 BERERDPYE 22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AEE
Group
—E——F =%
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
FEERHE e RO BE B Fh W 3 Properties under development expected to

be completed:
RIEFEKSESA AREEE  Within the normal operating cycle included

under current assets 1,256,078 494,427
EERBIIE Balance comprises:
KA Construction cost 711,373 259,741
T fh A Land user rights 514,460 223,734
BERf R Interest capitalised 30,245 10,952
1,256,078 494,427
TEE
Group
=F-=F —F—F
2012 2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(E5)
(Restated)
BB 1218 A U@ To be recovered after more than 12 months 1,256,078 494,427
Er T M ENMAELSES The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of
SEHEREERE108% (=T ——F ¢ interest incurred eligible for capitalisation in 2012 was
7.7%) c FTBEESRYEHTRFE - 10.8% (2011: 7.7%). The properties under development

are all located in the PRC.
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23 EFRHMEWRE 23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

XxEE LN
Group Company
—%--Ff —F—F =%--F —FF
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFT AEETT ARETT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(s =351)
(Restated)
g 5 RN FIE() Trade receivables (a) 4,843,417 4,158,900 - -
S EUGORE RS Less: provision for impairment of
receivables (91,076) (201,215) - -
Z S eI — 35 Trade receivables - net 4,752,341 3,957,685 - -
EWZE () Notes receivables (c) 384,993 565,455 = -
H A (o) Other receivables (b) 2,195,818 862,674 660,709 300,763
TRt EETRN Prepayments to suppliers 1,789,545 2,633,091 = -
HAREIN S ER T Excess of input over output
value added tax 465,776 521,019 - -
FEU R 2, Interest receivables 7,365 4,444 - _
JRE U B 2, Dividend receivables 85,578 21,725 5,900 -
e Deposits 232,709 152,465 = -
9,914,125 8,618,558 666,609 300,763
S JEENEREE Less: non-current portion
—MAREIE - Excess of input over output
W ER 2 value added tax (205,860) (200,120) = -
-&e - Deposits (133,036) (108,652) - -
B S TE - Trade receivables (45,975) - - _
-E At - Others (3,729) _ - _
(388,600) (308,772) - -
ENEREE Current portion 9,525,525 8,309,786 666,609 300,763

RZE—=—&F+=-HA=+—8  #HEE
WEBERRITER(ZZE—F : BB
ER1TE X AR #593,000,0007T ) FYHE I o
HEIREF A BRI 1()

As at 31 December 2012, none of the notes
receivables were pledged for bank borrowings (2011:
RMB93,000,000 for current bank borrowings). Details of
the secured borrowings are in Note 31(a).
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The Group’s credit term on sale of goods is one year.
The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

23 EZREMEBWREGE) 23

AEEEYMHEZERBRA—F - &
5 EUGRIA 2 BRie DA AT

KEE

Group
—E-—F —E——%F
2012 2011
ARHEFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
—FR Within 1 year 4,642,022 3,704,599
—&E_F Between 1 and 2 years 128,377 197,163
—E=F Between 2 and 3 years 30,101 97,425
BiE=4F Over 3 years 42,917 159,713
4,843,417 4,158,900
TR E R IR A Less: provision for impairment losses (91,076) (201,215)
4,752,341 3,957,685

AEBEEZREFAZEMENTIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables

My are denominated in the following currencies:
AEH
Group
—E--F —EF——F
2012 2011
AR¥TF T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E51)
(Restated)
AR RMB 2,810,927 3,031,204
EV uUsb 1,733,426 903,834
HEFHRELRL LKR 119,506 28,654
o] By 2 26 Ry 4 AED 107,348 108,816
BREHED TZS 32,202 23,673
BT EUR 16,523 18,224
BEZES KES 10,135 2,410
BT HKD 8,269 20,479
=] JPY 25 5,713
HAth Others 5,056 15,893
4,843,417 4,158,900
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296

B REMBWREE)

(a)

BESRKRBRERE 2 ZEHNM
T

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(@) Movements on the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

—E-——F —E——%F

2012 2011

AEB¥TFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&E?))

(Restated)

R—A—H At 1 January 201,215 190,945

FEUR FRIE R B B Provision for receivable impairment 30,591 23,189
FRIEAT AW EIFIA Receivables written off during the year

HEITHIEE 2 FEUGRIE as uncollectible (126,572) (4,096)

F AL Reversals during the year (14,158) (8,823)

HN+=-—H=+—H At 31 December 91,076 201,215

RZE—=—F+=—A=+—8"
AR¥A14,164,0000( —F ——
£ AR¥25110,0007T) 2 &
SREWHFIBBDBIERRE - R
BRTLES BN EREZLE
EAEH  BZSHEBDEEA
AIREE - MERERAMEA
MZEEBTIRBERE - A&
B EMZELEHRITE AT
Mo ZEEFRINKBZERRD
T

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables
of RMB14,164,000 (2011: RMB25,110,000)
were past due but not impaired. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The aging
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

—E-—F —E——%F

2012 2011

AREFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(15 5E51)

(Restated)

—&E 4 Between 1 and 2 years 14,111 25,110
—E=F Between 2 and 3 years 53 -
14,164 25,110

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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23 EFRHEMEWE

(@)

RIE (%) 23

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(&) (a)

R-_ZE——F+-_HA=+—8"

B 5 W TE A R#187,231,000

T(Z% — — F }\ E o5

429 191,0007C) B RE - R - F
——%+=-—A=+—8 " ﬁéﬁi

%A AR®I1,076,000 T (= F

——&F : AR¥201,215,0007T) °

& SR TR (B R s O 38 0 K% 3 [
EFFAITHEM - it ABERA
M) & B — AR PO TR 1 A) U [ BB A
B -

RHBER - FERRNERASLE
AFEWRH REEE - AREL
BRATAERRESER -

AT AE AL U GRIE B4 T R (o)
ﬁ%AE%%mmpman&
50)FHE(—T——F : ARE

(continued)

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of
RMB187,231,000 (2011: RMB429,191,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was
RMB91,076,000 as of 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB201,215,000).

The additional and reversal of provisions for
impaired receivables have been included in
administrative expenses. Amounts charged to the
allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional
cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

Included in other receivables were
RMB360,191,000 loan to related parties as
disclosed in Note 50(d) (2011: RMB64,604,000).

SN T e s ﬂ
64,604,0007L) © ”Z*T’)\E’Ej R These amounts were unsecured, bearing annual
B AFEFE0%-5%FT B WA . ‘ 0%-5% and bl
TS o interest rate from 0%-5% and are payable on
o demand.
FEWEEEEITAREZLEYE (c) Notes receivable include bank acceptance bills
EERHEZ > ST : and commercial acceptance bills which are
analysed as follows:
M
Group

—F-—=F —FT——F

2012 2011

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(#8&751)

(Restated)

HERALES Commercial acceptance bills 82,655 85,033

RITAH IEZ Bank acceptance bills 302,338 480,422

384,993 565,455
MEE Z REAMERRZREE The carrying amount of current trade receivables
HENRBERSE - and other receivables approximated their fair

values.
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24 BEEY 24 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
RERE KAF]
Group Company
—E——F —FE——F ZB-=F —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARB¥Fir AREFT AR¥EFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E5))
(Restated)
FREE 4 A #Ipk A INFE(SE  Contract costs incurred
S ) plus attributable profits 8,461,545 8,405,912 = -
S e S 2B Less: progress billings to
date (7,497,977) (8,516,128) - -
B Less: provision (2,808) (51,298) - -
HEITRAEHMEERE Net balance sheet position
FFEMMR for ongoing contracts 960,760 (161,514) - -
E N Presented as:
BAENTIEEWREFS  Amounts due from
I customers for contract
work 1,161,194 802,666 - -
MENTIEENER Amounts due to customers
B for contract work (200,434)  (964,180) - -
960,760 (161,514) — _
AEBEMBERBEFEEL ZEEA The Group had written-off provisions of RMB51,298,000
R #51,208,0007T - AEBEHEME that was made in prior years. The Group has sold all the
EHEME  E2BE st ARERIEER related ships and the amount has been included in ‘cost
] of sales’ in the income statement.
298 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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25 ffTHEEmIA 25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
rEE AN
Group Company
—F—=-F —FT——F =F-=F —T—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFT ARETT AR¥FT AER®TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 ~ RMB’000 RMB’000
(Fe=E=5)
(Restated)
BE (Bf&E)
Assets  (Liabilities)
HNEE K(a) Foreign exchange
contracts (a) 3,110 (265) - -
HEFEE 49 (o) Interest rate swap
contracts (b) - (176) - -
3,110 (441) - -

@ HEAITEEHIESHNEBER

(@)

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding

SREWIT ¢ forward foreign exchange contracts are as follows:
bS] NG|
Group Company
—%--f —F—F ZE--F F-F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ANEEFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(m=51)
(Restated)
SNEEH) Foreign exchange contracts
~ERETLAARE - Seling USD for RMB 38,400 171,748 - -
- IAARBEAZET - Buying USD with RMB 84 41,368 - -
38,484 213,116 = _

RZE——F+-_A=+—8H"
MARITEF RIBHEHHZER
AT (ZF——%F 16,000,000
EK

(b)

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding
interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2012
were nil (2011: USD6,000,000).
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26 EHRITER 26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
ETRITEAHEHER - BRSFHERE Certain bank balances were pledged deposits which will
REMNETERNEREHAESRER be released upon the settlement of the repayment of the
BrifaE o bank loan and the use of credit amount.

—2——F =T —F

2012 2011
AREFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(gE5)
(Restated)
IRITIEFAEA Collateral for bank borrowings - 120,069
ERABREZIERER Guarantee deposits for issuance of
letters of credit 87,978 97,080
BEITHRGTESE 7 ERTER Guarantee deposits for issuance of
bank acceptance bill 165,193 261,144
BITRRES N2 ERTFR Guarantee deposits for performance
security of construction contract 22,975 62,068
I B — R B R B2 FE IR Guarantee deposits for acquisition of
TR a subsidiary 216,618 -
EHAth Others 17,799 17,053
510,563 557,414
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27 HENHEESZEY 27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
NEBRS LR EEBEYM 2 &/ DTS The balance of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
RIATR are analysed as follows:

S 3 NG
Group Company
—%--f —F—% ZB--fF —FF
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFT AREFT ARHFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(& =51)
(Restated)
BOFRRFERS Cash at bank and on hand 4,038,225 3,249,891 81,117 26,579
28 BRARRMGRE 28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
REERALT
Group and Company
RHEE e
Number of share Capital
R
NER Total EER  ROEE
Domestic HE  Number of Ordinary Share &t
Shares  H Shares shares shares premium Total

(&) (&) (Th) (A\EETFT) (\EEFT) (AEEFT)
(thousands) ~ (thousands)  (thousands) ~ (RMB'000)  (RMB'000)  (RMB’000)

RZE—E—-F-AR-F Asat1January 2011 and 31

——E+-A=+-H December 2011 395,709 277,658 673,367 673,367 354,518 1,027,880
KEMBARRTRN Issuance of shares for acquisition of
(i) subsidiaries (Note (2)) 437,265 - 437,265 437,265 940,120 1,377,385
WZZE-—#+-F=+-H Asat31 December 2012 832,974 277,658 1,110,632 1,110,632 1,294,633 2,405,265
(a) RZE——FNLARH » KAFA (@  The Company issued 437,265,000 domestic
NG AREIAST ZEBRIEIT shares on 5 September 2012 at the price of
437,265,000 & A & & T #F fin RMB3.15 per share to AVIC International as
B 1ER_Z—ZFWRENEE part of the purchase consideration for the 2010
RE - Acquisition.
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302

Hitof# 29 OTHER RESERVES
BENEE
RENEZ
EffliaE
TH#HE  Revaluation
SREE gain on
iERE  EfiRE transfer
A%E Available-for-  of owner- S iR
Statutory sale financial  occupied E3
ERiE general assets propertyto  Currency
Capital reserve  revaluation investment  translation ok
reserve fund reserve property  differences Total
NEEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
piN-] Group
RZE——45—F—Hz&8% Balance asat 1 January 2011,
(l8%3]) as restated 3685180 70001 15423 9,274 6769 3,776,109
MENESREEL Fair value gain on avalable-for-sale
A BERE financial assets - - 300 - - 300
BANEERENEL Revaluation gain on transfer of
Bftla owner-occupied property to
investment property - - - 77,559 - 77,659
NEHAED Currency translation differences - - - - (58,729) (58,729)
felg—HB S AR ALE  Share of fair value losses on
SREEZ ML EEFE available-for-sale financial assets of
(Hri15) an associate (Note 15) - - (338) - - (338)
FElE—BHLAATBEYE  Share of revaluation gain on the
EELAMERESHE  transfer of owner-occupied
Waihz15) property to investment property of
an associate (Note 15) - - - 30,124 - 30,124
HIERHIRE RS Transactions with non-controlling
interests (8,888) - - - - (8,888)
RZF——% Balance as at 31 December 2011
TZA=t-BzER 3,676,202 70,001 15,385 116,957 (62,498) 3,816,137
B Balance as at 1 January 2012 as per
—A-BzE# WEFL  above 3,676,292 70,001 15,385 116,957 (62,498) 3,816,137
A HESREE A4 EE  Far value gain on available-for-sale
Bt financial assets - - 448 - - 448
BANEERENEL Revaluation gain on transfer of
Bftla owner-occupied property to
investment property - - - 2,337 - 2,337
HNEHHED Currency translation differences - - - - 23,505 23,505
SRR RS Transactions with non-controling
(i) interests (Note () (4,892 - - - - (4,892)
il A= Share of reserve of an associate
FERERR A arising from it's transactions with
Giamz15) non-contralling interests (Note 15) (5,196) - - - - (5,196)
ABrEE Merger reserve (4,211,263 - - - - (4211,269)
RZZ——F+=A=+—H7 Balance as at 31 December 2012
B (45,059) 70,001 15833 119204 (38993  (378924)
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29 Hftf##E#)

OTHER RESERVES (continued)

SEEZEER
AEE
Statutory
general
reserve fund
AREF T
RMB’000

¥ N Company

R_E—F—HF—H - Balance as at 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011

—E—FERZE——F
+ZA=+—RBz&%

70,001

REFPERRERARR ZEBERA
8 REFDIRFRNE - KRFED
7l % BE T AR B P AR A #9 109% B E
AEBBATES (FRIFZRAEEEEARR
AIEMRAEREEE0%) » BRFHRLZ
BESh  REETBRAEELAERET
SREDRREKE

EEBRLAEE
RBRRRNGREZMER  EZERBRATE
SAERKRA BUBENZELES
TELREMEAEEER25% DR

NBE_T——F+ZA=1+—HIEHF
B ARAEFEZTRIVEAERAHKA
Be(ZE—F :8&) BAERQAR
BHE-_T——HF+_A=+—HILtFE
B 25118 -

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the
Articles of Association of the Company, when distributing
net profit each year, the Company shall set aside 10% of
its net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts
for the statutory general reserve fund (except where the
fund has reached 50% of the Company’s registered
share capital). This reserve cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they are created and are not
distributable as cash dividend.

Statutory general reserve fund

The statutory general reserve fund may be converted into
share capital provided it is approved by a resolution at
a shareholders’ general meeting and the balance of the
statutory general reserve fund does not fall below 25% of
the registered share capital.

The directors of the Company did not propose the
appropriation to the statutory general reserve fund
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil) as
the Company still has accumulated losses as at 31
December 2012.
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29 Hftf##E#)

EEBRBIRE(E)
@  HEFEFRERIS

R-EBE—=—F—F—H I1&2Q
AU BE EL BB A A AP B A 2 B
B AEBREERIAR([BRRE
TREBRA]) Z60%M - KRE
B AR 12,786,000 T - I 12
NEIFHEEFRET AT AFLA0%
B - A EERELABARF
EEgMANEBYHRIRERAIR
HoE TRAGEHERER
AREBAREREE  WEEA
RAMBAR - BREZAEA
RIESEHNFARNY AR ER
BB AEGRE ZENT ¢

29 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

Statutory general reserve fund (continued)

(@ Transaction with non-controlling interests
On 1 January 2012, Engineering Company
purchased 60% shares in its subsidiary, AVIC
International Apartment Company, Tanzania (7
B mBEEAEEEEEAT) (“Tanzania
Apartment Company”), at a consideration of
RMB12,786,000. Engineering Company held
40% equity interests of Tanzania Apartment
Company. However, all the members of the board
of Tanzania Apartment Company are nominated
by Engineering Company. Therefore, Engineering
Company has control over Tanzania Apartment
Company and accounts for it as a subsidiary.
The effect of change in the ownership interests
of Tanzania Apartment Company on the equity
attributable to owners of the Company during the
year is as follows:

ARETFT

RMB’000

YRR 2 R E Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 12,786
B TSR SR Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling

FRmEE interests acquired (8,740)
PR FIRERE Excess of consideration paid recognised

=5 within equity 4,046
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EEBRBIRE(E)
@ AR5 (E)

RZE——F—-—H—H ' IERQ
AUk BB EL BB A B AP B 2 B
B TRREREDR)RA([BE
BRIEARL) 215%K M - K
B A ARME1,756,0007T < HEE
DIRAGEEEESEENGE
NEARQRHE ABEREZ Y
20T

29 OTHER RESERVES (continued)

Statutory general reserve fund (continued)

(@) Transaction with non-controlling interests
(continued)
On 1 January 2012, International Engineering
Company purchased 15% shares in its subsidiary,
CATIC International Engineering Company,
Tanzania (PEMZERMER TR GEREE)
A7) (“Tanzania Engineering Company”), at a
consideration of RMB1,756,000. The effect of
change in the ownership interests of Tanzania
Engineering Company on the equity attributable
to owners of the Company during the year is as

follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
TR B RS 2 B Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 1,756
R PR IEE IR 2 Less: Carrying amount of non-controlling
FREE interests acquired (910)
REZERZ IR ELE Excess of consideration paid recognised
=5 within equity 846

FRERERBRAERAT 20126 EHE 305



PR R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

30

306

KRR TR 2

RZEBE——FNAAB » ARAAETAK
SEA L AR2,781,674,0007TH K A
R AT MR E S TP MBI - RHRY
RIERIRE  DAEAZT—ZFKE
MEBENRE - S RARBPARBRES
AR ERETRARKI47TER
£801,634,000 AR EIANE K -

BRKARRAMEESBERARAE
k- BEALMRESET LEERSFH
7+ 15 1tk 2 ) S S A AA] 48 ST 4 S /B B IR
FFe WARAER - BRAKARRAE
e 1A AR R REWAE - (/8
ERMARBEMBABERIRBREZ
AT () FAERRIR S T AR B PR
BEMBRE MARKELERANFKIEA
K(ii)ys B FBRFHAL -

v

KARBAMREF L ED BB B
WEUK AR AR T B 8 75 B 31T B i
(BEZA)REARRITEASRIZSF
B1EFENEFLA=1T—HAERNFE
B3 RFRIE - MR K AR AR R RE
FRRRPTIR » AR R BRI KARR
ARE SN GRSUE BT DIRNE -
IKARBAME ST E ATTEERE
% ARAHEBRBHAZITROE
SRR LEAEAAT B oK AR AR P 4 B R 25 T 2
HE D IR R

30

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

The Company issued an aggregate principal amount
of RMB2,781,674,000 PSCS on 5 September 2012 to
AVIC International, AVIC Shenzhen and Beijing Raise,
respectively as part of the purchase consideration for
the 2010 Acquisition. These PSCS being convertible into
801,634,000 domestic shares of the Company at an
initial conversion price of RMB3.47 per share.

The PSCS constitutes direct, unsecured and
subordinated obligations of the Company and rank
pari passu without any preference or priority among
themselves. In the event of the winding-up of the
Company, the rights and claims of the PSCS holder(s)
would; (i) rank ahead of those persons whose claims are
in respect of any class of share capital of the Company,
(i) be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of
all other present and future preference creditors of the
Company, and (i) pari passu with each other.

The PSCS have no maturity date and conferred a right
to receive distributions from and including the date of
issue of the PSCS at 1% per annum on any outstanding
principal amount of distribution payable annually in
arrears on 31 July each year, subject to the terms of
the PSCS. The Company was entitled to elect to defer
a distribution pursuant to the terms of the PSCS. Any
arrears of distributions due in respect of the PSCS would
be extinguished by the Company in full through the
delivery by the Company of its domestic shares issuable
by it upon the exercise of the PCSC holder’s conversion
right.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



PA RS IR R MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

30

KARBTRRE S (&)

IKARBABE SR B AR R BEITK
ARBAMEESE B EBERIZEEA
R¥3.47 TE K A RBATHRE S B
NEMR - BREAERHTAN  FiBE
AfEmREMBESARFE - KARR
ARRES B ARR TR ERK
ARF AR AR 2R - (V]G T &3l
HARRER EHARAG - BREETR
R ETRAUETRERRFRERTE
Ko (i) 8 #5538 <7 P B (R DI SRR (8
EENRR MR REERQAER
BHtsPR -

B K AR AR E 5 3172 Big121{E
ASAEMER - ARA] A 2L ARE K
ARG BB RE S RFERE R 2 (E
FEERD ) K AR AR EHF SNERK -
HEZB oK AR AR PT3R B RE 7 G R P 88
PR B ERSCPIIR) ©

KARMA BB ES B AEBRERR
ERKARBA R EST B AMEIK
ARFHEABERAGESE - HEREGH

REERE-

30

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES (continued)

The PSCS holders can convert PSCS into domestic
shares at any time from the date of issue of the PSCS,
subject to relevant terms as provided in the terms of the
PSCS, at conversion price of RMB3.47. The conversion
price will be subject to adjustment for bonus issue,
conversion of capital reserve and other dilutive events.
The PSCS Holders may convert such portion of the
PSCS on condition that: (i) the conversion would not
cause the Company to contravene provisions of the
Listing Rules including but not limited to the minimum
public float requirement under the Listing Rules; and (ii)
conversion would comply with all applicable laws and
regulations (including but not limited to the Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers).

On or at any time after 12 months after the date of issue
of the PSCS, the Company may, at its sole discretion
and pursuant to the terms of the PSCS, elect to convert
the PSCS in whole (but not in part) into domestic shares,
subject to the provisions of restriction on conversion set
out in the terms of the PSCS.

The PSCS holder(s) were not entitled to receive notice of,

attend or vote at general meetings of the Company by
reason only of its being a PSCS holder.
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31 &R 31 BORROWINGS
ERBRIERTERNEMER - om0 Borrowings include bank borrowings and other
T~ borrowings which are analysed as follows:
S 3 PN
Group Company
—E-C-f —T——F —B--F —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFTT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(& =51)
(Restated)
ERE Non-current
BRITER Bank borrowings
— () - pledged (a) 1,656,343 2,377,341 - -
—BERD) - guaranteed (b) 1,840,642 2,918,250 186,000 946,000
— AR - unsecured 1,817,101 2,211,055 - -
&EH(0) Debentures (c) 200,000 200,000 = -
BB ER(M7E500c) Related party borrowings
(Note 50(c)) 363,767 - - -
B IEREMERZ Less: current portion of
ENERER non-current borrowings (1,833,027) (2,744,343) (186,000) (760,000)
4,044,826 4,962,303 - 186,000
RE Current
RITEE Bank borrowings
— &) - pledged (a) 248,000 160,817 - -
—BERD) - guaranteed (b) 972,971 1,482,924 200,000 554,000
— R - unsecured 6,819,742 3,227,293 1,414,000 -
EH(d) Debentures (d) 100,000 - - -
BB (is500) Related party borrowings
(Note 50(c)) 588,000 590,000 - -
FERBETEZ IS Current portion of non-current
bank borrowings 1,833,027 2,744,343 186,000 760,000

10,561,740 8,205,377 1,800,000 1,314,000

14,606,566 13,167,680 1,800,000 1,500,000
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31 fEBRE) 31  BORROWINGS (continued)

(a) R_E—ZF+_A=+— (a) At 31 December 2012, bank loans of
H AEBRITERARE RMB1,904,343,000 (2011: RMB2,538,158,000) of
1,904,343,000C ( =& — — 4 : the Group were secured by the following:

AR #2,538,158,0007T ) {E 1K 4
BB
bS] N
Group Company
~%--f —F—F% ZB--f FTF
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETFT AREFT AR®FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(=51
(Restated)
EHBRITER Pledged bank deposits
(Hizt26) (Note 26) - 120,069 - -
EREKRE Pledged notes receivables
(Hiz#23(8) (Note 23(a)) - 93,000 - -
TR Land use rights (Note 7) 517,952 518,721 = -
BF(He11) Buildings (Note 11) 1,444,472 1,300,473 = -
HEEIR(M:13p))  Construction-in-progress
(Note 13(b)) 16,361 3,301 = -
REWE(NE120)  Investment properties
(Note 12(c)) 1,141,656 826,881 - -
WeET R (HEE11)  Machinery and equipment
(Note 11) - 218,983 - -

3,120,441 3,081,428 = -
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310

B &) 31 BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) R—EFE—=-—&F+-_A=+— (b) At 31 December 2012, bank loans of
H AXEBRITEXTARE RMB2,813,613,000 (2011: RMB4,401,174,000)
2,813,613,0007c( — & ——4 : of the Group and RMB386,000,000(2011:
ANERHA4 401,174,0007T ) K ARA RMB1,500,000,000) of the Company were
AERTTE R A R #386,000,0007T supported by the following guarantees:

(=& ——4 : 1,500,000,0007T)
X T IERASIFS
r&H N
Group Company
—E-Cf —T——F —E--f —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREF T AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(f=351)
(Restated)
sfen o] AVIC Shenzhen 402,000 1,500,000 386,000 1,500,000
B AVIC International - 74,415 - -
Hit BT Other related parties 765,971 270,000 - -
E=FhH Third Party 1,645,642 2,556,759 - -
2,813,613 4,401,174 386,000 1,500,000

ZEBFHBEMBR_ZE—F
FHA+TNBEIT  UWERE
4.95%5T 8 WK ZE—=F+
A-+ N B2 - ZEEHFHL
REBREREBGRARER o

ZEBFHRFEERN T —=
FUA+—HET UFHN=E
6.11%FME WK ZE—=FY
A+—B3H - ZSEHFAER
o

The debentures were issued by Weihai Shipyard
on 28 October 2010, carried an annual interest
rate of 4.95%, and will mature on 28 October
2013. The debentures are guaranteed by
Shandong Re-guarantee Group Co., Ltd. (L&
BEREEARAR).

The debentures were issued by SCC on 12 April
2012, carried an annual interest rate of 6.11%,
and will mature on 12 April 2013. The debentures
are unsecured.
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31 {EFE) 31 BORROWINGS (continued)
(e) ERZERMENL T EEHE ()  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:
r&H N
Group Company
—F-=F —F—F =F--F —F-F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFr AREFIT ARETF AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(fg=351)
(Restated)
AR RMB 12,339,429 11,084,022 1,800,000 1,500,000
e usb 1,821,022 1,838,382 - -
BT HKD 222,887 191,909 - -
BT EUR 216,406 - - -
I TIERD SHF 6,822 - = -
AE JPY - 53,367 - -
14,606,566 13,167,680 1,800,000 1,500,000
REE R - EEmEEe 2 H=REE) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate

Ee®EFMEEANRRAT changes and the contractual repricing dates at the

balance sheet dates are as follows:

x5E NG
Group Company
~%--f —F—f% ZE--f T -F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(& E3)
(Restated)
—FR Within 1 year 10,561,740 8,205,377 1,800,000 1,314,000
—3°F Between 1 and 2 years 1,236,807 1,267,170 - 186,000
—ERE Between 2 and 5 years 2,331,815 2,863,018 - -
BERRAERZHEE  Wholly repayable
within 5 years 14,130,362 12,335,565 1,800,000 1,500,000
AFNUE Over 5 years 476,204 832,115 - -
14,606,566 13,167,680 1,800,000 1,500,000
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312

(CENED

() (4&)

31

FERBIRITEAMER Z BIH A

BORROWINGS (continued)

(continued)
The maturity of non-current bank and other

©

T borrowings is as follows:
E3 ADR
Group Company
—F--Ff —FT—F =%--F —F-F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(l=51)
(Restated)
—Z2ZfF Between 1 and 2 years 1,236,807 1,267,170 - 186,000
—ZRF Between 2 and 5 years 2,331,815 2,863,018 - -
BARERZHEE  Wholly repayable
within 5 years 3,568,622 4,130,188 - 186,000
FEALE Over 5 years 476,204 832,115 - -
4,044,826 4,962,303 - 186,000
4] REFEB 2 ERFERAT ) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet
dates are as follows:
r5E
Group
—E--f —F——F
2012 2011
ARE EA B BT AEK EA fE BT
RMB usb EUR HKD RMB usD JPY HKD
BITER Bank borrowings 6.08%  330%  3.00%  3.14% 6.03% 3.57% 3.53% 3.08%
AT
Company
—E——fF —E——F
2012 2011
AR ARH
RMB RMB
IRITIER Bank borrowings 6.40% 6.28%
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31 {EFE) 31 BORROWINGS (continued)
(9) REB RARD G ZEE @R F (9) The interest rate exposure of the borrowings of
KREMBIIT : the Group and the Company are as follows:
by b/
Group Company
—F-=F —F—F =F--F —F-F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ABEFT ANREFT AREFT ANEREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(i E75)
(Restated)
ZEER Borrowings at floating rates 6,991,980 7,911,287 360,000 554,000
EEER Borrowings at fixed rates 7,614,586 5,256,393 1,440,000 946,000
4=t Total 14,606,566 13,167,680 1,800,000 1,500,000
(h) IRBETHEEFEDELA (h)  The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-
AEEMT : current borrowings carried at fixed interest rate

are as follows:

REE ANREE
Carrying amount Fair value
~g--% ¥ % -B--fF T F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ABBTT ANEEFT ARETFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(m=31) (LE7)
(Restated) (Restated)
RITER Bank borrowings 1,544,906 1,604,697 1,474,949 1,551,520
&% Debentures - 200,000 - 194,347
FeEy Total 1,544,906 1,804,697 1,474,949 1,745,867
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B ZIEE WA

HESERRAPEEHBTRER G
K B BE i BT R AR 2 & TR R

32

DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT
GRANTS

The amounts represented various subsidies granted by
and received from local government authorities in the

B EHEEMT PRC. The movements are as follows:
rEE
Group
=F-—-F —F——F
2012 2011
AEB¥TF T ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E7))
(Restated)
n—A—H At 1 January 576,231 565,264
B Uk ERf (a) Receipt of grants (a) 416,970 458,309
FRF AW R Credited to income statement during
the year (454,211) (447,342)
N+—_A=+—H At 31 December 538,990 576,231
(a) ZeBRETERRBATPEHE K (a) The amount mainly represented subsidies

FREBERTFTRBEZEZBARE
209,568,000 T( = ZF——4 : A
R #361,730,00070) * & T XM
T AR 34,837,000 ( =&
——4&F : AR¥71,199,0007T) &
it =2 &) A B # 110,000,000 7T
ZE——F B ERFMERA
R#20,046,00070(=ZF——4F :
BINEBNKEYE  BERE&E
URBEERTERTEBEEN
R o

RZE—=—F+=-A=+—8"
R T 46 Bh 2 IR UR A 4 8 B HE
BEREHWREDE  BEREREE
MEBTRHEL - UREERTER
MEBEEKRRNZBFHE - o
Bl A B # 448,690,000 T ( — &
——4% : AR#400,053,0007T)
¥ AR #90,300,00070( =T ——
F: AR#¥176,178,0007T) °

granted by local government authorities in the
PRC to Tianma amounting to RMB209,568,000
(2011: RMB361,730,000) and SCC amounting
to RMB34,837,000 (2011: RMB71,199,000) and
Beijing Company amounting to RMB110,000,000
(2011: Nil) and AIVC Resources amounting to
RMB20,046,000 (2011: Nil) for financing and
subsidising acquisition of property, plant and
equipment; and for compensating costs to be
incurred for research and development of new
products.

As at 31 December 2012, the balance of
deferred income on government grants included
government grants for financing and subsidising
acquisition of property, plant and equipment; and
for compensating costs to be incurred for research
and development of new products amounting
to RMB448,690,000 (2011: RMB400,053,000)
and RMB90,300,000 (2011: RMB176,178,000)
respectively.
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33 ENRREMBZENEZE 33

(a) EBIREEERIKE
AEBAPBEERES S EPBRET
HEAAB LR EENEELESRE
FE - RPBMEBARART
BRRA16%E22% » HAFEK
BRI E - RTEHERE
BME - WERFRENEERF]
MEFDHERERRIKTEIE
A TE AR o

RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a)

State-managed retirement plans

The Chinese employees of the Group participate
in employee social security plans organised and
administrated by the PRC government authority.
The PRC group companies are required to
contribute from 16% to 22%, depending on the
applicable local regulations, of payroll costs to the
state-managed retirement plans. The obligation of
these PRC group companies with respect to the
state-managed retirement plans is to make the
specified contributions.

AR & W a R ABR A AN 4B FE A The total cost charged to consolidated income
T statement is as follows:
rEE
Group
=F-=F —F—F
2012 2011
(#&E5))
(Restated)
HERFEREZERKETE  Contributions to state-managed
(HteE41) retirement plans (Note 41) 173,877 141,894

REER » THSBERAINT

At the balance sheet date, the following amount

BIR B IR KA & had not been paid to the state-managed
retirement plans:
AEH
Group
=F-=F —F—F
2012 2011
(g E5)
(Restated)
FABSREMPKIE Y Amount due to state-managed
FENERERRENRETZ retirement plans included in trade
b QL] and other payables 6,401 14,224
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33 EBURERHEHMBEEEFEE#) 33 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)
(b) R RARREEENSE (b) Early retirement and supplemental benefit
obligations
REEEEBERERNIEIR The amounts of early retirement and supplemental
KEMFTEFNETSHBETHOT benefit obligations recognised in the consolidated

balance sheets are determined as follows:

REH
Group
—B-=-F —F——F
2012 2011
(&5
(Restated)
REBHEENRE Present value of defined benefits
obligations 53,649 53,419
RERIEHEE Unrecognised actuarial losses (3,393) (2,979)
ATRMNEEEENAR  Lability arising from defined benefit
obligations 50,256 50,440
B BIEREE Less: current portion (2,192) (3,845)
JERNHEAEL 5 Non-current portion 48,064 46,595
REBIEMRARERBHER The movements of Group’s early retirement
BT benefit and supplemental benefit obligations are as
follows:
KEE
Group
=F--F —F——F
2012 2011
(&E?))
(Restated)
REH] At beginning of the year 50,440 52,099
FA For the year
— FLERAR — Interest costs 1,824 1,933
b - Payment (4,198) (3,975)
—r5EEK - Actuarial losses 2,190 383
TAE R At end of the year 50,256 50,440
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33 RUKEMBREBIE XS

(b) RABRKRBEBREEE) (b)

FREERBBIHERETE

& (&) AR AR (FBEEN 7
ERPREBEMBESE)ETH
REMAEEET  KABEAEME

BURERAOL -

it FEEEEMRANERS

33 RETIREMENT AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(continued)

Early retirement and supplemental benefit
obligations (continued)

The above obligations were determined based on
actuarial valuations performed by an independent
qualified actuarial firm, Mercer Consulting
(Shanghai) Company Limited (member of the

Society of Actuaries and the China Association of
Actuaries), using the projected unit credit actuarial

cost method.

The material actuarial assumptions used in valuing

BEREAT these obligations are as follows:
AEH
Group
—F—=-F —ZT—F
2012 2011
(geE5)
(Restated)
BRIR KR (FF) Discount rates (per annum)
— IR INEFET 8 - Supplemental retirement benefits plan 3.60% 3.50%
—RRIRIREREHE — Early retirement benefit plan 3.00% 2.80%
WX ER¥H5a—  Mortality: Average life expectancy of
7R RAE A residents-Supplemental
B retirement benefit plan 86 86
TR ERFHYEFm—  Mortality: Average life expectancy of
TRATR IR1E A residents-Early retirement
=& benefit plan 86 86
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34 HhFERBEME 34 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
bS] b UN|
Group Company
—2-CF 25 —B-CF “B——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ABEFT AREFIT ARE®FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(seE51)
(Restated)
JERHER A RIFIA () Payable to the holding company (a) 1,050,000 - 1,050,000 -
JET R AR IFRIE (o) Payable to AVIC Shenzhen (b) 100,000 100,000 - -
ERRSCERNRER Payable to Weihai Economic and
BlEEELEER Technological Development
AEIFUE(C) Zone State-owned Assets
Management Co., Ltd (/&4 &
RITREEEEEELEER
~al) (c) 40,000 40,000 - -
Hith Others 12,424 13,363 - -
1,202,424 153,363 1,050,000 -
(a) RARRZE— 40 AmE] (a)  The Company borrowed RMB1,050,000,000 from
NAEE /\ R # 1,050,000, ooo the holding company in April 2012. The amounts
It F'E‘Jﬁ?fﬁﬁ REFIRA94%5T are unsecured, bearing annual interest rate of
BERERZZE—RFMAEE - 4.94% and repayable in April 2015.
) AEBWBRARFEERNZ= (b) SCC, a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
ZEAF T ARF HRRIEE RMB75,000,000 and RMB25,000,000 from AVIC
A R # 75,000,000 7T & A R #& Shenzhen in October 2009. The amounts are
25,000,0007T ° #ZEHEHAEIK unsecured, interest bearing at a rate of 3.48%

-

123.48% K 4. 70%5T B & J

AR _—T— E¢+ﬂ k=
F+AEE

(0 AEE—FIHED WL EHH ©
EIERAAR-EEAEA
FEARSRERNEEREEAE

MEERERD
40,000,0007T °
#

=)
o

off it

o

318

IFRBARZ AR

AERARE
E%??UAIEZ%%?E
VAR B SR 17 P JE AR B R &
W T FRABE -

EEEREEN

and 4.70% and repayable in October 2014 and
October 2016 respectively.

Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Group, borrowed
RMB40,000,000 from Weihai Economic and
Technological Development Zone State-owned
Assets Management Co., Ltd, in June 2009. The
amounts are unsecured, bearing interest rate at
the benchmark interest rate prescribed by The
People’s Bank of China and repayable in June
2017.

The fair value of other non-current liabilities approximated

the carrying amount.
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35

ESREMENSRE 35 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
bS] N
Group Company
“E--F —T——F “E-CF —2——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETFT AREFT AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
=)
(Restated)
BHENTR Trade payables 3,892,317 3,565,351 = -
[EfEe RETIRF Salaries and staff welfare payable 291,591 335,212 6,476 2,376
ERNER Notes payable 755,930 1,006,189 - -
RE#Y Advance from customers 3,688,730 2,318,037 - -
FERFIE Interest payable 34,758 46,823 3,230 -
RS Dividend payable 10,699 21,328 - -
HAEMAHIE Other taxes payable 154,711 320,899 133 143
[t B R AR FUE(R)  Accruals and other payables (a) 2,357,673 2,662,042 275,166 313,746
B—RE=F 2B (D) Borrowings from a third party (o) 18,000 222,198 - -
e Deposits 74,502 26,659 - -
11,278,911 10,524,738 285,005 316,265
RS Less: non-current portion

-&& - Deposits (46,128) (24,335) = -
nEE D Current portion 11,232,783 10,500,403 285,005 316,265

(@)

FFAER R EMENRIBARE
847,351,000t J5 & FE 1~ BB 77 5Kk
B R ES0C)EBE( T ——
F . AR % 968,186,000 7T ) °
REFRBRAERE  UFHNE
0%-12.5% %t B » WAEBRKE

& e

7455 [ — I B 28 0 B A R
—E-CE- AR IEE
REAARECATEEARE
18,000,0007T ° #% % 1A A &K
DA FIR7.872%3 8« B
BB -

(0)

Included in accruals and other payables were
RMB847,351,000 due to related parties as
disclosed in Note 50(c) (2011: RMB968,186,000).
These amounts were unsecured, bearing annual
interest rate from 0%-12.5% and are payable on
demand.

Weihai Shipyard, a subsidiary of the Group,
borrowed RMB18,000,000 from Weihai Industrial
Developing Investment Co., Ltd. (B8 L% RE
WEBRET AR, in January 2012. The amounts
are unsecured, bearing annual interest of 7.872%
and are payable on demand.

FRERERBRAERAT 20126 EHE 319



SRR M

Notes to the Financial Statements

35

320

ESRHMENRE®) 35 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
R-ZEBE——F+_A=+—"H EHE At 31 December 2012, the ageing analysis of the trade
NRBBRE AT T - payables is as follows:
TEE VYN
Group Company
% —F —FT——&% =¥ =-F —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ANEBTFT AREFIT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
(78 &51)
(Restated)
1FER Within 1 year 3,380,058 3,158,780 - -
1-24F Between 1 and 2 years 327,124 312,438 - -
2-3F Between 2 and 3 years 120,647 28,726 - -
3FEM E Over 3 years 64,488 65,407 - -
3,892,317 3,565,351 - -

AEEEZRENFENERTER NIE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

BEHE denominated in the following currencies:
AEH b NN
Group Company
—E-—F ZE—F T ZE——%F
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTFrT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
AR RMB 2,768,863 2,583,772 = -
HEBREL LKR 334,712 629 = -
ET UsD 320,622 292,398 = -
kv S AED 235,818 272,706
A JPY 64,031 72,581 - -
(¢ EUR 61,420 193,162
V2 TZS 25,041 2,974
ABIT HKD 13,069 28,097 - -
Hh Others 68,741 119,032 - -
3,892,317 3,565,351 - -
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=F--F =—F—F
2012 2011
AR¥TFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g=5)
(Restated)
BT Bh Government grants 454,211 447 342
R 7% R ARIEUA Service and maintenance income 61,876 138,644
BIE MmEE WA Sales of by-products 53,969 29,216
A B A Dividend income 47,289 52,916
BT £ B (a) Financial subsidy (a) 33,563 25,908
EHWA Default income 26,937 39,954
HEWRA Compensation income 4,521 2,121
EIRBRKA Guarantee fee income - 2,344
EHAth Others 6,001 17,410
688,367 755,855

(a) It BR IR LT 8 B T B BRED (a)  The amount represented financial subsidy

FIREETMERRFABNE
FIEEDGR M a2 d e
Y O BE -

received/receivable from the local finance bureau
of Qinghai Province for refund of certain value-
added-tax paid by Qinghai CATIC Resources for
the year.
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Hitzs, (B518) — 258 37 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET
—E-CF —E—%F
2012 2011
AR®EFrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
HEME « BE MRE Gain from disposals of property, plant and
Wezs (fit46) equipment (Note 46) 37,884 7,155
e By R Wz /(BE) Gain/(Loss) from disposals of investment
(H15t46) properties (Note 46) 21,893 (5,179)
HETESmM T A & Gain on disposals of derivative financial
instruments 2,346 5,708
HEFERHERERE W  Gain on disposals of held-to-maturity
(H1it46) financial assets (Note 46) - 2,761
HER L N T 2 Wk (#15746) Gain on disposals of associates (Note 46) 3,452 -
HEMHEESHEE Y Gain on disposals of available-for-sale
ek (f15t46) financial assets (Note 46) 15,073 623
HERB ARz W Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 38 2,134
AL T EAREEES  Fair value changes on derivative financial
(Kiita6) instruments (Note 46) 3,550 (1,773)
REMRBITELER Y Losses from discounting bank acceptance
&5 bills (25,368) (11,446)
LIFTERE Z NGRS 1B Losses from derecognition of trade
(Hiita) receivables (Note a) (24,557) -
Hh Others 2,727 (315)
37,038 (332)

@@ REZRBEELLEERLREEARRE
BEAERARBESIERFEAR
#90,532,000 L Z 18 - RIESE
BEMER  tRKEE(ER
RAFRILERZAXEEREER
RAGNZ=ZFHE A5 EH
MERINRENGHEZEATE
BEARKEF(LEERAT -
I RKEFRER QA GFH T
FALZNGB T &G MBFLHE
TR AR #20,000,0007T °

The amount represented the loss from
derecognition of trade receivable of
RMB90,532,000 from Shandong Nongda Fertilizer
Technology Co., Ltd. (ILE 2 KEERER A 7).
According to a tri-party agreement among Qinghai
CATIC Resources, Beijing Zhaofengnian Fertilizer
Co. Ltd. Jt RIKLF(LAEA R A 7)) and Shandong
Nongda Fertilizer Technology Co., Ltd., the latter’s
obligations to pay Qinghai CATIC Resources the
outstanding balances are transferred to Beijing
Zhaofengnian Fertilizer Co. Ltd. which will pay
the remaining balances within 4 years with annual
payment no less than RMB20,000,000.
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EMESENER 38 EXPENSES BY NATURE
—B-—F 3%
2012 2011
AREFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
MmN ERGNFESES  Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress 345,266 588,895
BWEFPE&4 TEFIEE Changes in amounts due from customers
for contract work 358,528 203,560
FERBEME X ERER Raw materials and consumables used 24,756,700 22,200,500
S TRMZ M (Hata1) Employee benefits expenses (Note 41) 1,805,958 1,652,150
HIBREXH Repairs and maintenance expenditure 76,710 101,023
PREFERE,(BO) Provision for/(reversal of) inventory
obsolescence 45,376 (150,158)
AR B Provision for bad debts 57,581 5,390
BNEFA AN TIRFIEEE Provision for amounts due from customers
for contract work 2,808 148,337
WE - BB MEREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Krzt11) equipment (Note 11) 914,680 1,022,114
T b AR SE (A2 T) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 7) 29,853 14,462
TRUBHERIH (H1at8) Amortisation of mining rights (Note 8) 14,589 14,133
mILEBEEHE(NE10) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10) 10,441 6,550
HiIEmEE EE il Amortisation of other non-current assets 14,383 38,363
BHEETENELAESRH  Operating lease rentals in respect of office
buildings 190,057 153,468
BEMREMEE Business tax and other levies 182,489 126,503
ZEEM S Auditors’ remuneration 12,526 26,572
KEE Utility expenses 325,682 329,225
BB Transportation 251,609 146,538
EIRE Travelling expenses 94,095 91,736
¥BHEE Entertainment 71,555 63,484
BHEER Professional fees 85,067 89,228
RITER Bank charges 75,571 51,404
Hih &M Other expenses 557,180 256,754
EERAK  HEBRNITHE Total cost of sales, distribution expenses
gz and administrative expenses 30,278,704 27,180,231
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EEWS 39 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(a ES=Me (a) Directors’ emoluments
RE——FR_T—FF The Company did not appoint any chief executive
RRRIWAREFEERITREH in 2012 and 2011. The remunerations of the
HE—_Z2——F+_-_A=+—H directors for the year ended 31 December 2012
LEFE  BESHHMOT : are set out below:
ETEM
AR
Employer’s
BERAL  contribution to
he #4  Discretionary pension A3
Fee Salaries bonuses schemes Total
AEEFT ABEFT AEETFT AREFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEfE Name of directors:
REEE Mr. Wu Guang Quan* - - - - -
mELE Mr. You Lei* - - i ) )
BB EE Mr. Pan Lin Wu* - - - - -
REREHE Mr. Chen Hong Liang* - - - - ,
CES Mr. Liu Jun® - - - - -
BESRE ™ Mr. Lai Wei Xuan® ** - - - - -
AR Mr. Sui Yong* - - i ; }
Ei vt Mr, Liu Rui Lin* * - - i ; )
BRABLE Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong® ** - - - - -
nEREE Mr. Qiu Shen Qian* ** - - - - _
TEERE Mr. Wang Bin Bin* ** - - i ; }
FEERE Mr. Li Cheng Ning" * - - - - -
BRI Mr. Xu Dong Sheng™ - 311 - - 311
BERAL Ms. Wong Wai Ling 140 - - - 140
BERE Mr. Wu Wei 140 - - - 140
KPEE Mr. Zhang Ping 70 - - ; 70
£y i Mr. Liu Xian Fa™ 29 - - - 29
379 311 - - 690

BHRELE  BIERLE  BRER
FERKRPEENR-_T—_FK
RERE=F -

Mr. Pan Lin Wu, Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Chen Hong
Liang and Mr. Zhang Ping were appointed as
directors in 2012.
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39 EEMEn) 39 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@ EEMEE) (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
HEr—_E—F+_-_BA=+—H The remunerations of the directors for the year
ILFE X SEEHMT - ended 31 December 2011 are set out below:

B TRk

Rl

Employer’s

B4 contribution to
we ¥4 Discretionary pension A
Fee Salaries bonuses schemes Total
ANBEFIT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EEMRE Name of directors:

RARERE Mr. Wu Guang Quan* - - - - -

RiELAE" Mr. You Lef* - - - -
BEELE Mr. Lai Wei Xuan* - - - - _
RERBELE Mr. Cheng Bao Zhong* - - - - -
MiER S £ Mr. Qiu Shen Qian* - - - - -
TEERE Mr. Wang Bin Bin* - - - - -
FAEL A Mr. Li Cheng Ning* - - - - -
BREALE Mr. Xu Dong Sheng - 610 1,419 - 2,029
BBLE Mr. Sui Yong - 326 1,023 137 1,486
B E Mr. Liu Rui Lin - 610 1,245 25 1,880
BEEE Mr. Wu Wei 124 - - - 124
BERL Ms. Wong Wai Ling 124 - - - 124
AEELE Mr. Liu Xian Fa 50 - _ _ 50
298 1,546 3,687 162 5,693

* HZEEERAARF 2 RFE
FERA B AL B s AR Y
WEE - ERESTRANH
[ SRR N ol
BEIER - LS 5EI &

These directors received emoluments from the
holding company AVIC International or AVIC
Shenzhen for their services to the Company. No
apportionment has been made for emoluments
from the holding company, as the directors

aF: consider that it is impracticable to apportion
this amount between their services to the Group
and their services to the Company’s holding
company.
** ZEEFERZTE—ZFEAX o These directors had resigned from the Company
NABHE © in 2012.
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39 EEM=#)

(a)

(b)

EEME(E)
EXBEBEsEZHEBEIMNT
BURTESTNEEARE
379,000t (ZE——F : AR
298,0007T) °

AEEAREFAEREARS (=
T——F )

TEBREHFMAL
R-ZE——FAEEREERH
AT T EFA EXDTZEM
EEHFMoAR(ZE——F : =
H)  FRNEMZEAZAL(Z
T——F : MB)ZHHOT

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Directors’ fees disclosed above included
RMB379,000 (2011: RMB298,000) paid to
independent non-executive directors.

None of the directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2011: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year 2012 do
not included any directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above
(2011: 3). The emoluments payable to these five
individuals (2011: 2) during the year are as follows:

—2--F T F
2012 2011
AEB¥TFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EXgFe -  BEEM Basic salaries, housing allowance,
Efb2BE B = other allowances and benefits in kind 8,658,000 3,900,000

N TFLATEE : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
e —E——F
2012 2011
B 5 & Emolument bands
1,500,001870E HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7t 4 y
2,000,001 8L E HKD2,000,001 — HKD3,000,000
3,000,000/ 7T 1 1

326 AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



PSR R M

Notes to the Financial Statements

40

BMERA - FEE 40 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—EB-—F —T——F
2012 2011
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
FEZH Interest expenses
—HARRFERNZEEEZ - bank borrowings wholly repayable
BITEE within 5 years 841,112 735,529
—BEESREBTEE 52 - borrowings from related party
== repayable on demand 113,555 42,616
— &% — debentures 9,900 9,900
T BRI F B Less: interest capitalised (29,750) (11,704)
934,817 776,341
BB E B AIE WU F R Net foreign exchange gain on financing
activities (20,261) (74,016)
BEK A Finance costs 914,556 702,325
FEWA Interest income (84,298) (137,876)
BERAFRE Net finance costs 830,258 564,449
RZE——F EIRRTERER Bank loan interest capitalised in the construction

{EFI B A ARE10,457,000( & ——
T E AR R
T ——1F 1 465%) °

F: AR#804,0007T)
55.66%

in progress amounted to RMB10,457,000 (2011:
RMB804,000) during 2012. The capitalised interest rate
was 5.66% (2011: 4.65%).

RZZE—ZF BRETPYERTERE
KA F| B A AN R #19,293,00070 ( =
—— 44 : AR¥10,900,0007T ) (Bt 5
22)  MERERMEHE10.8% (=
FET7T7%)

Bank loan interest capitalised in the properties under
development amounted to RMB19,293,000 (2011:
RMB10,900,000) during 2012 (Note 22). The capitalised
interest rate was 10.8% (2011: 7.7%).
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EEEFNEHR 41 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E——F —E—%F
2012 2011
AR¥TFrT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
T8 - ZFekiEs Wages, salaries and bonus 1,302,997 1,226,797
'r - BEREMEA Welfare, medical and other expenses 126,150 132,714
HERERAK A Social security costs 198,920 148,429

RERKEFERKET Early retirement and supplemental pension

(H17#33) benefits (Note 33) 4,014 2,316
RIRFTEIME SR (B77433) Contributions to pension plans (Note 33) 173,877 141,894

1,805,958 1,652,150

AEEC2EARNREMAMLEE
YRPEETHNEELERRE - &
EERE  BEREMEEREF - RIF
BRARE  AKEEARARBTERES
MEREZRBRESRBERRES - #HX
BRI AEE AFH19%K9% - AEE
DRIEAEER14%NT7% - HEAFIAHE
BAYE - BRAEHRZIN  NEELE
Hib#& 5

The Group has participated in employee social security
plans enacted in the PRC, which cover pension, medical
and other welfare benefits. The plans are organised and
administered by the governmental authorities. Pursuant
to the relevant provisions, the Group is required to make
monthly contributions in respect of retirement insurance
and health insurance to governmental authorities,
equivalent to 19% and 9% respectively based on the
monthly salaries of its employees, of which, the Group
bears 14% and 7% respectively, and the employees bear
the rest. The Group has no further obligation beyond the
contribution.
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FrigBipa

BETFEBSEMAGHE  KRIESHEA
BEBRE - TAIAEER B RS HH
BAREABRER25% °

AR BIA R PR Y T 48 5 [ R K 32 /Y
ETHBAR  REABGEMSHME
B15% ° IRIEB BB ERRSFIEES
ETHBARIMDEMSHBEFENZ
TZENFE_ZT-_FHTFHBES
25% c —E——_FEBATEMSM
RAEEY%( ZBE——5 : 24%) o

EFfRARIREPFMEESREAKY - R
BRTEMSHRHEA15% - REGE
EMBBIAK] - B AR ERR
BHEREBER-_ZZENFE_ZT—_F
HFEREBEE2% « —F— —FER
B ER25%( B ——14F : 24%) °

B RN H RSN - AT
SERRTARSEANEERE - 1
RE— AT 15% BB B
H(ZT——%  15%) °

42

INCOME TAX CHARGE

Pursuant to the relevant income tax law of PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC were
subject to income tax at a rate of 25% unless preferential
rates were applicable.

For certain subsidiaries established in Shenzhen special
economic zone, the original enterprise income tax rate
was 15%. In accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Corporate Income Tax law, the corporate income tax
rate of certain subsidiaries will transit to 25% in five years
from 2008 to 2012. The corporate income tax rate was
25% in 2012 (2011: 24%).

Xiamen Company established in a special economic
zone in Xiamen. Xiamen Company’s original applicable
income tax rate was 15%. In accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Corporate Income Tax law, the
corporate income tax rate of Xiamen Company will transit
to 25% in five years from 2008 to 2012. The corporate
income tax rate was 25% in 2012 (2011: 24%).

Qinghai CATIC Resources was established in Haixi
Prefecture of Qinghai Province. It was eligible for
preferential tax policies applicable for the development
of western regions in the PRC, and was entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% in 2012 (2011: 15%).
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FEHExXE) 42 INCOME TAX CHARGE (continued)

XEREMB AR LBXRBEMEKEBX Tianma and its subsidiaries Shanghai Tianma and
5 REERERPMERE(ER)BEE Chengdu Tianma, SCC and AVIC Wang Xin (Beijing)
RARIAWREATESHEMEER Science and Technology Co.,Ltd were qualified as High
RIEBE——FEBIS%EEFAEHRHRE and New Technology Enterprises in the PRC and were

ZE——F 1 15%) -

AEFMREHRASNT

entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% in 2012
(2011: 15%).

Income tax charged for the year represents:

—E——F —E——1F

2012 2011

ARMEFT AEREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&&&E7))

(Restated)

NEZphmF 2z BIEAFE18 Current tax on profits for the year 195,902 268,817
TR —FE 2 AR Adjustments in respect of prior year 9,035 5,444
BNHEATH IH 4B 2R Total current tax 204,937 274,261
RIER IR Deferred tax (22,923) (497)
Friefimsx Income tax charged 182,014 273,764
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42 FrEBiEZ®) 42 INCOME TAX CHARGE (continued)
7N £ [ bR A5 A1 g I S AR Y A 18 ER AR 1R AR The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
NI NREMB AR EERRHETER from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
EimfIEERENT ¢ tax rates of the home country of the Company and its

subsidiaries as follows:

=F—=-F =—F—F
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(s ES)
(Restated)
& T A5 55 Al ) Profit before income tax 1,447,392 1,181,726
AN BEATERI5%ETEH)  Tax calculated at the tax rates applicable to
BME(ZZE——%F : 25%) the Company of 25% (2011: 25%) 361,848 295,432
[R5t 2 584 &8y 1fy /2 A IR A Deferred income taxes resulting from
st change in the tax rates (5,748) 2,801
RERATR BB IS E Tax effect on unrecognised tax losses 72,271 164,239
BYFRSCRATRMERMMBIIEEIE  Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (42,258) (14,998)
TEERBIRMBEZMNER  Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 5,210 6,981
BABFRUA Income not subject to tax (134,882) (122,541)
AT ANETHOBR AT 3 & A Research and development expenses
eligible for additional deduction (15,712) (5,574)
BEFEELNHAR Adjustment in respect of prior year 9,035 5,444
JERBEFETEER Use of tax effect of temporary differences
ELEFESREEN TR T for which no deferred income tax assets
ERVGE was recognised in the previous year (727) (19,621)
RIERE R M ERER Tax effect on unrecognised temporary
sz 2 differences 6,260 9
BRI R P E AT Effect of tax concessions from lower
BENTE tax rate (71,603) (37,037)
B EIRRRENTIE Tax credit for purchasing environmental
N, protection equipment (1,668) (1,370)
EHAth Others (12) ()
BIAR 2 Tax charge 182,014 273,764
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RRRESFEARGER 43

ARAEEFEABESFNEGFARR
R B HwE - WA AR 195,877,000
TT(ZE——%F : BEARM77,617,000
JC) BBR °

BREF 44
(a) BN
BRAERREERFTIZA R A
BEEEABGEFBRUAFAR
BATEBARINE T REGTE -

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of RMB195,877,000 (2011: Loss of

RMB77,617,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic and diluted earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the

year.
—F-=-F —F——F
2012 2011
(#&=E7))
(Restated)
NN RIEREEA ARIEER  Profit attributable to owners of
(ARBETIT) the Company (RMB’000) 969,839 674,556
B BEFOKARRAIRIE  Less: Profit attributable to PSCS holders
AR A& (RMB’000)
(AREEFT) (27,817) (27,817)
BB AN T mIR IR Profit attributable to ordinary shares holders
w=H(AREFIT) of the Company (RMB’000) 942,022 646,739
DETE MR TIIMRE Weighted average number of ordinary
(FR%) shares in issue (thousands) 1,110,632 1,110,632
BREREBF(ARE Si%) Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) 0.8482 0.5823
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BRER #7)

(b)

s
BREERNDRABCETE
AN R BUARR P B &
EEEERAREEERMAE - K
“ﬂ%ﬁ B85 r0 B 85
B K ARG AT BRRE S - I
BEREKAR WT#H%%E%
BRAEBEK

44

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
has one category of dilutive potential ordinary
shares: perpetual subordinated convertible
securities. The perpetual subordinated convertible
securities are assumed to have been converted
into ordinary shares.

—B——fF —E——%F
2012 2011
(#&E5))
(Restated)
RATIRERISE AJEML T Profit attributable to owners of
(AR®FT) the Company (RMB’000) 969,839 674,556
BETH MR INE A% B Weighted average number of ordinary
(Fh%) shares in issue (thousands) 1,110,632 1,110,632
SRR Adjustments for:
— K ARG AR FE A (TRR) - Perpetual subordinated convertible
(W#30) securities (thousands) (Note 30) 801,634 801,634
19 PR B M 1 2 PR Weighted average number of ordinary
INREEH IR E (T HR) shares for diluted earnings per share
(thousands) 1,912,266 1,912,266
SHRESE AT Diluted earnings per share
(NE#E =A%) (RMB per share) 0.5072 0.3528
e 45 DIVIDENDS
RZE—Z=ZF=ZA= +)\E| BRNES At the board of directors’ meeting held on 28 March
gL EEgESTERBEEZEC 2013, the board did not propose a final dividend for the
T+ A= + EI IEFEMHR year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). The board did
HRE(ZE——F ) - EFEUW not declare interim dividend (2011: RMB20,201,000).

BREPHRB(ZZE——F : AR
20,201,0007T) ©
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FERFIRGEESER SR

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated
from operations:

334

=B——-F _T—F

2012 2011

HtaE AR FT ARETFT

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

(&&E5))

(Restated)

B PG H0 ATa A Profit before income tax 1,447,392 1,181,726
FEIFE - Adjustments for:

KIFEREREERN Losses from derecognition of

Eia financial assets 24,557 -

AR IRIT R A EREE Losses from discounting bank
acceptance bills 25,368 11,446
REFEBE Provision for/(reversal of) inventory

(@) obsolescence 45,376 (150,158)
ARG Provision for bad debts 57,581 5,390
JEWEFE4HTIEFE Provision for amounts due from

B customers for contract work 2,808 148,337
M - R NRRIERN Depreciation of property, plant

e and equipment 11 914,680 1,022,114
FRIEE 5 Amortisation of mining rights 8 14,589 14,133
o 3 {5 R AR 6 Amortisation of land use rights 7 29,853 14,462
B EH Y Amortisation of intangible assets 10 10,441 6,550
Hi#sEY Other amortisation charges 14,383 38,363
REMEXHO AR Fair value gain on investment

BEWER property 12 (101,332) (38,845)
B N AR A Gain on disposals of associates 37 (3,452) -
tﬂ’%—ﬂ HESHEE Gain on disposals of available-for-

Wz sale financial assets 37 (15,073) (623)
B B A AR E Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 37 (38) (2,134)
HEFEZIHeHEE Gain on disposals of held-to-

Wz maturity financial assets 37 - (2,761)
MEeRIAEARER Fair value changes on derivative

gk financial instruments 37 (3,550) 1,773
R 6 B BRI A Deferred income on government

grants (363,823) (42,387)
HEWE  BER Gain on disposals of property,
Brgl ok e plant and equipment 37 (37,884) (7,155)
Ed’%&%{%%ﬂ’ﬂ Gain on/(Loss from) disposals of
%/ (Ei8) investment properties 37 (21,893) 5,179
i @ SION Interest income 40 (84,298) (137,876)
B Interest expenses 40 914,556 702,325
FE(REEE N E @ A Share of profit of associates 15 (131,873) (143,467)
FEAL LRI HIE B = Share of profit of jointly controlled
entities 16 (345,172) (171,393)
EARE S N R TR Elimination of unrealised profit
REZ /ﬁﬂﬂiﬁ from downstream transaction
with associates 15 - 526
A [F) 12 ) B BE T hE R Elimination of unrealised profit
B IR 4 F1 5 from downstream transaction
with jointly controlled entities 16 961 -
2,394,157 2,455,525
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46 HEEELEWNEL(#) 46 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
—F-——F =—F——F
2012 2011
HaE ARHEFT AR TFor
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
BEESHE Changes in working capital
FEEN Increase in inventories (38,342) (1,298,998)
BRAPYFEIE NN Increase in properties under
development (761,651) (267,5006)
BUREEA#HTR Increase in amounts due from
SRIEIE AN customers for contract work (358,528) (2083,560)
(Increase)/Decrease in amounts
EREEAITRRIIE due to customers for contract
(1), wd work (763,746) 694,200
B 5 Kk H MW Decrease/(Increase) in trade
S (1) and other receivables 628,401 (2,826,540)
B 5 N E M EN A Increase in trade and other
N payables 945,106 1,114,726
LiEELS (TR )BEIR4  Cash generated from/(used in)
operations 2,045,397 (332,153)

REzEz-_T——F+-_A=+—8I1tF
ERREESRER  IEHEZAHNBEA

In the cash flow statement for the year ended 31
December 2012, capital contribution to subsidiaries from

AHNEEBRIE non-controlling interests comprises:
—E-—F T4
2012 2011
AREFT AR TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&&E7))
(Restated)
FELIR RED Compnay 1,690 6,000
BP9 A Xiamen Company 1,135 1,250
T#EAA] Engineering Company 1,000 -
IERAF] Beijing Company 195 134,760
bR m{E Beijing Ruixin 150 2,000
BXERR 55 Chengdu Tianma - 168,000
BN A E] Guangzhou Company - 159,700
4,170 471,710
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46 HEELENBEES®) 46 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
RNEBE-_E——F+-_A=+—R8I1LF In the cash flow statement for the year ended 31
EHNRERER  LEVE BEER December 2012, proceeds from sales of property, plant
BARREMERNFISZIESLE - and equipment and investment properties comprise:

=F—-F —FT——F

2012 2011
AEB¥TFT ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&E5))
(Restated)
HEWE  BEREHEZ Net book value of property, plant and
BREDFE(MaE11) equipment disposed (Note 71) 59,696 120,273
EHEREMER Fair value of investment properties
R EERFE12) disposed (Note 12) 20,049 24,818
79,745 145,091
HEYE - WEMERE Proceeds from disposals of property,
Fr8 308 plant and equipment 97,580 127,428
Hj’%&ﬁﬁ’@l% Proceeds from disposals of investment
ZiECEe: properties 41,942 19,639
139,522 147,067
HEME - WER&E Gain from disposals of property,
AR 3% B YR plant and equipment and investment
Wz (B15£37) properties (Note 37) 37,884 7,155
HERE WS (E18)  Gain/(Loss) from disposals of investment
(H1:237) properties (Note 37) 21,893 (5,179)
59,777 1,976
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46

EEELNRE &) 46 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
REBE-_E——F+_A=+—RHItF In the cash flow statement for the year ended 31
ENReneR  HENBARINFAE December 2012, proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries
SRIBBIE - comprise:
R-ZZT——F+=-F EMAFTILEEHR In December 2012, Xiamen Company disposed of 60%
REMEEGFERAERA A ([ EHAF equity interest in Xiamen Xingxi Coast Energy Co. Ltd.
F1e0%ERD RALEMBEEREN (“Xingxi Coast”) (EFIEFEZFERAR A R]), the cash
T~ flows from the disposals were as follows:
AREFT
RMB’000
FrEBRE Consideration received
—BeRE — Cash consideration 2,336
W BEEERAENRE R Less: Cash and cash equivalents held by
REEEY Xingxi Coast (3,820)
AHEmMZ RS FEE Net cash paid on disposals (1,484)
FEGFAFEERNT The net assets of Xingxi Coast were as follows:
k== R
On disposal
date
AREFT
RMB’000
He Cash 3,820
B 5 R E M EUGRIE Trade and other receivables 47
Y - BB M Property, plant and equipment 10
B 5 NEMER IR Trade and other payables (47)
FEE Net assets 3,830
AT RS - Attributable to:
EfREEB A Owners of Xiamen Company 2,298
FEVE i 2 Non-controlling interests 1,532
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46

338

CEELENRE )

ERRBRFEMBEI0%EE - R —F
——%F - bR D E ERURA IR
RIM W - Rt LR AR B RRET0%
IR EARRMB AR -

IERAB BRI ERES KT
MHER —T——FN\AEW AR E
BB R R EHRBREGIE - BRLE
MRS REWT :

46

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)

Beijing Company originally held 30% equity interests
in Qi Yue. In 2011, Beijing Company has reached an
agreement with non-controlling interests of Qi Yue
pursuant to which Beijing Company has 70% voting
rights in Qi Yue and accounted for it as a subsidiary.

The validity of the agreement to act in concert between
Beijing Company and the non-controlling interests of Qi
Yue expired in August 2012. The Group then lost the
control over Qi Yue. The cash flows from the disposal
were as follows:

ABRETFT
RMB’000
FrESHRE Consideration received
—BeRE — Cash consideration -
B BRFBENRe R Less: Cash and cash equivalents held
REFED by Qi Yue (108,804)
EEEmZ TR FE Net cash paid on disposal (108,804)
RUBBHFEEWNT ¢ The net assets of Qi Yue were as follows:
REEBHE
On disposal
date
ARETFT
RMB’000
B&e Cash 108,804
B 5 N EAth fE Yk F08 Trade and other receivables 297,274
T8 Inventories 7.114
W - WE MEE Property, plant and equipment 34,304
BIEFTEEE Deferred income tax assets 594
s R Land use rights 49,750
B 5 Kk H M ER I8 Trade and other payables (400,003)
FEE Net assets 97,837
AT (L - Attributable to:
R REEB A Owners of Beijing Company 29,351
eI Non-controlling interests 68,486
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46

CEELENRE )

R R BREFFA T MM AA45% A HE -
“ETLF AL RATEFMMMEIE
ZRERE] W B ERAAA
2 A AR89 % Y 1 SR A I 7 HL A BR A B
BRA] -

LR AR EBN AR FEIE AR S — B
TENHER_—F——FN\AREH &
REBEERREH MMM ESIE -
ERLENRERENT :

46

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)

Beijing Company originally held 45% equity interests in
Taizhou AVIC. In 2007, Beijing Company has reached
an agreement with non-controlling interests of Taizhou
AVIC pursuant to which Beijing Company has 89%
voting rights in Taizhou AVIC and accounted for it as a
subsidiary.

The validity of the agreement to act in concert between
Beijing Company and the non-controlling interests of
Taizhou AVIC expired in August 2012. The Group then
lost the control over Taizhou AVIC. The cash flows from
the disposal were as follows:

ARETFT
RMB’000
FrEBRE Consideration received
—ReRE — Cash consideration -
B ENEREER S R Less: Cash and cash equivalents held
HEEED by Taizhou AVIC (427,105)
B & R %5 Net cash paid on disposal (427,105)
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340

CEELENRE )

TN FEEWT

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
The net assets of Taizhou AVIC were as follows:

R E B

On disposal

date

AREFT

RMB’000

ik Cash 427,105

B 5 Kk H M EWFRIE Trade and other receivables 592,640

FE Inventories 524,796

ME - BRE MRE Property, plant and equipment 906,971

BEIEFTISTE E Deferred income tax assets 10,851

T Hb{E A Land use rights 85,442

B Borrowings (956,509)

B 5 N E AN FIE Trade and other payables (1,085,898)

BIEFT SR AR Deferred income tax liabilities (8,040)

P Provisions (9,161)

FEE Net assets 488,197
ARG - Attributable to:

BIAUNGIEZ=DN Owners of the Beijing Company 219,572

FEE SR Non-controlling interests 268,625

1b 2R B R Sk 2= BB Ko Z= N v AR 4 I 4
BHBERATEN TEREFESHBE
NA) o SR T RRER R Ze M RS AR AR
B0 ERQAFRBMBEZMMMHT
fEEA R EBERERDBRNEERR
MMEMEENEBEYD I AARE
29,351,0007t X A R#219,572,000 T #8

++

= o

HEXSHB AR MFREBERD
AR #537,393,0007T °

Beijing Company retained significant influence after losing
control over Qiyue and Taizhou AVIC and reports them
as associates. At the date of losing control over Qiyue
and Taizhou AVIC, the fair value of Beijing Company’s
remaining equity interests in Qiyue and Taizhou AVIC
approximated the carrying amount of Beijing Company’s
investment in Qiyue and Taizhou AVIC of RMB29,351,000
and RMB219,572,000, respectively.

The total net cash decreased on disposals of these
subsidiaries was RMB537,393,000.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



PA RS IR R MIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

47 HEEBHE 47 CONTINGENCIES
R-_E——F+-_A=+—8 ' *x5H As at 31 December 2012, the Group has the following
BTN RBITEHBHER - financial guaranties outstanding:
BREEASEZBE ERUSHEAEEZBE HAEEEREE
BRA Guarantor’s relationship ER¥% Guarantee’s relationship Outstanding
Guarantor with the Group Guarantee with the Group amounts guaranteed
Tz
‘000
B AEERBLA WREEERDERAA dep B T AL R AE#120,000
Weihai Shipyard Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Co.,Ltd. Under common control by RMB120,000
PRC Government
B FEENERAR BEBEEERAR fy e B 2 R 2 ARH150,000
Weihai Shipyard Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Group Co.,Ltd. Under common control by RMB150,000
PRC Government
WRFHEIBRAA AEEHERR WRFHETHBEERRY ERIRAERYUK AE#37,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of the Group BRAF 10%# % RMB37,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding ~ The guarantor holds 10%
Ship Steel Outfitting Co., Ltd.  equity interest in the
guarantee
WRFHEIBRAF AEEHERR WS E TERERSE ERABEERER AR10,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding Subsidiary of the Group BRAA 10% % RMB10,000
Co., Ltd. Shandong New Shipbuilding ~ The guarantor holds 10%
Pipe Qutfitting Production equity interest in the
Co., Ltd. guarantee
\WERHMETARAF AEEHERR BABEEERAR Ey R B S R ANE#55,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Co., Ltd. Under common control by RMB55,000
Co., Ltd. PRC Government
WRHHETBRAR REEREAT BABEBERAR m B T2k R AE%55,000
Shandong New Shipbuilding Subsidiary of the Group ~ Weihai Port Group Co., Ltd. Under common control by RMB55,000
Co., Ltd. PRC Government
EFRF FEENEAR EFREHETERAR ERARAERER ARH140,000
Xiamen Company Subsidiary of the Group ~ Xiamen Tianma 6% R RMB140,000
Microelectronics Co., Ltd. The guarantor holds 6%
equity interest in the
guarantee
CATICO Investments Pte. Ltd. FEERBAT Radiance Catico Offshore ERABELR %7126,413
CATICO Investments Pte. Ltd. Subsidiary of the Group Pte. Ltd. Associate company of the USD26,413
Radiance Catico Offshore guarantor

Pte. Ltd.
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48 EiE 48 COMMITMENTS
(a) EBREIE (a) Capital commitments
REEHNAEENE REAERD Capital commitments at the balance sheet date
I but not yet incurred are as follows:
Fi 3 | KAF
Group Company
2§ —E——% ZE-=f —Z——F
2012 2011 2012 2011

ABBTFTRH AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

(& =75)
(Restated)
BRI A BREE Contracted but not
provided for
ME - BEK Property, plant and
& equipment 118,412 103,249 - -
BRAYE Properties under
development 732,970 732,483 - -
851,382 835,732 - -
b 3 | RAH
Group Company
—2--§ -T——% ZB--f <-—T—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT AR¥F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(EE75)
(Restated)
BRIEERL Authorised but not
contracted for
ME - BEK Property, plant and
B equipment 2,497,350 1,761,934 - -
BIERRIER Hotel modernisation
#E and renovation - 100,000 - -

2,497,350 1,861,934 - -
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48 EiE#) 48 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) RERLYRIE (b) Operating lease commitments
NEBRIBHAIEFT 20 BE The Group has commitments under non-
EEFAAAIELT cancellable operating leases in respect of office

premises as follows:

—E-=fF —E——F
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(F&E5))
(Restated)
TBE—F Not later than one year 88,263 72,423

HBiA—FETEART Later than one year and not later than
five years 141,954 169,313
230,217 241,736

49 EBEH 49 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

R-E——F—F—H AEBWESE
Z=T70% K HE - R E B AR 4,760,000
T WHE E AR B AR 4,308,0007T )
FEASEBHEERASFESRATESHNR
BEENE - MECHERH BB
FrSREH0% -

On 1 January 2012, the Group acquired 70% of the
equity interests of Huatai for RMB4,760,000. Goodwill
of RMB4,308,000 arising from the acquisition was
attributable to economies of scale expected from
combining the operations of the Group and Huatai. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.
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49 EKE6t#)
TEBARERD I HNARE - R
AHIFEACERMAERGBE I DAE
1B IA R JEFE AR A % o

49

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for Huatai, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities
assumed and the non-controlling interest at the

acquisition date.

RE: Consideration: AT T
R=—Z2—=-F—HF—H At 1 January 2012 RMB’000
e Cash 4,760
METWBEERFIARESE Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
RS acquired and liabilities assumed
RERRESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 2,514
VI - B NRE (M 11) Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) 252
B 5 N E M EWGIR Trade and other receivables 867
BIEFTISI A E (M52 19) Deferred income tax assets (Note 19) 104
HtIERBEE Other non-current assets 119
H 5 LA E FRIE Trade and other payables (3,196)
HtFERBEE Other non-current liabilities (14)
AERBFEELE Total identifiable net assets 646
FEFERRME AR Non-controlling interest (194)
B Goodwill (Note 9) 4,308
4,760

BE_ZE-—_—F—-A-HEHER Eak
HRAAERERZBA - ERPFEH
EAEEARE1,622,0007T ©

50 EXBEBLIRZ

AEEAPEMERMBERZERERA
AR BEEMAIZZEA RE)ZEH -
ZAREENMBEFSEARTT75%K
7o BER25%BBMBARERZFA - &
ERA - PHREBEBRRFMITED B AX
KB R AR MR AT

50

No revenue included in the consolidated income
statement since 1 January 2012 was contributed by
Huatai. Huatai contributed losses of RMB1,622,000 over
the same period.

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by AVIC International Holding
Corporation, a state-controlled company established in
the PRC which directly and indirectly hold 75% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining 25% of the shares
are widely held. The directors regard AVIC International
and AVIC Industry as the holding company and ultimate
holding company of the Group respectively.
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50 EARBEEAIRB#) 50

BRAF G RAREMIODAEEEIN - A
SEAERRKEBEPEAME T ET
MEABBIXZMABBAOIIZESE
RSB T -

(a) EHEBLINRS

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant related party
transactions entered into in the ordinary course of
business between the Group and its related parties and
the balances arising from related party transactions:

(a) Transactions with related parties

AEH
Group
—B——fF —T——F
2012 2011
AEB¥TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(s E5)
(Restated)
WA - Revenue:
HEGY Sale of goods
—FEIERR iR - Non-controlling interests 754,960 766,873
/NG - Associates 607,355 432,357
H[E) e AL — Jointly controlled entities 112,195 21,655
- qﬂﬂnl%ﬂ?fﬁ%’&ﬂ — Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 90,787 13,220
— IR AT — Ultimate holding company 10,804 25,257
— AT - Holding company 1,442 31,287
1,577,543 1,290,649
HAERA Rental income
—mh T ERZMNE AT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 10,421 3,673
—BfE AR - Associates 1,657 8,749
12,078 12,422
TEEEBIA Engineering and management income
— P TXRZKBAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 155,393 23,576
T NGl - Holding company 3,299 -
—BE AR — Associates 1,800 -
KA HIE S — Jointly controlled entities - 563
160,492 24,139
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50 EBEABBLIXZ(#)

(@) EBREBINXZ(E)

50 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

AEH
Group
—F-—-F —F——F
2012 2011
AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5))
(Restated)
F AT AR U Technical service income
ik NG] - Associates - 31,575
H A AR AU A Other service income
— 2R A R] - Holding company 22,103 14,970
— I TERZKEAFT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 19,670 6,106
/NG - Associates 4,096 _
—HEESIEEE — Jointly controlled entities 468 -
—BIERAE — Ultimate holding company 221 -
46,558 21,076
BEEMERE Purchase of goods and services:
BEEM Purchases of goods
— IR A — Non-controlling interests 1,793,466 1,559,279
NG - Associates 709,321 535,713
— R TR ZKBAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 134,477 49,659
2,637,264 2,144,651
BEITENMEERS Purchases of engineering and
management services
—th T ERZME AT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 25,639 27,584
— HEEE S — Jointly controlled entities 4,375 5,486
/N — Associates - 2,152
30,014 35,222
THEERLY*EIEEA Rental fee and property management fee
—mhTERZME AT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 6,275 -
B /NG — Associates - 24,343
6,275 24,343
H A AR IF A Other service costs
— PR ITXRZMEBAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 44,729 32,901
—HR iR — AVIC Shenzhen 8 _
— FEIEARRE R - Non-controlling interests - 5
44,737 32,906
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50 BEAREBAEXZ#) 50 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) EHEEBAINKS(E) (a) Transactions with related parties (continued)
rEE
Group
=F—=F —F——F
2012 2011
AE®EFrT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(5&EH)
(Restated)
MEMZ Interest expenses
—hir T2RZNEBAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 82,009 14,154
— =R A R] — Holding company 47,075 25,883
— R — AVIC Shenzhen 24,845 6,377
— IR - Non-controlling interests = 2,371
153,929 48,785
HERE Dispose of investment
— i TR R B — Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC
AF0 Industry 0 41,890 -

0] I RAFEKZRFI RS
ABRAR(TRERF DMV =
T——F+—AZ+ZHEZ
RhEERE BE_T—=
F+ZA=+—8 " RAH
BrRXKEXFEREARE
39,080,000 7T ) & E 7 i ifif
EERRE(KZ)AERAAE
H5% ks - RIEREARE
2,810,000 C I EXREHBH
BRARS%MIM ©

HERFHREERNRS

ARREEARE  HFBEREK
FF B A2 I o R BB 2 0 R
BRANKHBOHEEEEMRER
R A ERE b o B R A I B R
MRGREETRS - WERXS
TERERETEARITENRR
ERBBER - FR - AREE
FEFReIFERNEEIRT
MABEFEIRBEARITEA

(i) Beijing Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with Tianjin Tianli Aviation Electro-
mechanical Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Tianli”) ( X /& X
A ZE# B B R A7) on 22 November, 2012.
As at 31 December 2012, Beijing Company
had disposed of all its 5% share in Schneider
Electric Low-voltage (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (jE i 12
B KB (X)2)ERAT) with the consideration
RMB39,080,000 and all its 5% share in Tianjin
Meirilan Co., Ltd. (K)Z#HBBRAF]) with the
consideration RMB2,810,000 to Tianjin Tianli.

Transactions with government related entities:

The Company is a state-owned enterprise
ultimately controlled by the PRC government. The
PRC government controls a significant portion
of the productive assets and entities in the PRC.
The transactions between the Company and
other PRC government controlled entities are
related party transactions. These transactions
mainly include depositing cash in and obtaining
borrowings from certain stated-owned banks.
Nearly all of the Company’s cash were deposited
in and all of the borrowings were borrowed from
state-owned banks during the year.
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50 BEAREBAEXZ %) 50 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) AR AL e (b) Balances with related parties

HEERRNAEHRE RERR
RERAREREER -

The balances with related parties companies are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.
rEE
Group
=F—-F —FT——F
2012 2011
AR¥TFT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E7)
(Restated)
E b B B FOR Other receivables
—BE AT — Associates 492,435 23,615
— FEVERRE R — Non-controlling interests 387,289 -
—h TR ZNEAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 293,314 133,118
L NGl - Holding company 134,265 142,931
— AR — AVIC Shenzhen 11,700 11,500
—HEEHIE S — Jointly controlled entities 5,882 -
1,324,885 311,164
FEULF B Interest receivables
kNG - Associates 6,181 -
SEU B Prepayments
— IR S — Non-controlling interests 169,024 279,498
—h TR ZNEAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 5,107 28,126
—BE AR — Associates 2,489 17,207
176,620 324,831
FEUER TR Accounts receivable
—BE AT — Associates 321,126 263,279
— FEVERRE R — Non-controlling interests 285,496 -~
—h TR ZNEAT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 150,083 107,880
—HEEHIE S — Jointly controlled entities 31,816 10,793
— AT - Holding company 17,737 12,171
— PR AT - Ultimate holding company 511 122
806,769 394,245
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50 EXBEBLIRZ#)

(b)  EREAEETTEVAEER(E)

50 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties (continued)

AEE
Group
——F —T——%F
2012 2011
AEB¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&EE3))
(Restated)
fEEtE RN M ERIE  Accrual and other payables
—hR TR ZHBART - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 214,398 304,437
NG - Holding company 142,272 35,309
— IR A - Non-controlling interests 21,000 -
— Rl - AVIC Shenzhen 8,377 68,853
NG - Associates 7,326 -
F % %‘JE‘T’%‘% — Jointly controlled entities 3,699
—Ei,ﬁé‘h NS - Ultimate holding company - 1,750
397,072 410,349
FERTRRSR Accounts payable
— IR - Non-controlling interests 209,561 29,581
—BE R R] - Associates 110,933 216,710
—Eiﬂﬁnl%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@aﬁ - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 38,161 13,726
Hi} %\J =5 - Jointly controlled entities 1,963 451
fTI - Holding company 327 179
360,945 260,647
PN Advance from customers
kNG - Associates 152,302 805
—mhf T ERZME AT - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 142,193 178,332
—3H A& 2 — Non-controlling interests 49,368 141,217
HEEFIEE — Jointly controlled entities 27,438 9,262
T /N - Holding company 3,864 98,914
375,165 428,530
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50 BEREEBLIXRZ &) 50 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) EEBAEESMAEER(E) (b)  Balances with related parties (continued)
rEHE
Group
— 2 —F —T—fF
2012 2011
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(g&=5)
(Restated)
FERTAILE Interest payables
— FEIERRE R - Non-controlling interests 1,435 -
—F LRI — AVIC Shenzhen 924 854
—hR TR ZHBAR - Fellow subsidiaries of AVIC Industry 920 -
3,279 854
Hi3EmBaE Other non-current liabilities
—¥ERR A T] — Holding company 1,050,000 -
— R — AVIC Shenzhen 100,000 100,000
1,150,000 100,000
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ERBEEAIRZ (&) 50 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) HEB S ER (c) Borrowings from related parties
A&EE
Group
—T——F #ig BE Z—T-=fF
2011 Additions Repayment 2012
AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ER A Included in other payables
(W#7£35(a)) (Note 35(a))
—mRTERZNE - Fellow subsidiaries of
NS AVIC Industry 447,074 536,846 (5611,772) 472,148
— RS - Non-controlling interests 3,780 2,000 (1,500) 4,280
— iR - AVIC Shenzhen 223,200 600,350 (470,205) 353,345
—ER A - Holding company 204,132 1,100,000 (1,376,554) 17,578
968,186 2,239,196 (2,360,031) 847,351
sFAERHEE31) Included in borrowings
(Note 31)
—thiT¥RAZNE - Fellow subsidiaries of
NC] AVIC Industry 590,000 603,767 (242,000) 951,767
(d HFEEFEXR (d) Loan to related parties
A%
Group
2% His Eg —B-=F
2011 Additions Repayment 2012
ANEEFT  AREFT AREFT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E5))
(Restated)
S AE YRR Included in other receivables
(Hiz#23p) (Note 23(b))
—HERE - Associates 28,080 314,056 - 342,136
— R — AVIC Shenzhen 36,524 153,080 (171,549) 18,055
64,604 467,136 (171,549) 360,191
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352

Hif%2 =18

ARARZMBRARIRDEER_-_T—=F
A+t HEPRAELFEBREEZE
S it 21T S 58 A R #400,000,0007T 2
REEFH - REEHFKRZ=ZE—NF=
A-+tB3H - FAFENES04E 5T

B o

1SN

REEAJR_E—"NF_A=-++tHIE%
HERALSESMER B HET AN
FE(E) 2 £ E100% 2 B REE R A
AIfES °

RopEAEEN_ZT—"F_A=-_++t
HRIZ+H M@ cEsFE AR
FEIINABIES < FE (121005 8) °
AR EW MITEZIBERE - RAEH
ZHEBHRE BB AT 2 8 T B #EFT

5

o

AAREFFHAEABRLEREMMEZ
BAE > RARAMEFFA ARERERR
TERBENASSES NEF RN F
BZEF100% 2 B EER 2 #sk#ln
RA)ES -

RepEZ ABEHFHEFPHRYIGER -

51

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Fiyta, a subsidiary of the Company, with the approval
by China Securities Regulatory Commission, issued
corporate debenture amounting to RMB400,000,000 on
27 February 2013, The corporate debenture will mature
on 27 February 2018 and carries fixed annual interest
rate of 5.04%.

Fiyta may redeem the corporate debenture on 27
February 2016, in whole, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to the redemption date.

Fiyta may, at its option, choose to increase the interest
rate of the corporate debenture from 1 point basis to
100 point basis by notifying the corporate debenture
holders 30 days before 27 February 2016. If Fiyata does
not exercise the option, the interest rate of the corporate
debenture will remain unchanged in the remaining period
before maturity.

After the issuance of notification to corporate debenture
holders on whether to increase the interest rate, the
corporate debenture holders may choose to require Fiyta
to redeem the corporate debenture, in whole or in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The corporate debenture of Fiyta is guaranteed by AVIC
Shenzhen.

AVIC INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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